
 
 

                                                                                                           

  

 
IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: 

   
 1. Please file a speaker’s slip with the Executive Director, and upon 

  recognition by the Chair, approach the rostrum and state your name; 
  speakers are limited to 5 minutes per item. 
 
  2. If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the City of 

Alameda Housing Authority Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 
747-4325 (TTY/TRS: 711) or vmondo@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 
hours prior to the meeting will enable the City of Alameda Housing Authority 
Board of Commissioners to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility. 

 
   
 
AGENDA REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE & TIME Wednesday, June 19, 2019 – 
 
  Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. (AAHC MEETING TO FOLLOW DIRECTLY 

AFTERWARDS) 
    
LOCATION Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 
   
Welcome to the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
meeting.  Regular Board of Commissioners meetings are held on the third Wednesday of each 
month in the Ruth Rambeau Memorial Community Room at Independence Plaza. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on agenda items or business introduced by 
Commissioners may speak for a maximum of five minutes per agenda item when the subject 
is before the Board.  Please file a speaker’s slip with the Housing Authority Executive Director 
if you wish to address the Board of Commissioners. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  
 
2.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 
 

mailto:vmondo@alamedahsg.org


Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

 
3.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted 
by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is 
received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 

 
3-A.  Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Meeting held May 15, 2019 – Page 1 
3-B.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Operations/H.R./I.T. – Page 5 
3-C.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department – Page 10 
3-D.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Rent Stabilization Program – Page 13 
3-E.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations – Page 15 
3-F.  Accept Update on the Independence Plaza 504/ADA Upgrade – Page 21 
3-G. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Housing & Community Development – Page 23 
3-H.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Everett Commons – Page 25 
3-I.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for North Housing – Page 27 
3-J.  Accept the Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund Report – Page 29 
3-K.  Accept Revision to the Training and Travel Expense Procedures – Page 34 
3-L.  Accept the Budget Variance Report for March 31, 2019 – Page 41 
3-M. Authorize the Executive Director to Negotiate and Award a One-Year Contract for 

Auditing Services for the Year Ending June 30, 2019 to Citrin Cooperman & Company, 
LLP for an Amount Not to Exceed $45,000 and to Allow the Executive Director to 
Negotiate and Award Future Extensions of Time and Money Not to Exceed $200,000 
and Five Fiscal Years, Starting with the Audit of the 2018-19 Fiscal Year – Page 53 

 
4.  AGENDA 
 
4-A.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village and Approve a $2 Million 

Loan Amendment to Island City Development for Predevelopment Work at Rosefield 
Village and Authorize Executive Director to Negotiate and Execute the Loan Documents 
– Page 55 

 
4-B. Adopt the Resolution to Approve the Housing Authority’s One Year Budget for Fiscal 

Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 and the Revised Schedule of Authorized Positions – 
Page 58 

 
4-C. Accept a Presentation and Discussion on AHA’s Obligation and Options to Prefund 

Pension Liabilities and Provide Direction to Staff on Pre-funding of the Pension Liability. 
Board to Take the Following Actions: (a) Approve a Payment of Up to $538,000 to 
CalPERS by June 30, 2019 for the FY 2018-19 Required Payment; (b) Authorize the 
Executive Director or Designee to Establish a 115 Trust and to Prefund that Account in 
an Amount Up to a Maximum of $2,200,000 (the Total Unfunded Liability on a Projected 
Basis) (c) Approve the Executive Director to Make 1/12 of Those Payments in Equal 
Amounts to Allow for Dollar Cost Averaging (c) provide direction to staff on the selection 
of an amortization period of 10 years or 15 years, an investment strategy and an target 
ROR (4 or 5%) (d) Amend the FY 2019-20 Budget to Include Any Amounts Approved 
for the Establishment of the Trust (e) Select a 115 Trust from PARS or CalPERS and 
the Investment Strategy as Conservative/ Moderately Conservative or Its Equivalent – 
Page 79 



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

 
4-D. Approve a Resolution to Allow the Executive Director to Open New Collateralized Bank 

Accounts with Citibank for The John Stewart Managed Properties – Page 112 
 
5.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
6.  COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Commissioners) 
 
7.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
* * * 

 
Note 

 
•    If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Housing Authority of 

the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 747-4325  
(TTY/TRS: 711) or vmondo@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners to 
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 
• Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying at the 

Office of the Housing Authority, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal business hours.  
 

• Know Your RIGHTS Under The Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to serve the 
public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.  The Board of Commissioners 
exists to conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations are conducted before 
the people and are open for the people’s review.  In order to assist the Housing 
Authority’s efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental 
illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public 
meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical 
based products. Please help the Housing Authority accommodate these individuals. 

mailto:vmondo@alamedahsg.org


 

                                                                                                           

  

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 
HELD WEDNESDAY MAY 15, 2019 

 
The Board of Commissioners Closed Session began at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  
 

Present:   Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair McCahan, 
Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, and Commissioner Weinberg 

 
Absent:   Commissioner Hadid and Commissioner Rickard 

 
 
The Board of Commissioners meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  
 

Present:   Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair McCahan, 
Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, and Commissioner Weinberg 

 
Absent:   Commissioner Hadid and Commissioner Rickard 

 
2.  Public Comment on Closed Session 
 
  None 
 
3.  Closed Session – 6:30 p.m. – Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider: 
 
3-A.  Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Conference with Real 

Property Negotiators.  Property:  Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 74-430-1-1; Authority 
Negotiators:  Vanessa Cooper and Kathleen Mertz; Negotiating Parties:  Sam Koka and 
Michelle Koka, respectively; Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment 

 
3-B.  Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Conference with Real 

Property Negotiators.  Property:  Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 70-184-15; Authority 
Negotiators:  Vanessa Cooper and Kathleen Mertz; Negotiating Parties:  David 

Page 1

Page 1 of 116



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                 May 15, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

 
4.  Adjournment of Closed Session – 7:03 p.m. 
 
5.  RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING – 7:05 p.m. 
 
6.  Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any. 
 

Chair Tamaoki reported that the Board gave direction to staff. 
 
7.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 
 
  None 
 
8.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted 
by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is 
received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 
 

  Items accepted or adopted are indicated by an asterisk. 
 

Commissioner Kay commented on the reposting of the Deputy Executive Director and 
Director of Finance positions and asked if staff has an understanding of why AHA is not 
getting a response to the recruitments.  Ms. Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, 
explained that there is a tight job market for the Director of Finance position because 
many candidates are moving to the private market and several public agencies are 
recruiting for the same position, but AHA is moving ahead and has interviews 
scheduled. The Deputy Executive Director position has been reopened and applications 
have been received with round one interviews scheduled in the beginning of June and 
round two interviews towards the end of June. 
 
Vice Chair McCahan commented on item 8-D regarding the Boys and Girls Club and 
expressed that he wants the product to be advertised so families can take advantage of 
this excellent program.  Ms. Cooper commented that the opportunity to offer this 
program for free to families is tremendous and this year’s summer interns can market 
the program.  Chair Tamaoki reiterated the positivity towards the Boys and Girls Club 
relationship and also congratulated staff on the great job working with Habitat for 
Humanity on the North Housing project. 
 
Commissioner Kurrasch moved to accept the motion and Vice Chair McCahan 
seconded motion. The motion passed unanimously: 
 

Yes: 5 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair 
McCahan, Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, and 
Commissioner Weinberg 

Absent: 2 Commissioner Hadid and Commissioner Rickard 

Page 2

Page 2 of 116



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                 May 15, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

*8-B.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Operations/H.R./I.T. 
*8-C. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department 
*8-D. Approve Five Year Grant Agreement with the Boys and Girls Club of Alameda Effective 

July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2024 with a Total Not to Exceed Amount of $130,000 
($20,000 for the First Year, $25,000 per Year for the Subsequent Two Years and 
$30,000 per Year for the Final Two Years) 

*8-E.  Accept the Clarification Memo for the Previously Approved Payment Standard 
Decrease for the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program, and Payment Standard 
increase for Project Based Vouchers to the HCV Payment Standard effective June 2, 
2019 

*8-F.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Rent Stabilization Program 
*8-G. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations 
*8-H. Accept Update on the Independence Plaza 504/ADA Upgrade 
*8-I. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Housing & Community Development 
*8-J.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Everett Commons 
*8-K.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village 
*8-L.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for North Housing 
*8-M. Accept the Budget Variance Report for February 28, 2019 
*8-N. Accept the Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending March 31, 2019 
 
9.  AGENDA 
 
9-A. Accept Memo Regarding the Reconciliation of AAHC Property Purchase 
 
  Ms. Cooper explained that the AAHC Property Purchase is a year in and everything is 

working smoothly and the first audit has been completed.  The Board did not have any 
questions, and Ms. Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and Community Development, 
added that this memo is a technical cleanup. Commissioner Kurrasch commented that 
it is good to keep things separate. 

 
Commissioner Weinberg moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Kay seconded 
motion. The motion passed unanimously: 
 

Yes: 5 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair 
McCahan, Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, and 
Commissioner Weinberg 

Absent: 2 Commissioner Hadid and Commissioner Rickard 

 
10.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
  Mark Morales, Branch Director of the Boys and Girls Club, came before the Board and 

provided a presentation on the Club and its use by AHA. Ms. Cooper thanked Mr. 
Morales for all of the wonderful work the Boys and Girls Club does for families and 
commented on the importance of partnerships between AHA and programs such as the 
Boys and Girls Club. 

 

Page 3

Page 3 of 116



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                 May 15, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 
  Commissioner Kay asked if there has been any effort to work with the senior community 

with regards to volunteering and working with the kids.  Mr. Morales explained that flyers 
have been given to the Mastic Senior Center asking for volunteers to come work with 
the kids and when they do get volunteers, the Club allows the seniors to work in an area 
that they are comfortable with, giving the example of a past sewing class. Mr. Morales 
stated that the Boys and Girls Club is always open and will gladly take volunteers. Ms. 
Cooper commented that AHA can put flyers out at Independence Plaza and the Board 
thanked Mr. Morales for his presentation. 

 
11.  COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Commissioners) 
 

Ms. Cooper announced that nominations for the Chair and Vice Chair positions for the 
2019-2020 year will be an agenda item at the August meeting. Ms. Cooper asked that 
any nominations be given to her directly so a committee can be created if needed 
and/or a proposal can be prepared for the Board. Ms. Cooper also commented that it is 
anticipated that the July regular Board of Commissioners meeting will be canceled, but 
it is unclear if staff will have items which need to come before the Board for approval, so 
this determination will be made closer to July. 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
  There being no further business, Chair Tamaoki adjourned the meeting at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________     _______________________ 
Vanessa M. Cooper       Kenji Tamaoki, Chair 
Executive Director/Secretary     Board of Commissioners 

Page 4

Page 4 of 116













Page 10

Page 10 of 116



Page 11

Page 11 of 116



Page 12

Page 12 of 116



 

 
To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
  
From: Jennifer Kauffman, Management Analyst 
  
Date:  June 19, 2019 
  
Re: Accept the June Monthly Overview Report for the Rent Stabilization 

Program 
 

 
DATA
 
The monthly reports for the Rent Stabilization Program are available at 
www.alamedarentprogram.org. For outcomes of submissions reviewed, please see the 
full report available online. 
 

 February March April 

Rent increase submissions 5 36 22 

Termination of tenancy submissions 7 6 7 

Capital Improvement Plan submissions 0 0 1 

Number of RRAC meetings  2 1 2 

Number of cases reviewed by RRAC 
each month 4 2 6 

 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL UPDATE 

 
On May 21, 2019, the City Council introduced an Ordinance to eliminate the grounds for 
a landlord to terminate a tenancy in the private rental market for “no cause”. Adoption 
[second reading] is expected on June 4th with the effective date following on July 5, 
2019. 
 
Additional amendments to the Rent Stabilization Ordinance are anticipated to be 
reviewed by the City Council on July 2, 2019. 
 

Page 13

Page 13 of 116

http://www.alamedarentprogram.org/


Honorable Chair and                                                                                   June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                       Page 2 of 2 
 

                                                                                                           

ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 

 
The Rent Stabilization Program conducts all business meetings and client relations at 
the main 701 Atlantic Avenue location. However, staff use an off-site office for daily 
activities. Staff has signed an extension to continue the lease at the off-site location for 
an additional 12-month term, which extends the lease through September 2020 at 
$5,829 monthly rate for the year.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Rent Stabilization Program. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Jennifer Kauffman 
Management Analyst 
Rent Stabilization Program 

Page 14

Page 14 of 116



 

                                                                                                           

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From:       Lisa Caldwell, Director of Property Operations  

 
Date: June 19, 2019 
 
Re:       Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations 
 
BACKGROUND 
  
This memo provides a high-level overview of the Property Operations Department’s 
activities for the month of May 2019.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
VACANCY – May               
 
Lease up coordination between the Property Management Department and the Housing 
Programs Department is ongoing in order to fill vacancies as soon as possible. Three 
applicants are processed at a time for each vacancy in order to fill vacancies as quickly 
as possible.      
   

Property 
Unit 

# 

Vacancies 
End of           

May 

Notice to 
Vacate 

Pending 

Lease 
Pending  

Rate  

Anne B. Diament Plaza 65 0 0 0 0% 
China Clipper Plaza 26 3 0 1 12% 
Esperanza  120 4 0 2 3% 
Independence Plaza  186 7 7% 
Parrot Village 50 2 0 2 4% 
Combined Smaller Sites * 41 4 0 1 10% 

Total  488 26 3 13 5% 
 
*Lincoln House (4), Lincoln/Willow (5), Parrot Gardens (8), Senior Condos (7), Sherman 
Street (9), Stanford House (4), Paru Street (1) and Mulberry Townhomes (3).  
   
The total unit count above includes the five (5) manager units located at Anne B. Diament 
Plaza, Esperanza, Parrot Village, Independence Plaza, and China Clipper.  
 
 
 

Page 15

Page 15 of 116



Honorable Chair and  June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 2 of 6 
 

 

                                                                                                           

 
At the end of May, there were thirteen (13) vacant units at Independence Plaza due to 
the 504/ADA upgrade rehabilitation work; these units are included in the vacancy 
numbers listed above. The first phase of this unit rehabilitation was completed in 
December and six (6) units were released for lease up and all of those units have been 
leased. The second phase of the ADA rehabilitation which included seven (7) units was 
released for leasing in March. All the units from the second phase have been leased.  A 
further seven (7) units were released on May 30, 2019. Of these, two (2) have been 
preleased.  
 
To ensure all vacancies are filled promptly staff is actively assisting transfers for senior 
disabled tenants in other properties and has outreached the waitlist. The waitlist for 
residents up to 80% AMI has now be exhausted. All AHA managed units without a Project 
Based Voucher (PBV) contract are listed on our website and posted in our lobby. 
Independence Plaza vacant units are now advertised via our website and posted in the 
lobby since the waitlist has been exhausted and we do not have plans at this time to re-
open as it is not required. By advertising the units this way, it allows us to obtain applicants 
that meet the income requirements for Independence Plaza.  Per prior Board action, the 
rents for new tenants at Independence Plaza will be $1,308 (1 bedroom) and $1,569 (two 
bedroom). Existing Independence Plaza tenants can transfer into the ADA units at their 
current rents if the bedroom count stays the same. 
 
Also included in the vacancy numbers listed above are two (2) units at Sherman Street 
that have been taken offline in order to address ongoing plumbing issues between the 
two units. These two (2) units are included in the combined smaller sites. 
 
Staff continues to identify upcoming units in the AHA portfolio to be offered to current 
qualified Rosefield Village tenants in order to assist in providing housing within Alameda. 
As of May AHA has housed eight (8) tenants from Rosefield within our portfolio; with three 
(3) more moves scheduled in June.   
 
RENT COLLECTIONS – May         
  
The collection rate was below 98% for Anne B. Diament, China Clipper and Independence 
Plaza.   The rate was below 98% for Anne B. Diament due to two legal actions currently 
in process. The rate was below 98% for China Clipper due to three (3) vacancies at the 
property. The rate was below 98% for Independence Plaza due to the thirteen (13) 
vacancies due to the rehabilitation project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

Page 16 of 116



Honorable Chair and  June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 3 of 6 
 

     

Property ABD China 
Clipper ESP IP  Parrot 

Village 

*All 
Other 
Sites 

Total  

        Tenant Rent 
Only       

Budgeted 
GPR $87,406 $35,096 $289,988 $145,222 $128,668 $59,980 $746,360 

Collected $84,278 $33,415 $309,212 $126,223 $128,155 $61,012 $742,296 

Collection 
Rate 96% 95% 107% 87% 100% 102% 99% 

 
*Lincoln House (4), Lincoln/Willow (5), Parrot Gardens (8), Senior Condos (7), Sherman 
Street (9), Stanford House (4), Paru Street (1) and Mulberry Townhomes (3). 
 
Property Management staff continues to work with Attorney Bill Ford on terminations of 
tenancy for non-payment of rent. Non-payers are sent monthly to Mr. Ford mid-month, in 
order to assist with collecting payment on their debts in full and/or entering into a signed 
payment plan. All households subject to termination are referred to our social services 
provider, LifeSTEPS, for assistance including budgeting and obtaining rental assistance.  
Where tenant households are also Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) holders, the 
Section 8 staff have also conducted mandatory in person case management conferences 
to remind participants of their obligations under the HCV Program. 
 
THIRD PARTY MANAGED SITES – The John Stewart Company (JSCO) 
 
VACANCY – May  
 

Property Unit # 
Vacancies End of 

May 
Rate 

Rosefield Village 53 25 48% 
Eagle Village  36 1 3% 
Littlejohn Commons 31 0 0% 
Everett Commons 20 0 0% 

 
At the end of May, twenty five (25) units at Rosefield were permanently offline due to the 
upcoming reconstruction and rehabilitation of the property. One of these units will be used 
as a manager’s unit. As vacancies become available at other AHA owned sites, residents 
currently at Rosefield are offered these vacant units, where eligible, in order to 
accommodate as many current residents that want to remain housed in Alameda. The 
Relocation Plan and General Information and Non Displacement Notice (GIN) has been 
issued for the remaining tenants describing the need to move prior to the rehabilitation.  

Page 17

Page 17 of 116



Honorable Chair and  June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 4 of 6 
 

 
RENT COLLECTION –April       
 
The financial reporting for properties managed by The John Stewart Company (JSCO) is 
one month behind AHA managed sites due to JSCO providing financial packets in the 
middle of each month for the prior month.  
 

GPR - Budget vs. Collected   
 

Property Rosefield Littlejohn 
Commons 

Eagle 
Village  

Everett 
Commons Total  

Budgeted GPR $82,137 $47,737 $77,380 $39,357 $246,611 

Collected $48,999 $47,646  
$82,684 

 
$39,351 $218,680 

Collection Rate 60% 100% 107% 100% 89% 

 
 
RENT INCREASES 
 
Rent increases for 2019 continue to go out monthly. On January 1, 2019, the Project 
Based Voucher PBV payment standard for all properties (with the exception of 
Independence Plaza) was put in place for 2019 rent increases. Effective June 2, 2019 
there was a change and instead of using two separate payment standards for Housing 
Choice Vouchers (HCV) and Project Based Vouchers (PBV) AHA decided to return to 
one payment standard for both programs. This change was Board approved in the May 
15, 2019 board meeting. These new amounts will be used for all rent increases issued 
after June 2, 2019.  The increase should not affect the tenant’s portion unless the 
household is residing in an unassisted unit (which often is a result of being over income 
for assistance) or are over housed (i.e. have an extra bedroom outside of their approved 
voucher size). All those who are over housed and have a tenant based voucher and have 
already or will be offered an opportunity to move to the correct sized unit when available, 
provided they are in good standing with AHA. The rent increase notices are provided 60 
days prior to the effective date of the increase.  
 
The John Stewart Company issued rent increase notices for Rosefield Village and Eagle 
Village. These increases used the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) payment standard and 
are effective June 1, 2019. The increase should not affect the tenant’s portion unless the 
household is residing in an unassisted unit (which often is a result of being over income 
for assistance) or are over housed (i.e. have an extra bedroom outside of their approved 
voucher size).  
 
 

Page 18

Page 18 of 116



Honorable Chair and  June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners  Page 5 of 6 
 

 
MAINTENANCE 
 
The annual HQS inspections for FY 2018-2019 have been completed for all AHA 
managed sites.  HQS inspections for Independence Plaza were completed in May with a 
74% pass rate. Staff is working on corrections needed to ensure the remaining units pass 
HQS within 30 days of the initial inspections.  All other AHA managed sites have passed 
the annual HQS inspection.   
 
The maintenance staff has also been busy preparing vacant units for leasing, handling 
daily routine maintenance requests, and performing emergency work orders as needed.  
 
The work order report below shows the work orders completed calendar year to date. 
 

Work Order Month - 2019 

Property 
Unit 

# 
May 
2019 

April 
2019 

March 
2019 

February 
2019 

January 
2019 

Total 

AHA Office N/A 16 9 12 11 18 66 
Anne B. Diament 65 14 13 14 12 19 72 
China Clipper Plaza 26 8 12 9 6 24 59 
Esperanza 120 36 30 51 72 115 304 
Independence Plaza 186 133 186 65 58 45 487 
Lincoln House 4 2 4 2 3 1 12 
Lincoln Willow 
Apartments 5 1 1 3 3 4 12 

Parrot Gardens  8 1 0 2 6 2 11 
Parrot Village 50 17 27 28 22 22 116 
Senior Condos 7 0 0 4 1 2 7 
Sherman Street  9 0 4 5 6 3 18 
Stanford House 4 0 1 0 0 1 2 
Detached Homes 4 0 1 0 1 0 2 

Total 488 228 288 195 201 256 1,168 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

Page 19 of 116



















vmondo
Typewritten Text











Page 33

Page 33 of 116

vmondo
Typewritten Text



Page 34

Page 34 of 116



Page 35

Page 35 of 116



 
Training and Travel Procedures  March 16, 2016June 19, 2019 

REIMBURSEMENT OF AHA-RELATED TRAINING AND TRAVEL EXPENSES 
 

 
Purpose 
 
To establish and define authorized business travel, training, and membership expenses 
incurred associated with conducting AHA-related business and to specify the 
procedures for reimbursement of officials and employees for their actual mileage, 
transportation, lodging, meals and other related expenses while attending conferences, 
training sessions, meeting, and other official AHA business. 
 
These procedures cover Employees and Board Members who travel at AHA’s expense. 
 
Reimbursable Expenses 
 
1. Registration Fees  

 
a. AHA will seek to budget annually for, and to provide appropriate training and 

professional development opportunities for its staff, within the limitations of its 
annual operating budget. Each year as part of the budget process each Director 
and supervisor is required to submit a training plan for their team/staff, detailing the 
proposed training, estimated costs and the proposed attendance.  
 

b. AHA will pay or reimburse in full for such registration fees as may be required for 
attendance at required or authorized conferences and meetings providing there 
are funds available for such an activity.   
 

c. All training requests must be submitted in advance using the Training, Travel and 
Hotel Request Form. Once completed by the employee, this form is signed by the 
supervisor and then submitted to the Executive Director for approval. It is the 
supervisor’s responsibility to review the budget prior to submission and 
communicate in the request whether or not this is a previously budgeted request. If 
the request is not budgeted, the supervisor should provide a rationale for approval 
of the request. 
 

d. Where possible, training will be held on site or scheduled at a location where 
overnight costs do not need to be incurred.   
 

e. Training which is incorporated as part of an accepted job offer will be honored 
even though it may not have been budgeted for in advance. HR is responsible for 
budgeting (where possible) and arranging for that training, as well as mandatory 
training for all staff on fair housing, sexual harassment etc. and other agency-wide 
trainings that may be provided throughout the year.  
 

f. When a test is included with a training program, employees generally will be 
expected to take and pass any test associated with approved training. If they do 
not pass, a second opportunity to take the test (not necessarily to re-take the 
class) will be provided within 6 months or as soon as possible. Generally, the 

Page 36

Page 36 of 116



REIMBURSEMENT OF TRAVEL EXPENSES 
 

 
Training and Travel Procedures March 16, 2016June 19, 2019 

agency will not provide financial and/or time support for any additional tests or 
classes beyond two attempts of the same exam. 
 

2. Transportation 
 

a. Employees are expected to exercise good judgment and choose the most 
economical, feasible means of transportation. 

 
b. Use of AHA vehicles for travel in connection with official AHA business will be 

encouraged whenever practical.  (Note:  Spouses accompanying an employee to 
a conference may not ride in an AHA vehicle.) 

 
c. Use of private, personal aircraft on AHA business is prohibited. 
 
d. An employee using a personal car for approved AHA business will be 

reimbursed at the current IRS rate.  This rate per mile incorporates all costs 
incurred while operating such vehicles including gasoline, depreciation, 
insurance, and other incidental items; no other expenses may be claimed with 
the exceptions of parking and toll charges as described below. 

 
e. Mileage will not be paid for the portion equal to the employee’s regular commuting 

mileage to and from home. Commuting mileage is mileage from the employee’s 
home to the AHA office and vice versa. For example: 

 
  Total travel mileage incurred 100 miles 
  Commute to work 20 miles x 2 - 40 miles 
  Reimbursable mileage 60 miles 
 
f. Reasonable and necessary expenditures will be allowed for parking and toll 

charges while incurred in connection with official business-related travel.  
 
g. Air transportation expenses will be reimbursed at the economy class fare.  

Employees should plan ahead so that airline reservations can be made early 
enough to take advantage of lower airfares.   
 

h. If an employee elects to travel by personal car when it would be less expensive to 
travel by air or rail, the maximum allowance for mileage reimbursement will be the 
least expensive of the three forms of transportation. 

 
i. Expenses for ground transportation (airport limousine, bus, taxi, rideshare, airport 

shuttle) will be reimbursed if incurred as a necessary part of the officially approved 
travel. 
 

j. Employees are encouraged to explore available ground transportation options prior 
to renting a car and utilize the most economical option; if two or more employees 
are attending the same conference and a rental car is obtained, it is expected that 

Page 37

Page 37 of 116



REIMBURSEMENT OF TRAVEL EXPENSES 
 

 
k. When two or more employees attend a local conference or training, they will 

generally be expected to carpool using an agency vehicle where feasible. Where 
the employee decides not to carpool (and carpooling is feasible), AHA will not be 
responsible for those additional costs.  

 
3. Lodging 
 

a. Expenditures for lodging will be allowed when the situation necessitates the 
employee staying overnight.  When a choice of feasible hotels is available, 
employees should reserve at a lower cost option and request a government or 
other discounted rate. Hotel and motel accommodations should be appropriate 
for the purpose of the trip and are reimbursable on the basis of actual 
expenditures.  Fees for hotels should generally be within the accepted per diem 
rate for the city/area travelled to. Current per diem rate information can be 
accessed on the US General Services Administration website: 
http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/100120. 
 

b. In the event there is an additional cost for a spouse or other non-AHA employee 
sharing the same room, then that cost is to be borne by the employee. 

 
c. In the event AHA is to be billed for the hotel or motel room, charges for incidental 

expenses (i.e., telephone calls of personal nature, room service, alcoholic 
beverage charges, etc.) are to be cleared from the bill at the time of departure. 

 
d. Other lodging-related expenses, such as parking fees, telephone, or fax or other 

business center services, when required in connection with official AHA 
business, will be reimbursed on the basis of actual expenditures. 
 

4.    Incidental Expenses   
 

a. Reasonable incidental expenses, such as tips, will be reimbursed on the basis of 
actual expenditures up to $5.00 per day. Receipts are not required for 
reimbursement. 

 
5.    Meals   
   

a. Generally, employees are responsible for providing their own meals.  When 
reimbursement is allowed, the cost of meals will be reimbursed based on either 
the per diem (if the employee stays overnight at AHA’s cost) or actual costs per 
meal (for trips with no overnight stay) up to the GSA maximum allowed for each 
meal. Meals may be purchased and reimbursed only when conducting AHA 
business including:  
 

i.   When attending approved out-of-city conferences and trainings 

Page 38

Page 38 of 116

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/100120


REIMBURSEMENT OF TRAVEL EXPENSES 
 

ii. When directed to attend an approved AHA activity which requires an    
absence from an AHA place of work for more than 4 hours and does not 
include a meal 
 

b. Meal reimbursement may include tips, but may not include alcoholic beverages. 
 

c. Reimbursement for meals also will follow the following criteria: 
 

i.      If not gone over night, actual costs and receipts for such expenditures are 
required.  If it is not practical to provide receipts, state the reason when 
submitting the expense. Any meal purchases submitted must be within the 
individual meal limit amounts described below. 

 
ii.     If gone over night at AHA’s request, a daily per diem amount (tax and tip 

included) may be used. The per diem is the maximum amount that may be 
submitted for meals on a daily basis, and no receipts are required when 
using the per diem.  If requesting reimbursement for a partial day, before or 
after an overnight, then only the per meal per diem amount will be available 
using the maximum allowable amount for each meal. 

 
iii.     The per diem for meals is based on the GSA per diem limits, currently 

$61.004 per day (tax and tip included). When the daily per diem is claimed 
and some meals are included in the registration, deductions should be 
made for any meal included using the following maximum allowable amount 
for each meal: 
 
Breakfast $16.00   
Lunch   $17.00   
Dinner  $2831.00  
 

d.   The above limits should also generally be used when an employee is hosting an 
approved AHA activity, such as a training or meeting, or event for which a meal 
will be provided.  

 
5. Reimbursement Procedure 
 
 a. A Travel Expense Report must be prepared by the person claiming the 

expenditures, approved by the supervisor or Executive Director, and submitted 
promptly to the Finance Department. All expenses must be submitted no later than 
60 days following the date(s) the expenses were incurred. If expenses are 
submitted after the 60 day time period, or submitted without proper receipts, the 
reimbursement is treated as wages and is subject to income and Medicare taxes. 

 
 

i.      Receipts are required in for all expenditures for transportation tickets, hotel 

Page 39

Page 39 of 116



REIMBURSEMENT OF TRAVEL EXPENSES 
 

 
ii.      In the event that a receipt is missing, the employee must complete a 

Missing Receipts form, explaining why the receipt is missing.  
 
 
6. Cash Advances  
 
 Cash advances for travel and other expenses in excess of $100 will need to be 

submitted to the Department Director for approval and forwarded to Finance for 
processing at least two weeks in advance.   Employees requesting such cash 
advance must submit a “Claim Form” and immediately upon return must file a full 
accounting of expenses. Any amount paid as a travel advance that is in excess of 
actual expenses incurred must be returned to AHA within 120 days after the expenses 
were incurred. 

 
7. Authorization for Travel 
 
 a. Travel within the greater Bay Area, by any mode of transportation, must be 

authorized by the employee’s immediate supervisor. 
 
 b. Travel within CA but outside the greater Bay Area, by any mode of transportation, 

must be authorized by the Department Director or his/her designee. The Executive 
Director must approve any overnight travel. 

 
c. Out of State travel must be authorized by the Board of Directors and the Executive 

Director. 
 
8. Effective Date   
 
 The effective date of this procedure is June 19, 2019March 16, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40

Page 40 of 116

vmondo
Typewritten Text



Page 41

Page 41 of 116



Page 42

Page 42 of 116



Page 43

Page 43 of 116



6
/4

/2
0

1
9

 1
2

:3
0

 P
M

 M
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l

 M
T

D
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 %
 V

a
r

 P
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 %
 V

a
r

6
9
9
9
9
9
0

IN
C

O
M

E

7
0
0
0
0
0
0

R
E

V
E

N
U

E

7
0
2
0
0
0
0

T
E

N
A

N
T

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E

7
0
2
0
1
1
0

V
ac

an
cy

 L
o

ss
0
.0

0
-6

5
,1

1
5
.9

5
6
5
,1

1
5
.9

5
1
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
-5

8
6
,0

4
3
.5

5
5
8
6
,0

4
3
.5

5
1
0
0
.0

0

7
0
2
0
1
3
0

W
ri

te
 O

ff
0
.0

0
-7

,4
4
7
.4

3
7
,4

4
7
.4

3
1
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
-6

7
,0

2
6
.8

7
6
7
,0

2
6
.8

7
1
0
0
.0

0

7
0
3
0
0
0
0

T
en

an
t 

R
en

ta
l 
R

ev
en

u
e

2
6
2
,4

1
6
.5

6
3
1
4
,6

1
8
.4

2
-5

2
,2

0
1
.8

6
-1

6
.5

9
2
,6

3
9
,2

3
0
.9

2
2
,8

3
1
,5

6
5
.7

8
-1

9
2
,3

3
4
.8

6
-6

.7
9

7
0
3
0
0
3
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

h
ar

ge
s

5
,2

2
7
.0

0
1
,0

5
6
.2

5
4
,1

7
0
.7

5
3
9
4
.8

6
1
2
,7

5
6
.0

8
9
,5

0
6
.2

5
3
,2

4
9
.8

3
3
4
.1

9

7
0
3
0
0
4
0

L
at

e 
C

h
ar

ge
s

4
5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
5
0
.0

0
N

/
A

3
,8

6
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,8

6
8
.0

0
N

/
A

7
0
3
0
0
5
0

M
is

ce
lla

n
eo

u
s 

O
th

er
 C

h
ar

ge
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

3
6
,6

3
6
.9

5
0
.0

0
3
6
,6

3
6
.9

5
N

/
A

7
0
3
0
0
6
0

T
ax

 I
n

cr
em

en
t 

P
ay

m
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

A
la

m
ed

a
1
4
4
,4

4
5
.4

2
1
4
4
,4

4
5
.4

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,3

0
5
,8

2
8
.1

7
1
,3

0
0
,0

0
8
.7

8
5
,8

1
9
.3

9
0
.4

5

7
0
3
0
1
0
0

T
en

an
t 

H
A

P
 S

u
b

si
d

y
4
4
7
,6

2
7
.7

7
5
2
4
,3

8
7
.2

2
-7

6
,7

5
9
.4

5
-1

4
.6

4
4
,2

0
0
,0

8
8
.7

7
4
,7

1
9
,4

8
4
.9

8
-5

1
9
,3

9
6
.2

1
-1

1
.0

1

7
0
3
0
1
1
0

V
ac

an
cy

 L
o

ss
0
.0

0
-3

9
8
.1

7
3
9
8
.1

7
1
0
0
.0

0
-6

8
,6

4
4
.0

0
-3

,5
8
3
.5

3
-6

5
,0

6
0
.4

7
-1

,8
1
5
.5

4

7
0
3
0
3
0
0

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 R

en
ts

1
1
,3

3
4
.7

7
2
,3

2
5
.8

9
9
,0

0
8
.8

8
3
8
7
.3

3
2
2
,7

5
3
.7

7
2
0
,9

3
3
.0

1
1
,8

2
0
.7

6
8
.7

0

7
0
5
0
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 T

E
N

A
N

T
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
7
1
,5

0
1
.5

2
9
1
3
,8

7
1
.6

5
-4

2
,3

7
0
.1

3
-4

.6
4

8
,1

5
2
,5

1
8
.6

6
8
,2

2
4
,8

4
4
.8

5
-7

2
,3

2
6
.1

9
-0

.8
8

7
0
6
0
0
0
0

F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 G

R
A

N
T

S

7
0
6
0
0
6
0

S
h

el
te

r 
P

lu
s 

C
ar

e 
R

ev
en

u
e

2
8
,5

8
9
.7

3
3
1
,2

1
5
.2

5
-2

,6
2
5
.5

2
-8

.4
1

2
5
7
,7

8
2
.8

6
2
8
0
,9

3
7
.2

5
-2

3
,1

5
4
.3

9
-8

.2
4

7
0
6
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 F

E
D

E
R

A
L

 G
R

A
N

T
S

2
8
,5

8
9
.7

3
3
1
,2

1
5
.2

5
-2

,6
2
5
.5

2
-8

.4
1

2
5
7
,7

8
2
.8

6
2
8
0
,9

3
7
.2

5
-2

3
,1

5
4
.3

9
-8

.2
4

7
10

0
0
0
0

O
T

H
E

R
 I

N
C

O
M

E

7
1
1
0
0
1
0

In
v
es

tm
en

t 
In

co
m

e 
- 

U
n

re
st

ri
ct

ed
0
.0

0
6
3
3
.7

3
-6

3
3
.7

3
-1

0
0
.0

0
1
2
2
,2

5
7
.0

7
5
,7

0
3
.5

7
1
1
6
,5

5
3
.5

0
2
,0

4
3
.5

2

7
1
1
0
0
1
1

In
te

re
st

 I
n

co
m

e
2
6
,3

8
3
.0

6
4
,1

8
7
.0

2
2
2
,1

9
6
.0

4
5
3
0
.1

2
2
0
2
,5

0
7
.8

6
3
7
,6

8
3
.1

8
1
6
4
,8

2
4
.6

8
4
3
7
.4

0

7
1
1
0
0
1
3

C
o

u
p

o
n

/
In

te
re

st
/

D
iv

id
en

d
 I

n
co

m
e

0
.0

0
4
0
.9

2
-4

0
.9

2
-1

0
0
.0

0
-2

3
.2

3
3
6
8
.2

8
-3

9
1
.5

1
-1

0
6
.3

1

7
1
1
0
0
2
0

In
te

re
st

 o
n

 E
q
u
ip

. 
R

es
er

v
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

1
5
,6

3
4
.5

1
0
.0

0
1
5
,6

3
4
.5

1
N

/
A

7
1
1
0
0
5
0

In
v
es

tm
en

t 
In

co
m

e-
 R

es
tr

ic
te

d
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

-5
9
2
.7

8
0
.0

0
-5

9
2
.7

8
N

/
A

7
1
1
0
0
6
0

In
te

re
st

 -
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

R
es

er
v
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

1
6
,7

8
1
.8

3
0
.0

0
1
6
,7

8
1
.8

3
N

/
A

7
1
1
0
0
7
0

O
th

er
 -

 I
n

co
m

e
-2

,1
0
1
.9

2
0
.0

0
-2

,1
0
1
.9

2
N

/
A

2
8
8
,0

9
3
.1

2
0
.0

0
2
8
8
,0

9
3
.1

2
N

/
A

7
1
1
0
0
7
5

L
au

n
d

ry
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
2
,1

4
0
.0

9
2
,2

8
8
.9

1
-1

4
8
.8

2
-6

.5
0

1
6
,4

0
4
.2

6
2
0
,6

0
0
.1

9
-4

,1
9
5
.9

3
-2

0
.3

7

7
1
1
0
0
8
2

L
an

d
 F

ee
/

G
ro

u
n

d
 L

ea
se

4
4
6
.9

9
8
9
4
.0

0
7
,4

4
6
.1

7
8
,0

4
6
.0

0
-5

9
9
.8

3
-7

.4
6

7
1
1
0
0
9
0

O
th

er
 M

is
ce

lla
n

eo
u
s 

R
ev

en
u
e

0
.0

0
3
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
-3

2
,5

0
0
.0

0
-1

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,2

0
0
.0

0
2
9
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
-2

7
4
,3

0
0
.0

0
-9

3
.7

8

7
1
1
0
0
9
2

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
v
ic

e 
R

ev
en

u
e

4
6
,7

8
7
.9

7
6
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
-1

4
,2

1
2
.0

3
-2

3
.3

0
3
8
9
,4

7
9
.0

8
5
4
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
-1

5
9
,5

2
0
.9

2
-2

9
.0

6

7
1
5
0
0
3
0

M
is

ce
lla

n
eo

u
s 

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

u
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

1
,3

2
3
.5

4
0
.0

0
1
,3

2
3
.5

4
N

/
A

7
1
5
0
0
7
0

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
F

ee
3
7
6
.5

6
1
,0

9
4
.0

0
-7

1
7
.4

4
-6

5
.5

8
3
,2

1
5
.0

6
9
,8

4
6
.0

0
-6

,6
3
0
.9

4
-6

7
.3

5

7
1
5
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 I
N

C
O

M
E

7
4
,0

3
2
.7

5
1
0
2
,6

3
8
.5

8
-2

8
,6

0
5
.8

3
-2

7
.8

7
1
,0

8
0
,7

2
6
.4

9
9
2
3
,7

4
7
.2

2
1
5
6
,9

7
9
.2

7
1
6
.9

9

8
0
0
0
0
0
0

H
U

D
 G

R
A

N
T

8
0
1
0
0
0
0

H
U

D
 O

p
er

at
in

g 
G

ra
n

ts
2
,5

3
8
,8

6
0
.0

0
2
,5

4
0
,1

5
3
.1

6
-1

,2
9
3
.1

6
-0

.0
5

2
2
,4

2
4
,4

5
5
.4

1
2
2
,8

6
1
,3

7
8
.4

4
-4

3
6
,9

2
3
.0

3
-1

.9
1

8
0
2
0
0
0
0

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
F

ee
s 

fr
o

m
 H

U
D

1
3
7
,7

8
3
.0

0
1
3
5
,1

4
1
.6

8
2
,6

4
1
.3

2
1
.9

5
1
,2

7
3
,9

3
3
.0

0
1
,2

1
6
,2

7
5
.1

2
5
7
,6

5
7
.8

8
4
.7

4

8
0
2
0
1
1
0

P
O

R
T

-I
n

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
F

ee
s

2
,5

0
9
.9

5
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
9
.9

5
N

/
A

2
2
,3

2
1
.0

5
0
.0

0
2
2
,3

2
1
.0

5
N

/
A

8
0
3
0
0
0
0

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
F

ee
s 

P
ai

d
 (

P
O

R
T

-O
u
ts

)
5
,8

4
9
.2

4
0
.0

0
-5

,8
4
9
.2

4
N

/
A

5
2
,8

2
0
.0

4
0
.0

0
-5

2
,8

2
0
.0

4
N

/
A

8
1
0
0
1
2
0

T
O

T
A

L
 H

U
D

 G
R

A
N

T
2
,6

7
3
,3

0
3
.7

1
2
,6

7
5
,2

9
4
.8

4
-1

,9
9
1
.1

3
-0

.0
7

2
3
,6

6
7
,8

8
9
.4

2
2
4
,0

7
7
,6

5
3
.5

6
-4

0
9
,7

6
4
.1

4
-1

.7
0

8
9
9
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

3
,6

4
7
,4

2
7
.7

1
3
,7

2
3
,0

2
0
.3

2
-7

5
,5

9
2
.6

1
-2

.0
3

3
3
,1

5
8
,9

1
7
.4

3
3
3
,5

0
7
,1

8
2
.8

8
-3

4
8
,2

6
5
.4

5
-1

.0
4

9
0
0
0
0
0
0

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

9
0
0
0
9
0
0

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
S
E

S

9
1
0
0
0
0
0

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E

9
1
1
0
0
1
0

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
S
al

ar
ie

s
2
1
4
,3

0
2
.1

2
3
0
0
,7

4
1
.1

0
8
6
,4

3
8
.9

8
2
8
.7

4
2
,0

4
1
,7

7
8
.0

7
2
,7

0
6
,6

6
9
.9

0
6
6
4
,8

9
1
.8

3
2
4
.5

6

9
1
1
0
0
2
0

T
em

p
o

ra
ry

 H
el

p
 -

  
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

1
9
,2

2
1
.3

2
1
9
,8

8
8
.1

9
6
6
6
.8

7
3
.3

5
1
7
8
,5

6
7
.9

2
1
7
8
,9

9
3
.7

1
4
2
5
.7

9
0
.2

4

9
1
2
0
0
0
0

A
u
d

it
in

g 
F

ee
s

0
.0

0
3
,5

2
6
.9

9
3
,5

2
6
.9

9
1
0
0
.0

0
2
2
,2

5
4
.0

0
3
1
,7

4
2
.9

1
9
,4

8
8
.9

1
2
9
.8

9

9
1
3
0
0
0
0

O
u
ts

id
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

F
ee

s
0
.0

0
3
,3

7
8
.6

7
3
,3

7
8
.6

7
1
0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

6
2
.0

0
3
0
,4

0
8
.0

3
2
0
,3

4
6
.0

3
6
6
.9

1

9
1
5
0
0
1
0

A
d

m
in

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
- 

 M
ed

ic
al

/
D

en
ta

l
4
5
,9

7
1
.2

5
5
2
,0

8
3
.9

9
6
,1

1
2
.7

4
1
1
.7

4
4
2
3
,0

7
0
.7

2
4
6
8
,7

5
5
.9

1
4
5
,6

8
5
.1

9
9
.7

5

9
1
5
0
0
2
0

A
d

m
in

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

  
P

E
R

S
/

P
A

R
S

1
8
,0

2
3
.9

4
2
5
,2

7
6
.7

7
7
,2

5
2
.8

3
2
8
.6

9
1
7
9
,3

5
9
.1

6
2
2
7
,4

9
0
.9

3
4
8
,1

3
1
.7

7
2
1
.1

6

9
1
5
0
0
3
0

A
d

m
in

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
- 

 F
IC

A
3
,0

8
7
.8

2
4
,2

6
7
.3

8
1
,1

7
9
.5

6
2
7
.6

4
3
0
,7

8
4
.4

4
3
8
,4

0
6
.4

2
7
,6

2
1
.9

8
1
9
.8

5

9
1
5
0
0
4
0

A
d

m
in

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

  
S
U

I
4
4
3
.3

3
4
1
6
.2

3
-2

7
.1

0
-6

.5
1

1
2
,0

9
7
.3

0
9
,3

8
2
.4

7
-2

,7
1
4
.8

3
-2

8
.9

4

9
1
5
0
0
5
0

A
d

m
in

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

  
E

A
P

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

0
.8

8
0
.0

0
-0

.8
8

N
/
A

9
1
5
0
0
6
0

A
d

m
in

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
- 

L
if

e/
L

T
D

1
,4

4
0
.5

4
1
,8

8
5
.1

8
4
4
4
.6

4
2
3
.5

9
1
5
,4

2
0
.4

4
1
6
,9

6
6
.6

2
1
,5

4
6
.1

8
9
.1

1

B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

 (
w

it
h

 P
T

D
)

P
er

io
d

 =
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
8
-M

ar
 2

0
1
9

B
o

o
k
 =

 A
cc

ru
al

 P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
4

Page 44

Page 44 of 116



6
/4

/2
0

1
9

 1
2

:3
0

 P
M

 M
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l

 M
T

D
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 %
 V

a
r

 P
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 %
 V

a
r

B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

 (
w

it
h

 P
T

D
)

P
er

io
d

 =
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
8
-M

ar
 2

0
1
9

B
o

o
k
 =

 A
cc

ru
al

9
1
5
0
0
9
0

A
d

m
in

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

  
- 

W
C

2
,7

9
6
.9

7
1
,4

4
5
.1

8
-1

,3
5
1
.7

9
-9

3
.5

4
1
7
,9

1
0
.5

8
1
3
,0

0
6
.6

2
-4

,9
0
3
.9

6
-3

7
.7

0

9
1
6
0
0
1
0

O
ff

ic
e 

S
u
p

p
lie

s/
E

q
u
ip

m
en

t
3
,8

2
5
.8

2
5
,4

3
0
.2

5
1
,6

0
4
.4

3
2
9
.5

5
2
8
,8

6
2
.9

1
4
8
,8

7
2
.2

5
2
0
,0

0
9
.3

4
4
0
.9

4

9
1
6
0
0
3
0

D
u
es

 &
 S

u
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

s 
P

u
b

lic
at

io
n

s
2
5
.3

6
0
.0

0
-2

5
.3

6
N

/
A

2
,4

9
7
.3

4
0
.0

0
-2

,4
9
7
.3

4
N

/
A

9
1
6
0
0
4
0

P
o

st
ag

e
3
,7

4
9
.6

7
1
,9

0
3
.7

1
-1

,8
4
5
.9

6
-9

6
.9

7
1
1
,9

6
6
.3

8
1
7
,1

3
3
.3

9
5
,1

6
7
.0

1
3
0
.1

6

9
1
6
0
0
5
0

T
el

ep
h

o
n

e
5
,5

3
3
.9

9
4
,6

2
7
.4

6
-9

0
6
.5

3
-1

9
.5

9
3
5
,3

0
2
.3

1
4
1
,6

4
7
.1

4
6
,3

4
4
.8

3
1
5
.2

3

9
1
6
0
0
6
0

B
an

k
 C

h
ar

ge
s 

an
d

 C
h

ec
k
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
4
,2

8
4
.4

8
2
,4

8
0
.5

0
-1

,8
0
3
.9

8
-7

2
.7

3
1
8
,8

0
7
.4

8
2
2
,3

2
4
.5

0
3
,5

1
7
.0

2
1
5
.7

5

9
1
6
0
0
9
0

F
o

rm
s 

an
d

 C
o

p
ie

s/
P

ri
n

ti
n

g
2
,0

5
8
.1

5
0
.0

0
-2

,0
5
8
.1

5
N

/
A

1
2
,2

0
5
.8

3
0
.0

0
-1

2
,2

0
5
.8

3
N

/
A

9
1
6
0
1
0
0

C
la

ss
if

ie
d

 A
d

s 
an

d
 P

u
b

lic
 N

o
ti

ce
s/

o
u
tr

ea
ch

 m
at

er
ia

l
2
,0

7
8
.5

5
2
,1

3
4
.1

6
5
5
.6

1
2
.6

1
2
9
,4

0
4
.7

2
1
9
,2

0
7
.4

4
-1

0
,1

9
7
.2

8
-5

3
.0

9

9
1
6
0
1
1
0

L
eg

al
 E

xp
en

se
1
0
,9

9
4
.6

7
1
7
,1

9
7
.0

1
6
,2

0
2
.3

4
3
6
.0

7
1
4
7
,8

6
0
.3

0
1
5
4
,7

7
3
.0

9
6
,9

1
2
.7

9
4
.4

7

9
1
6
0
1
1
1

P
ay

ro
ll 

ch
ar

ge
2
6
0
.1

6
6
2
2
.5

9
3
6
2
.4

3
5
8
.2

1
4
,2

9
9
.1

1
5
,6

0
3
.3

1
1
,3

0
4
.2

0
2
3
.2

8

9
1
6
0
1
1
2

S
u
rv

ey
/

T
it

le
 F

ee
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

1
,8

8
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
-1

,8
8
9
.0

0
N

/
A

9
1
6
0
1
1
3

O
ff

ic
e 

R
en

t
0
.0

0
7
0
8
.3

3
7
0
8
.3

3
1
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
,3

7
4
.9

7

9
1
6
0
1
1
4

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
S
u
p

p
o

rt
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

6
.0

6
0
.0

0
-6

.0
6

N
/
A

9
1
6
0
1
1
5

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 C

o
st

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

2
,5

4
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
-2

,5
4
2
.0

0
N

/
A

9
1
6
0
1
2
0

T
ra

in
in

g/
C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

s 
an

d
 T

ra
v
el

2
2
1
.7

4
1
0
,8

7
7
.3

0
1
0
,6

5
5
.5

6
9
7
.9

6
4
1
,2

2
4
.0

8
9
7
,8

9
5
.7

0
5
6
,6

7
1
.6

2
5
7
.8

9

9
1
6
0
1
3
0

M
em

b
er

sh
ip

 D
u
es

 a
n

d
 F

ee
s

6
9
.2

3
9
5
8
.6

6
8
8
9
.4

3
9
2
.7

8
1
7
,5

6
3
.9

9
8
,6

2
7
.9

4
-8

,9
3
6
.0

5
-1

0
3
.5

7

9
1
6
0
1
3
1

T
ax

es
 &

 G
o

v
er

n
m

en
t 

F
ee

s
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

3
0
0
.0

8
0
.0

0
-3

0
0
.0

8
N

/
A

9
1
6
0
1
4
0

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 L
o

ss
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

-3
5
4
.9

5
0
.0

0
3
5
4
.9

5
N

/
A

9
1
6
0
1
6
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 A

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g 
S
er

v
ic

es
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

7
,3

8
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
-7

,3
8
4
.0

0
N

/
A

9
1
6
0
1
7
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

S
er

v
ic

es
/

C
o

n
su

lt
an

t
3
5
,5

1
6
.5

2
2
4
,5

0
7
.6

8
-1

1
,0

0
8
.8

4
-4

4
.9

2
2
1
1
,1

8
1
.9

3
2
2
0
,5

6
9
.1

2
9
,3

8
7
.1

9
4
.2

6

9
1
6
0
1
8
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 S
er

v
ic

e 
P

ro
v
id

er
 -

 Y
ar

d
i

9
,8

4
0
.9

9
1
1
,7

4
2
.5

9
1
,9

0
1
.6

0
1
6
.1

9
8
1
,6

2
3
.7

2
1
0
5
,6

8
3
.3

1
2
4
,0

5
9
.5

9
2
2
.7

7

9
1
6
0
1
9
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 C

o
m

p
u
te

r/
T

el
ep

h
o

n
e 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
/

E
m

ai
l

3
,9

3
2
.1

3
7
,8

6
9
.1

1
3
,9

3
6
.9

8
5
0
.0

3
5
1
,1

4
9
.3

9
7
0
,8

2
1
.9

9
1
9
,6

7
2
.6

0
2
7
.7

8

9
1
6
0
2
1
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 S
er

v
ic

es
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

8
6
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
-8

6
4
.0

0
N

/
A

9
1
6
0
2
2
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 H

u
m

an
 R

es
o

u
rc

e 
S
er

v
ic

es
2
7
,0

9
7
.4

4
7
,9

1
6
.6

8
-1

9
,1

8
0
.7

6
-2

4
2
.2

8
9
5
,8

6
4
.7

9
7
1
,2

5
0
.1

2
-2

4
,6

1
4
.6

7
-3

4
.5

5

9
1
6
0
2
3
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 S
er

v
ic

es
9
,2

3
2
.1

9
4
,3

9
5
.7

4
-4

,8
3
6
.4

5
-1

1
0
.0

3
5
3
,1

4
0
.8

1
3
9
,5

6
1
.6

6
-1

3
,5

7
9
.1

5
-3

4
.3

2

9
1
6
0
2
5
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 O

ff
ic

e 
M

ac
h

in
e 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

1
,3

8
0
.5

0
0
.0

0
-1

,3
8
0
.5

0
N

/
A

9
1
6
0
2
6
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 O

ff
ic

e 
M

ac
h

in
e 

L
ea

se
1
,6

2
3
.7

4
1
,2

1
9
.1

4
-4

0
4
.6

0
-3

3
.1

9
1
3
,6

8
7
.2

1
1
0
,9

7
2
.2

6
-2

,7
1
4
.9

5
-2

4
.7

4

9
1
6
0
2
7
0

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 -
 W

eb
 H

o
st

in
g/

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
/

W
eb

 A
d

s
8
6
6
.7

0
1
,8

7
4
.2

6
1
,0

0
7
.5

6
5
3
.7

6
6
,8

3
1
.5

5
1
6
,8

6
8
.3

4
1
0
,0

3
6
.7

9
5
9
.5

0

9
1
6
0
5
1
0

A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
 D

u
es

7
,4

3
6
.0

5
2
,5

3
5
.1

7
-4

,9
0
0
.8

8
-1

9
3
.3

2
3
4
,4

8
1
.4

0
2
2
,8

1
6
.5

3
-1

1
,6

6
4
.8

7
-5

1
.1

2

9
1
6
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

4
3
3
,9

3
4
.8

7
5
2
1
,9

1
0
.0

2
8
7
,9

7
5
.1

5
1
6
.8

6
3
,8

4
3
,2

7
1
.4

5
4
,7

0
2
,8

2
6
.5

8
8
5
9
,5

5
5
.1

3
1
8
.2

8

9
2
0
0
0
0
0

T
E

N
A

N
T

/
S

O
C

IA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/

P
O

L
IC

E

9
2
1
0
0
1
0

T
en

an
t 

S
er

v
ic

es
 -

 S
al

ar
ie

s
5
,5

8
7
.2

8
1
5
,3

2
1
.0

2
9
,7

3
3
.7

4
6
3
.5

3
8
4
,8

2
4
.9

1
1
3
7
,8

8
9
.1

8
5
3
,0

6
4
.2

7
3
8
.4

8

9
2
1
0
0
3
0

P
o

lic
e 

S
er

v
ic

es
1
6
,3

9
7
.5

0
1
6
,6

4
8
.1

0
2
5
0
.6

0
1
.5

1
1
4
8
,7

3
1
.6

3
1
4
9
,8

3
2
.9

0
1
,1

0
1
.2

7
0
.7

4

9
2
1
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 T

E
N

A
N

T
/
S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S
/
P

O
L

IC
E

2
1
,9

8
4
.7

8
3
1
,9

6
9
.1

2
9
,9

8
4
.3

4
3
1
.2

3
2
3
3
,5

5
6
.5

4
2
8
7
,7

2
2
.0

8
5
4
,1

6
5
.5

4
1
8
.8

3

9
2
19

9
9
0

R
E

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

9
2
2
0
0
0
0

T
en

an
t-

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 C

o
st

s
1
,3

7
0
.0

0
2
,1

7
5
.2

5
8
0
5
.2

5
3
7
.0

2
6
0
,9

0
2
.7

5
1
9
,5

7
7
.2

5
-4

1
,3

2
5
.5

0
-2

1
1
.0

9

9
2
2
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 R

E
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

1
,3

7
0
.0

0
2
,1

7
5
.2

5
8
0
5
.2

5
3
7
.0

2
6
0
,9

0
2
.7

5
1
9
,5

7
7
.2

5
-4

1
,3

2
5
.5

0
-2

1
1
.0

9

9
2
3
0
0
0
5

T
E

N
A

N
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 A
N

D
 I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

9
2
3
0
0
1
0

T
en

an
t 

S
v
cs

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
- 

M
ed

ic
al

/
D

en
ta

l
5
,2

3
8
.5

2
3
,8

6
4
.9

7
-1

,3
7
3
.5

5
-3

5
.5

4
2
1
,9

4
0
.2

9
3
4
,7

8
4
.7

3
1
2
,8

4
4
.4

4
3
6
.9

3

9
2
3
0
0
2
0

T
en

an
t 

S
v
cs

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

  
P

E
R

S
/

P
A

R
S

7
5
7
.9

1
1
,3

6
9
.6

5
6
1
1
.7

4
4
4
.6

6
7
,1

7
5
.7

8
1
2
,3

2
6
.8

5
5
,1

5
1
.0

7
4
1
.7

9

9
2
3
0
0
3
0

T
en

an
t 

S
v
cs

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
- 

F
IC

A
8
4
.2

1
2
3
6
.9

2
1
5
2
.7

1
6
4
.4

6
1
,0

5
6
.5

3
2
,1

3
2
.2

0
1
,0

7
5
.6

7
5
0
.4

5

9
2
3
0
0
4
0

T
en

an
t 

S
v
cs

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
- 

S
U

I
1
1
.6

5
1
5
.5

1
3
.8

6
2
4
.8

9
3
2
6
.4

2
1
3
9
.5

9
-1

8
6
.8

3
-1

3
3
.8

4

9
2
3
0
0
5
0

T
en

an
t 

S
v
cs

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

 L
if

e/
L

T
D

1
4
9
.5

8
0
.0

0
-1

4
9
.5

8
N

/
A

1
4
9
.5

8
0
.0

0
-1

4
9
.5

8
N

/
A

9
2
3
0
0
9
0

T
en

an
t 

S
v
cs

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

 -
 W

C
6
6
.2

2
1
0
1
.1

9
3
4
.9

7
3
4
.5

6
6
6
2
.4

2
9
1
0
.7

1
2
4
8
.2

9
2
7
.2

6

9
2
3
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 T

E
N

A
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S
 A

N
D

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
6
,3

0
8
.0

9
5
,5

8
8
.2

4
-7

1
9
.8

5
-1

2
.8

8
3
1
,3

1
1
.0

2
5
0
,2

9
4
.0

8
1
8
,9

8
3
.0

6
3
7
.7

4

9
2
4
0
0
0
5

T
E

N
A

N
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

9
2
4
0
0
2
0

T
en

an
t 

S
er

v
ic

e 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
- 

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 a
n

d
 O

/
S
 S

er
v
ic

es
1
7
,5

5
3
.6

1
2
3
,7

6
3
.8

5
6
,2

1
0
.2

4
2
6
.1

3
1
6
7
,4

9
7
.0

5
2
1
3
,8

7
4
.6

5
4
6
,3

7
7
.6

0
2
1
.6

8

9
2
4
0
0
3
0

T
en

an
t/

S
o

ci
al

 S
er

v
ic

es
 -

  
R

es
id

en
t 

P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

1
,2

0
6
.8

4
0
.0

0
-1

,2
0
6
.8

4
N

/
A

9
2
4
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 T

E
N

A
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
7
,5

5
3
.6

1
2
3
,7

6
3
.8

5
6
,2

1
0
.2

4
2
6
.1

3
1
6
8
,7

0
3
.8

9
2
1
3
,8

7
4
.6

5
4
5
,1

7
0
.7

6
2
1
.1

2

9
3
0
0
0
0
0

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

9
3
1
0
0
0
0

W
at

er
1
5
,3

3
5
.7

0
1
9
,9

9
3
.4

2
4
,6

5
7
.7

2
2
3
.3

0
1
7
9
,7

6
0
.9

8
1
7
9
,9

4
0
.7

8
1
7
9
.8

0
0
.1

0

9
3
2
0
0
0
0

E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

3
,7

5
3
.1

7
9
,1

6
9
.9

1
5
,4

1
6
.7

4
5
9
.0

7
6
9
,8

9
0
.1

5
8
2
,5

2
9
.1

9
1
2
,6

3
9
.0

4
1
5
.3

1

 P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
4

Page 45

Page 45 of 116



6
/4

/2
0

1
9

 1
2

:3
0

 P
M

 M
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l

 M
T

D
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 %
 V

a
r

 P
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 %
 V

a
r

B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

 (
w

it
h

 P
T

D
)

P
er

io
d

 =
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
8
-M

ar
 2

0
1
9

B
o

o
k
 =

 A
cc

ru
al

9
3
3
0
0
0
0

G
as

3
,4

6
3
.7

7
3
,7

2
5
.0

7
2
6
1
.3

0
7
.0

1
3
8
,0

9
5
.6

2
3
3
,5

2
5
.6

3
-4

,5
6
9
.9

9
-1

3
.6

3

9
3
8
0
0
1
0

S
ew

er
1
8
,8

8
5
.5

3
2
4
,5

2
7
.3

0
5
,6

4
1
.7

7
2
3
.0

0
1
8
5
,2

7
3
.1

8
2
2
0
,7

4
5
.7

0
3
5
,4

7
2
.5

2
1
6
.0

7

9
3
8
0
0
2
0

G
ar

b
ag

e
3
0
,0

5
1
.5

1
4
0
,4

4
6
.4

6
1
0
,3

9
4
.9

5
2
5
.7

0
2
8
2
,3

8
3
.6

0
3
6
4
,0

1
8
.1

4
8
1
,6

3
4
.5

4
2
2
.4

3

9
3
8
0
0
3
0

O
th

er
-4

6
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
6
.0

0
N

/
A

-4
6
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
6
.0

0
N

/
A

9
3
9
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
7
1
,4

4
3
.6

8
9
7
,8

6
2
.1

6
2
6
,4

1
8
.4

8
2
7
.0

0
7
5
5
,3

5
7
.5

3
8
8
0
,7

5
9
.4

4
1
2
5
,4

0
1
.9

1
1
4
.2

4

9
3
9
9
9
9
0

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

9
4
0
0
0
0
0

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S

9
4
1
0
0
1
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 -

  
S
al

ar
ie

s
3
9
,0

3
9
.0

6
5
3
,0

6
8
.7

4
1
4
,0

2
9
.6

8
2
6
.4

4
3
5
8
,1

7
1
.9

5
4
7
7
,6

1
8
.6

6
1
1
9
,4

4
6
.7

1
2
5
.0

1

9
4
1
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

3
9
,0

3
9
.0

6
5
3
,0

6
8
.7

4
1
4
,0

2
9
.6

8
2
6
.4

4
3
5
8
,1

7
1
.9

5
4
7
7
,6

1
8
.6

6
1
1
9
,4

4
6
.7

1
2
5
.0

1

9
4
2
0
0
0
5

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

9
4
2
0
0
1
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 M

at
er

ia
ls

7
,1

8
7
.6

0
1
9
,1

9
5
.2

2
1
2
,0

0
7
.6

2
6
2
.5

6
4
2
,2

3
3
.8

4
1
7
2
,7

5
6
.9

8
1
3
0
,5

2
3
.1

4
7
5
.5

5

9
4
2
0
0
2
0

V
eh

ic
le

 -
 g

as
o

lin
e

6
9
9
.6

5
0
.0

0
-6

9
9
.6

5
N

/
A

4
,7

3
1
.5

5
0
.0

0
-4

,7
3
1
.5

5
N

/
A

9
4
2
0
0
3
0

Ja
n

it
o

ri
al

s 
S
u
p

p
lie

s
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

1
,1

4
2
.9

2
0
.0

0
-1

,1
4
2
.9

2
N

/
A

9
4
2
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
7
,8

8
7
.2

5
1
9
,1

9
5
.2

2
1
1
,3

0
7
.9

7
5
8
.9

1
4
8
,1

0
8
.3

1
1
7
2
,7

5
6
.9

8
1
2
4
,6

4
8
.6

7
7
2
.1

5

9
4
2
9
0
0
5

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S

9
4
2
9
0
1
5

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 U
n

it
 T

u
rn

ar
o

u
n

d
1
,5

5
0
.0

0
2
4
,3

6
1
.8

1
1
7
,7

9
7
.9

2
2
1
9
,2

5
6
.2

9
2
0
1
,4

5
8
.3

7
9
1
.8

8

9
4
2
9
0
4
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 C
yc

le
 P

ai
n

ti
n

g
2
,0

5
0
.0

0
2
,4

5
0
.9

6
4
0
0
.9

6
1
6
.3

6
2
7
,8

7
5
.0

0
2
2
,0

5
8
.6

4
-5

,8
1
6
.3

6
-2

6
.3

7

9
4
2
9
0
6
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 F
lo

o
r 

C
o

v
er

in
g

2
4
,4

0
4
.6

3
5
,6

4
4
.9

5
-1

8
,7

5
9
.6

8
-3

3
2
.3

3
7
0
,1

8
7
.8

7
5
0
,8

0
4
.5

5
-1

9
,3

8
3
.3

2
-3

8
.1

5

9
4
2
9
1
0
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 S
er

v
ic

es
1
,6

6
0
.0

0
1
2
,0

7
6
.8

6
1
0
,4

1
6
.8

6
8
6
.2

5
6
8
,3

5
6
.1

2
1
0
8
,6

9
1
.7

4
4
0
,3

3
5
.6

2
3
7
.1

1

9
4
3
0
0
1
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 P
ai

n
ti

n
g

0
.0

0
1
,8

3
7
.8

8
1
,8

3
7
.8

8
1
0
0
.0

0
1
8
,6

7
1
.8

3
1
6
,5

4
0
.9

2
-2

,1
3
0
.9

1
-1

2
.8

8

9
4
3
0
0
2
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 P
lu

m
b

in
g

0
.0

0
2
,5

3
4
.3

3
2
,5

3
4
.3

3
1
0
0
.0

0
2
2
,3

5
7
.9

5
2
2
,8

0
8
.9

7
4
5
1
.0

2
1
.9

8

9
4
3
0
0
3
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 L
an

d
sc

ap
e,

 P
o

o
l, 

P
o

n
d

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
0
.0

0
1
1
,3

3
4
.8

3
1
1
,3

3
4
.8

3
1
0
0
.0

0
6
5
,1

3
1
.0

2
1
0
2
,0

1
3
.4

7
3
6
,8

8
2
.4

5
3
6
.1

5

9
4
3
0
0
4
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 H
V

A
C

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
0
.0

0
1
,8

5
6
.0

8
1
,8

5
6
.0

8
1
0
0
.0

0
5
9
9
.9

8
1
6
,7

0
4
.7

2
1
6
,1

0
4
.7

4
9
6
.4

1

9
4
3
0
0
6
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 E
le

v
at

o
r 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
2
,2

3
3
.4

8
1
,6

0
8
.5

3
-6

2
4
.9

5
-3

8
.8

5
2
3
,8

6
5
.4

7
1
4
,4

7
6
.7

7
-9

,3
8
8
.7

0
-6

4
.8

5

9
4
3
0
0
7
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 E
xt

er
m

in
at

io
n

0
.0

0
3
,5

3
0
.5

0
3
,5

3
0
.5

0
1
0
0
.0

0
1
2
,7

0
9
.6

0
3
1
,7

7
4
.5

0
1
9
,0

6
4
.9

0
6
0
.0

0

9
4
3
0
0
8
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

5
6
7
.3

4
1
,9

5
0
.2

9
1
,3

8
2
.9

5
7
0
.9

1
6
,5

2
8
.0

0
1
7
,5

5
2
.6

1
1
1
,0

2
4
.6

1
6
2
.8

1

9
4
3
0
0
9
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 N
u
rs

e 
C

al
l 
S
ys

te
m

s
1
3
,8

4
2
.3

0
4
,3

7
3
.6

9
-9

,4
6
8
.6

1
-2

1
6
.4

9
6
5
,6

4
5
.8

3
3
9
,3

6
3
.2

1
-2

6
,2

8
2
.6

2
-6

6
.7

7

9
4
3
0
1
0
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 T
re

e 
T

ri
m

m
in

g 
S
er

v
ic

es
0
.0

0
4
5
9
.8

8
4
5
9
.8

8
1
0
0
.0

0
3
4
,6

1
5
.0

0
4
,1

3
8
.9

2
-3

0
,4

7
6
.0

8
-7

3
6
.3

3

9
4
3
0
1
1
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 G
u
tt

er
 C

le
an

in
g 

S
er

v
ic

es
0
.0

0
1
,2

5
8
.7

2
1
,2

5
8
.7

2
1
0
0
.0

0
6
,7

4
6
.9

6
1
1
,3

2
8
.4

8
4
,5

8
1
.5

2
4
0
.4

4

9
4
3
0
1
2
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 F
lo

o
ri

n
g 

R
ep

lm
t/

C
le

an
in

g 
S
rv

c
1
7
5
.0

0
6
1
2
.7

2
4
3
7
.7

2
7
1
.4

4
7
,6

9
7
.1

0
5
,5

1
4
.4

8
-2

,1
8
2
.6

2
-3

9
.5

8

9
4
3
0
1
3
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 O
th

er
0
.0

0
4
,5

6
5
.2

7
4
,5

6
5
.2

7
1
0
0
.0

0
7
,2

6
2
.2

8
4
1
,0

8
7
.4

3
3
3
,8

2
5
.1

5
8
2
.3

2

9
4
3
0
1
4
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
0
.0

0
4
3
5
.3

7
4
3
5
.3

7
1
0
0
.0

0
5
,2

3
8
.1

2
3
,9

1
8
.3

3
-1

,3
1
9
.7

9
-3

3
.6

8

9
4
3
0
1
5
0

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 -

 J
an

it
o

ri
al

2
5
,0

4
4
.6

0
8
,0

4
9
.0

7
-1

6
,9

9
5
.5

3
-2

1
1
.1

5
1
0
0
,1

7
8
.4

0
7
2
,4

4
1
.6

3
-2

7
,7

3
6
.7

7
-3

8
.2

9

9
4
3
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

7
1
,5

2
7
.3

5
8
8
,9

4
1
.7

4
1
7
,4

1
4
.3

9
1
9
.5

8
5
6
1
,4

6
4
.4

5
8
0
0
,4

7
5
.6

6
2
3
9
,0

1
1
.2

1
2
9
.8

6

9
4
5
0
0
0
5

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S

9
4
5
0
0
1
0

M
ai

n
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

  
M

ed
ic

al
/

D
en

ta
l

9
,4

0
4
.5

0
1
4
,6

2
9
.4

8
5
,2

2
4
.9

8
3
5
.7

2
8
7
,2

7
5
.0

1
1
3
1
,6

6
5
.3

2
4
4
,3

9
0
.3

1
3
3
.7

1

9
4
5
0
0
2
0

M
ai

n
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
- 

 P
E

R
S
/

P
A

R
S

3
,6

0
2
.2

2
6
,2

8
0
.8

1
2
,6

7
8
.5

9
4
2
.6

5
3
3
,5

0
2
.2

9
5
6
,5

2
7
.2

9
2
3
,0

2
5
.0

0
4
0
.7

3

9
4
5
0
0
3
0

M
ai

n
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

  
 F

IC
A

5
6
2
.5

1
7
5
6
.2

3
1
9
3
.7

2
2
5
.6

2
4
,8

7
8
.3

1
6
,8

0
6
.0

7
1
,9

2
7
.7

6
2
8
.3

2

9
4
5
0
0
4
0

M
ai

n
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

  
S
U

I
8
1
.4

4
4
1
.5

1
-3

9
.9

3
-9

6
.1

9
1
,9

9
8
.8

9
3
7
3
.7

5
-1

,6
2
5
.1

4
-4

3
4
.8

2

9
4
5
0
0
5
0

M
ai

n
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

 L
if

e/
L

T
D

3
8
5
.2

0
4
4
7
.7

6
6
2
.5

6
1
3
.9

7
2
,8

3
9
.7

2
4
,0

2
9
.8

4
1
,1

9
0
.1

2
2
9
.5

3

9
4
5
0
0
7
0

M
ai

n
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

s 
 -

 U
n

if
o

rm
s/

S
h

o
es

1
9
7
.1

0
3
0
5
.0

4
1
0
7
.9

4
3
5
.3

9
1
,5

7
9
.9

2
2
,7

4
5
.3

6
1
,1

6
5
.4

4
4
2
.4

5

9
4
5
0
0
9
1

M
ai

n
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

B
en

ef
it

 -
 W

C
2
,4

3
1
.0

2
2
,2

0
8
.7

1
-2

2
2
.3

1
-1

0
.0

7
1
9
,0

4
3
.6

5
1
9
,8

7
8
.3

9
8
3
4
.7

4
4
.2

0

9
4
5
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

1
6
,6

6
3
.9

9
2
4
,6

6
9
.5

4
8
,0

0
5
.5

5
3
2
.4

5
1
5
1
,1

1
7
.7

9
2
2
2
,0

2
6
.0

2
7
0
,9

0
8
.2

3
3
1
.9

4

9
4
9
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
1
3
5
,1

1
7
.6

5
1
8
5
,8

7
5
.2

4
5
0
,7

5
7
.5

9
2
7
.3

1
1
,1

1
8
,8

6
2
.5

0
1
,6

7
2
,8

7
7
.3

2
5
5
4
,0

1
4
.8

2
3
3
.1

2

9
5
0
0
0
0
0

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S

9
5
0
0
1
0
0

In
te

re
st

 E
xp

en
se

8
9
,8

2
5
.7

4
9
3
,9

2
7
.2

5
4
,1

0
1
.5

1
4
.3

7
8
1
2
,2

0
6
.7

8
8
4
5
,3

4
5
.2

5
3
3
,1

3
8
.4

7
3
.9

2

9
5
0
0
1
5
0

In
v
es

tm
en

t 
ex

p
en

se
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

4
1
2
.9

6
0
.0

0
-4

1
2
.9

6
N

/
A

9
5
0
0
1
6
0

M
o

rt
ga

ge
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

v
ic

e 
C

h
ar

ge
5
,9

7
8
.4

5
0
.0

0
-5

,9
7
8
.4

5
N

/
A

4
8
,3

0
8
.4

8
0
.0

0
-4

8
,3

0
8
.4

8
N

/
A

9
5
0
0
2
0
0

O
th

er
 E

xp
en

se
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

2
7
4
,8

2
2
.9

8
0
.0

0
-2

7
4
,8

2
2
.9

8
N

/
A

9
6
1
0
0
2
0

In
su

ra
n

ce
 -

 L
ia

b
ili

ty
3
,1

0
8
.8

6
6
,3

9
3
.0

7
3
,2

8
4
.2

1
5
1
.3

7
2
8
,7

1
0
.1

9
5
7
,5

3
7
.6

3
2
8
,8

2
7
.4

4
5
0
.1

0

9
6
1
0
0
3
0

In
su

ra
n

ce
 -

 P
ro

p
er

ty
9
,0

4
5
.6

1
8
,9

8
2
.7

0
-6

2
.9

1
-0

.7
0

8
1
,5

4
9
.5

2
8
0
,8

4
4
.3

0
-7

0
5
.2

2
-0

.8
7

9
6
1
0
0
4
0

In
su

ra
n

ce
 -

 V
eh

ic
le

7
3
1
.7

4
1
,1

3
1
.9

7
4
0
0
.2

3
3
5
.3

6
8
,1

7
7
.5

7
1
0
,1

8
7
.7

3
2
,0

1
0
.1

6
1
9
.7

3

 P
a

g
e

 3
 o

f 
4

Page 46

Page 46 of 116



6
/4

/2
0

1
9

 1
2

:3
0

 P
M

 M
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l

 M
T

D
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 %
 V

a
r

 P
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 %
 V

a
r

B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

 (
w

it
h

 P
T

D
)

P
er

io
d

 =
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
8
-M

ar
 2

0
1
9

B
o

o
k
 =

 A
cc

ru
al

9
6
1
0
0
6
0

In
su

ra
n

ce
 -

 O
th

er
7
3
0
.2

6
0
.0

0
-7

3
0
.2

6
N

/
A

4
,3

8
1
.5

1
0
.0

0
-4

,3
8
1
.5

1
N

/
A

9
6
2
0
0
1
0

O
th

er
 G

en
er

al
 E

xp
en

se
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

8
7
4
.3

1
0
.0

0
-8

7
4
.3

1
N

/
A

9
6
9
8
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
S
E

S
1
0
9
,4

2
0
.6

6
1
1
0
,4

3
4
.9

9
1
,0

1
4
.3

3
0
.9

2
1
,2

5
9
,4

4
4
.3

0
9
9
3
,9

1
4
.9

1
-2

6
5
,5

2
9
.3

9
-2

6
.7

2

9
6
9
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
7
9
7
,1

3
3
.3

4
9
7
9
,5

7
8
.8

7
1
8
2
,4

4
5
.5

3
1
8
.6

2
7
,4

7
1
,4

0
9
.9

8
8
,8

2
1
,8

4
6
.3

1
1
,3

5
0
,4

3
6
.3

3
1
5
.3

1

9
7
0
0
0
0
0

M
O

D
 R

E
H

A
B

 A
N

D
 S

P
C

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

9
7
0
0
5
7
0

R
en

t 
to

 O
w

n
er

s 
- 

B
es

si
e 

C
o

le
m

an
1
4
,4

3
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
-1

4
,4

3
3
.0

0
N

/
A

1
3
8
,4

3
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
-1

3
8
,4

3
7
.0

0
N

/
A

9
7
0
0
8
0
0

P
O

R
T

-I
n

 (
A

/
R

 B
ill

in
gs

)
-7

0
,6

6
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
0
,6

6
7
.0

0
N

/
A

-6
3
4
,1

0
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
3
4
,1

0
2
.0

0
N

/
A

9
7
0
0
9
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 M

O
D

 R
E

H
A

B
 A

N
D

 S
P

C
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
-5

6
,2

3
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
6
,2

3
4
.0

0
N

/
A

-4
9
5
,6

6
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
9
5
,6

6
5
.0

0
N

/
A

9
7
10

0
0
0

E
X

T
R

A
O

R
D

IN
A

R
Y

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

9
7
1
0
0
9
0

P
re

-d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

C
o

st
0
.0

0
8
,3

3
3
.3

3
8
,3

3
3
.3

3
1
0
0
.0

0
3
,0

0
2
.6

4
7
4
,9

9
9
.9

7
7
1
,9

9
7
.3

3
9
6
.0

0

9
7
1
3
0
0
1

H
O

U
S
IN

G
 A

S
S
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
 (

V
O

U
C

H
E

R
)

9
7
1
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
T

R
A

O
R

D
IN

A
R

Y
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
0
.0

0
8
,3

3
3
.3

3
8
,3

3
3
.3

3
1
0
0
.0

0
3
,0

0
2
.6

4
7
4
,9

9
9
.9

7
7
1
,9

9
7
.3

3
9
6
.0

0

9
7
3
0
0
0
1

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 A
S

S
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
 (

V
O

U
C

H
E

R
)

9
7
3
0
0
1
0

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 P
ay

m
en

ts
 -

 L
an

d
lo

rd
s

2
,5

1
0
,4

0
8
.0

0
2
,5

6
6
,2

7
4
.7

4
5
5
,8

6
6
.7

4
2
.1

8
2
2
,7

4
8
,7

9
6
.9

0
2
3
,0

9
6
,4

7
2
.6

6
3
4
7
,6

7
5
.7

6
1
.5

1

9
7
3
0
0
2
0

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 P
ay

m
en

ts
 -

  
F

S
S

5
,0

7
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
-5

,0
7
2
.0

0
N

/
A

5
0
,2

3
6
.0

0
N

/
A

9
7
3
0
0
7
0

U
ti

lit
y 

A
llo

w
an

ce
 t

o
 T

en
an

ts
2
,3

7
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
-2

,3
7
5
.0

0
N

/
A

2
2
,1

8
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
-2

2
,1

8
8
.0

0
N

/
A

9
7
3
9
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

S
S
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
 (

V
O

U
C

H
E

R
)

2
,5

1
7
,8

5
5
.0

0
2
,5

6
6
,2

7
4
.7

4
4
8
,4

1
9
.7

4
1
.8

9
2
2
,8

2
1
,2

2
0
.9

0
2
3
,0

9
6
,4

7
2
.6

6
2
7
5
,2

5
1
.7

6
1
.1

9

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 B

E
F

O
R

E
 O

T
H

E
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

3
,2

5
8
,7

5
4
.3

4
3
,5

5
4
,1

8
6
.9

4
2
9
5
,4

3
2
.6

0
8
.3

1
2
9
,7

9
9
,9

6
8
.5

2
3
1
,9

9
3
,3

1
8
.9

4
2
,1

9
3
,3

5
0
.4

2
6
.8

6

N
E

T
 I

N
C

O
M

E
 B

E
F

O
R

E
 O

T
H

E
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

3
8
8
,6

7
3
.3

7
1
6
8
,8

3
3
.3

8
-2

1
9
,8

3
9
.9

9
-1

3
0
.2

1
3
,3

5
8
,9

4
8
.9

1
1
,5

1
3
,8

6
3
.9

4
-2

,5
4
1
,6

1
5
.8

7
-1

6
7
.8

9

9
7
3
9
5
0
0

O
T

H
E

R
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S

9
7
4
0
0
0
0

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
 E

xp
en

se
1
1
5
,6

5
5
.5

4
0
.0

0
-1

1
5
,6

5
5
.5

4
N

/
A

1
,0

2
7
,9

8
5
.2

8
0
.0

0
-1

,0
2
7
,9

8
5
.2

8
N

/
A

9
7
6
0
0
0
0

C
ap

it
al

 O
u
tl

ay
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

-3
,0

6
7
.2

9
0
.0

0
3
,0

6
7
.2

9
N

/
A

9
7
6
5
0
0
0

D
o

n
at

io
n

s
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/
A

2
,5

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
-2

,5
5
0
.0

0
N

/
A

9
8
5
9
9
9
9

T
O

T
A

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S
E

S
1
1
5
,6

5
5
.5

4
0
.0

0
-1

1
5
,6

5
5
.5

4
N

/
A

1
,0

2
7
,4

6
7
.9

9
0
.0

0
-1

,0
2
7
,4

6
7
.9

9
N

/
A

9
9
9
6
0
0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 

3
,3

7
4
,4

0
9
.8

8
3
,5

5
4
,1

8
6
.9

4
1
7
9
,7

7
7
.0

6
6
.8

7
3
0
,8

2
7
,4

3
6
.5

1
3
1
,9

9
3
,3

1
8
.9

4
1
,1

6
5
,8

8
2
.4

3
3
.6

4

9
9
9
8
0
0
0

N
E

T
 I

N
C

O
M

E
2
7
3
,0

1
7
.8

3
1
6
8
,8

3
3
.3

8
-1

0
4
,1

8
4
.4

5
-6

1
.7

1
2
,3

3
1
,4

8
0
.9

2
1
,5

1
3
,8

6
3
.9

4
8
1
7
,6

1
6
.9

8
5
4
.0

1

 P
a

g
e

 4
 o

f 
4

Page 47

Page 47 of 116



6/4/2019 12:29 PM

Current Balance

1000000 ASSETS

1100000 CURRENT ASSETS

1101000 CASH

1110010 Cash - Unrestricted 4,102,759.54

1110011 Cash-Unrestricted-Saving/Money Market 870,035.10

1110012 Cash - Reserve for Building 78,450.83

1110014 Cash - Reserve for Equipment 2,152.00

1110018 Cash - Operating Checking with 3rd Party -60,321.36

1110019 Petty Cash with 3rd Party -4,500.19

1110020 Cash - Petty cash 250.00

1110021 Cash - Benefit Account 73,442.10

1110030 Cash - FSS 130,824.32

1110040 Cash - Replacement Reserve Bldg 61,415.00

1130010 Cash - Restricted Other -113,476.00

1130030 Cash - Restricted Sec Dep 28,577.00

1140000 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits 499,990.25

1140050 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits with 3rd Party 39,440.00

1199000 TOTAL CASH 5,709,038.59

1200000 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

1210000 Accounts Receivable -   PHA 10,726.58

1240010 Accounts Receivable -  Government 144,808.71

1240020 Accounts Receivable -  PNC Mortgage -3,291.52

1240050 HAP Rent Receivable 223.77

1250010 Accounts Receivable - Other 295,116.28

1250050 Accounts Receivable - 3rd Party Management 21,089.00

1255000 Subsidy Suspense Receivable -14,368.00

1260000 Accounts Receivable - Tenant 374,948.37

1260050 Accounts Receivable - Tenant Rent with 3rd Party 4,681.89

1261000 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Dwelling Rent -61,830.05

1280000 Fraud Recovery 25,793.43

1281000 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud -25,068.23

1290000 Accrued Interest Receivable 46,875.36

1290010 Accrued Receivables 19,237.77

1299000 TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 838,943.36

1300000 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT NOTES

1310000 Investments(LAIF)- Unrestricted 9,638,839.68

1320010 Investments - Other 200.00

1320020 Investments(LAIF) (Restricted) - FSS Escrow 55,115.35

1320030 Investments(LAIF)- Building Reserve 1,340,750.69

1320040 Investments(LAIF) - Equipment Reserve 263,919.26

1320201 Investment Reserved for IP-LAIF 421,677.93

1350010 Investment(LAIF)-Restricted (Jack Capon Villa Trust) 1,357.78

1350020 Investment-OPEB (Restricted) -40,886.51

Balance Sheet

Period = Mar 2019

Book = Accrual

 Page 1 of 5

Page 48

Page 48 of 116



6/4/2019 12:29 PM

Current Balance

Balance Sheet

Period = Mar 2019

Book = Accrual

1350031 Investments - CAMP 12,728,314.45

1350100 Mortgage Receivable 26,213,161.62

1350103 Mortgage Receivable-Jack Capon L. P. 140,886.67

1350106 Loan Receivable - ICD 16,210,000.00

1350107 Loan Receivable-RCD/Stargell/Tri Pointe 2,000,000.00

1350109 Loan Receivable - Section 8 650,000.00

1360000 TOTAL INVESTEMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT NOTES 69,623,336.92

1400000 PREPAID EXPENSES

1420010 Prepaid Insurance - Property 10,050.93

1420020 Prepaid Insurance -  Liability 50,492.42

1420040 Prepaid Insurance -  Worker Comp 29,885.07

1420050 Prepaid - Other 41,660.36

1420051 Prepaid Rent 14,400.00

1420070 Escrow Deposits - Property -17,288.43

1420075 Escrow Dep. PNC Hedge Res. 54,328.68

1430000 Inventories 9,810.30

1430010 Replacement Reserve-NorthMarq Loan 471,087.01

1430020 Reserve for Replacement NorthMarq 499,440.97

1440099 TOTAL PREPAID EXPENSES 1,163,867.31

1440105 INTERPROGRAM

1440110 Interprogram (Due From) -2,659,893.72

13,073.00

1440112 Interprogram Due From Lincoln St FACSA 6,713.00

1440410 Interprogram Due From Sucessor Housing Agency 300,000.00

1440440 Interprogram Due from HCD-Development 20,188.71

1440452 Interprogram Due From Stargell Commons -391,942.76

1440453 Interprogram Due From Island City Development - 4530 354.48

1440601 Interprogram Due From ABD -22,495.73

1440602 Interprogram Due From Rosefield Village - 4537 218.80

1440603 Interprogram Due From Parrot Gardens 15.11

1440604 Interprogram Due From Stanford House 4.67

1440605 Interprogram Due From Lincoln/Willow 15.12

1440606 Interprogram Due From Senior Condos 18.23

1440607 Interprogram Due From China Clipper 407.65

1440608 Interprogram Due From Regent Street Land 1,530.11

1440609 Interprogram Due From Santa Clara Land 60.19

1440610 Interprogram Due From Eagle Village 264.80

1440613 Interprogram Due From Shinsei Gardens 2,580.11

1440710 Interprogram Due From Section 8 Vouchers 451,104.46

1440730 Interprogram Due from PBV 15,605.00

1440740 Interprogram Due from HCV 62,362.42

1440770 Interprogram Due from FUP 1,106.00

1440780 Interprogram Due From F.S.S. 1,277.27

 Page 2 of 5

Page 49

Page 49 of 116



6/4/2019 12:29 PM

Balance Sheet

Period = Mar 2019

Book = Accrual

1440781 Interprogram Due From New FSS Grant 57,384.80

1440810 Interprogram Due From Independence Plaza 610.59

1440899 TOTAL INTERPROGRAM -2,139,437.69

1500000 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 75,195,748.49

1590000 LONG TERM ASSETS

1600000 FIXED ASSETS

1609999 LAND AND BUILDINGS

1610000 Land 22,022,053.63

1620030 Buildings 30,417,307.95

1620031 Buildings Improvements 2,146,759.76

1629000 TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS 54,586,121.34

1630040 Furniture and Equipment - Dwelling 355,074.81

1630041 Furniture and Equipment - Other 40,078.60

1650000 Leasehold Improvements 10,674,163.17

1660030 Accumulated Deprecation -26,047,262.10

1660060 Accumulated Depreciation - 3rd Party -532.61

1699000 TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 39,607,643.21

1800000 DEFERRED OUTFLOW

1800200 Deferred Outflow of Resources 2,214,775.59

1890000 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW 2,214,775.59

1900000 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

1900100 CIP - On Site Improvement -381.10

1900290 CIP - Organization - Legal 6,077.50

1900410 CIP - Environmental Testing & Reports 10,850.00

1900420 CIP - Permit & Fees (plan'g,build'g,public work,school dist) 3,331.78

1900430 CIP - Utilities Fees 607.60

1919999 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 20,485.78

1929999 TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 41,842,904.58

1999999 TOTAL ASSETS 117,038,653.07

3000000 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

3005000 LIABILITIES

3100000 CURRENT LIABILITIES

3100500 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3120010 Accounts Payable<= 90 Days 905,686.24

3120011 Accounts Payable -CALPERS (employee portion) -103.07

3120012 Accounts Payable-Health Insurance (employee portion) 2,752.94

3120014 Accounts Payable-Garnishment (employee portion) -128.50

3120015 Accounts Payable-Vision Insurance (employee portion) 130.48

3120016 Accounts Payable-Life Insurance (employee portion) -67.20

3120018 Accounts Payable-PARS retirement (employee portion) 70.13

3120019 Accounts Payable-Flexible Spending Account(employee portion) -3,908.91

3120021 Employees Cobra 278.28

3120022 Accounts Payable-PERS 1959 Surv(Employee Portion) 40.92

 Page 3 of 5

Page 50

Page 50 of 116



6/4/2019 12:29 PM

Balance Sheet

Period = Mar 2019

Book = Accrual

3120023 Accounts Payable-FSA Transit Plan 1,657.02

3120024 Accounts Payable FSS 89,925.92

3120026 Accounts Payable FSS Interest 5.27

3120029 Accounts Payable - 3rd Party Management Company 6,237.22

3120030 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable 1,391.46

3120040 Accrued Compensated Absences -  Current Portion 128,207.37

3120045 Accrued Vacation Payable - 3rd Party Management 2,548.21

3120050 Accrued Contingency Liability -2,421.30

3120070 Accrued Payables 17,012.71

3120075 Accrued Accounts Payable - 3rd Party Management 37,809.00

3330100 Tenants- Rents Payable 9,900.00

3339000 TOTAL ACCOUNT PAYABLE 1,197,024.19

3400000 SECURITY DEPOSITS HELD

3410010 Tenant Security Deposits 385,220.42

3410015 Tenant Security Deposits - held with 3rd Party Management 37,190.00

3410020 Tenant Security Deposits - Pets 1,375.00

3410030 Tenant Security Deposits - Gate Opener 50.00

3410040 Tenant Security Deposits - Satellite Dish/Antenna 1,700.00

3410060 Tenant Security Deposits - Pooled Interest 63,760.13

3410999 Security Deposit Refund 10,029.13

3419000 TOTAL SECURITY DEPOSITS HELD 499,324.68

3419900 OTHER LIABILITIES

3420000 Prepay Tenant Rent 77,230.16

3421000 Prepay Tenant Rent - 3rd Party Management 12,189.50

3425000 Unearned Revenue -439,156.17

3426000 Prepaid Ground Lease Rent 3,410,000.00

3430000 Current Portion of Long Term Debt -  Capital Projects -745,760.61

3449000 TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES 2,314,502.88

3470000 INTERPROGRAM

3470050 Interprogram (Due to) 564,053.47

3470110 Interprogram Due To General Fund 178,146.12

3470210 Interprogram Due To Esperanza 300,000.00

3470601 Interprogram Due To Anne B Diament Plaza 21,429.00

3470710 Interprogram Due To Section 8 Vouchers 104,256.35

3471000 Due To/Due From Suspense Account -446,542.35

3480000 TOTAL INTERPROGRAM 721,342.59

3499000 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,732,194.34

3500000 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

3510100 Mortgage Loan Payable 29,788,378.25

3510103 Mortgage Loan Payable- Alameda County 26,250.00

3510130 Interest Payable - City of Alameda Loan 1,003,947.26

3510140 Home Fund Loan #1 219,453.70

3510150 Housing Community Dev. Loan 916,399.98

 Page 4 of 5

Page 51

Page 51 of 116



6/4/2019 12:29 PM

Balance Sheet

Period = Mar 2019

Book = Accrual

3510157 Loan Payable - Esperanza 650,000.00

3510158 Loan Payable - CDBG 575,000.00

3510160 Home Fund Loan #2 282,700.00

3540000 Accrued Compensated Absences -  Noncurrent 94,090.72

3570000 OPEB Liability 50,120.42

3580000 Pension Liability 1,924,494.73

3599000 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 35,530,835.06

3999000 TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,263,029.40

4000000 Equity/Net Assets

4000001 EQUITY

4000100 DEFERRED INFLOW

4001000 Deferred Inflow of Resources 2,337,137.01

4900000 TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW 2,337,137.01

4999999 CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

5010000 Net Investment in Capital Assets 8,944,339.25

5090000 Unrestricted 43,071,940.11

5120000 Unrestricted 21,817,924.77

5120010 Net Restricted Assets 604,282.53

5950000 TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 74,438,486.66

5999900 TOTAL EQUITY 76,775,623.67

6000000 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 117,038,653.07

 Page 5 of 5

Page 52

Page 52 of 116







Page 55

Page 55 of 116



Page 56

Page 56 of 116



Page 57

Page 57 of 116



June 19, 2019

Rosefield Village 
Development Update
Status Report

Buena Vista Avenue

Eagle Avenue

Rosefield Village 
Project Site 

Approx. 2.45 acre



Rosefield Village Timeline

2020 – 2022 
Construction 

Future

Past

May 2019
50% Construction 

Documents

August 2019
Apply for MHP and submit for building permit; 
estimated 3-4 months review prior to permit issuance

December 2019
Expected Funding Awards

Spring, 2020
Construction Loan Closing & 
Start Construction, approx. 24 
months

March 2019
100% Design Development

January 2019
50% Design Development

July 2018
Planning Approval

2015-2018
Financial and Physical 

Feasibility

Spring, 2022
Completion & 

Grand Reopening

April 2019
Finalized Relocation Plan 

and Started Moves October 2019
Apply for Tax Credit



Rosefield Village Project Scope

• 78 units of new construction at the center of the site
- onsite laundry, property management and social service offices, 
community room, and central courtyard with play structures

• 12 existing units, in five buildings, on the east and 
west sides of the new building will be renovated, and 
one house will be converted into a duplex

• 92 total units (91 rental units plus a manager’s unit)
7   Studios
35 1 Bedroom
27 2 Bedroom
23 3 Bedroom



ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN



PERSPECTIVE FROM BUENA VISTA AVENUE



PERSPECTIVE FROM EAGLE AVENUE



WESTERN BUILDING ENTRANCE



Relocation Update

• Relocation Specialist: Paragon Partners

• General Information Notice (G.I.N.): November 15, 2018

• Relocation Plan Finalized as of: April 18, 2019

• Notice of Eligibility (N.O.E.): April 23, 2019

• Six Months Notice to Vacate: May 17, 2019

• Status as of May 31, 2019:

Month Total Units Vacant Units Currently 
Occupied

Move 
Completed

May 31, 2019 53 26 27 8



Financing Plan (Sources and Uses)
Project Budget Line Items (Uses) Project Budget Predevelopment Loan

Acquisition $13,800,000 -

New/Rehabilitation $38,300,000 -

Relocation $200,000 $100,000 

Architecture/Engineering $2,100,000 $1,400,000 

Contingency Costs $4,000,000 -

Financing Expenses $3,150,000 -

Legal Fees $150,000 $75,000 

Other Soft Costs (Reports, Studies, Permit Fees, etc.) $1,650,000 $425,000 

Reserves $650,000 -

Developer Costs $3,500,000 -

Total $67,500,000 $2,000,000



Questions? 



 

                                                                                                           

To:  Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Vanessa M. Cooper, Executive Director 
 
Date:  June 19, 2019 
 
RE:  Adopt the Resolution to Approve the Housing Authority’s One Year Budget 

for Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 and the Revised Schedule of 
Authorized positions 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Housing Authority adopts its annual budget in the last quarter of each fiscal year. The 
AHA is currently ending the budget for the one-year budget period starting July 1, 2018 
and ending June 30, 2019.  This year each Director has reviewed their own budgets with 
the Executive Director and have combined historical budget data, with actuals and 
expected changes in the coming fiscal year to establish the 2019-2020 budget. 
 
It is also important to note, that this is the combined budget for AHA and AAHC which 
includes the four properties that transferred ownership to Alameda Affordable Housing 
Corporation (AAHC) in May 2018. These properties are Anne B. Diament, China Clipper 
Plaza, Stanford House, and Lincoln-Willow Apartments. The AAHC budget will be 
presented for approval in a separate AAHC Board meeting immediately following the AHA 
meeting on June 19, 2019, but it is included here for ease of comparisons. All members 
of the Board of Commissioners also serve as the Board of Directors for AAHC. 
 
A: OVERVIEW 

 
Net position:  

Total income is $47,149,063 and total expenses, including depreciation, are $46,617,286 
resulting in an overall 27% increase ($411,160) in net operating income over the prior 
year. Total operating income increased 6% and operating expenses increased 4%. 

- In terms of personnel costs, full staffing and benefits is assumed per the attached 
schedule of authorized positions. A 3% cost of living increase to wages and 
increases ranging from 5-7.5% in benefits costs have been included. The actual 
salary and benefits changes will be brought to the Board for approval in August 
2019. Additional costs for temporary staff and recruitment costs have also 
increased. 

- The revised rental income reflects an average increase in contract rent for 2019 of 
4% with increases implemented throughout the year. 

Page 58

Page 58 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 2 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

 
Attachment A shows the proposed budget for the fiscal year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 
2020 as well as FY 2018-19 estimated actuals. Both FY 19-20 and FY 18-19 are listed 
for a year to year comparison. 
 
 

FY 19-20 FY 18-19

Budget Budget $ %
Operating Income 17,004,796 16,051,618 953,178 6%
Operating Expenses 15,091,055 14,549,037 542,018 4%
Net Operating Income 1,913,741 1,502,581 411,160 27%

HAP Income 30,144,267 30,130,914 13,353 0%
HAP Expenses 30,144,267 30,130,914 13,353 0%
Net HAP 0 -

Less: Depreciation 1,381,964 1,552,833 -170,869 -11%

Net Income After Depreciation 531,777 -50,252 582,029 -1158%
0

Capital Improvements Projects (8,231,000) (4,015,000) (4,216,000) 105%

Change

 
 
 
As in prior years, the 2019-20 budget provides budget schedules in 3 key areas: 
 

• Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments (HAP pass-through) 
• Operating Income and Expenses  
• Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) 

 
B: SECTION 8 HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS (HAP pass-through) 
 
Attachment B shows the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program (and related 
programs) Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Subsidy that is paid to landlords on behalf 
of Section 8 participants. These are government “pass-through” funds and must be kept 
separate from all other Housing Authority funds.  

 
• Tenant and Project-Based Housing Choice vouchers (including Family Unification 

Program (FUP), Non-Elderly Disabled (NED) and Veteran Affairs Supportive 
Housing (VASH)) (HUD program) 

• Shelter Plus Care (County program) 
• Mod-Rehab Program (HUD Program) 

 

Page 59

Page 59 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 3 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

Expenses: HAP expense to participating landlords is expected to be $30,144,267 in FY 
2019-20. HAP is AHA’s largest single expense item and is generally offset dollar-for-dollar 
by the HAP subsidy received.   
 
It is important to note that Budget Authority for HAP is provided by HUD on a calendar 
year basis. The current year’s federal budget was approved in March 2019 and provided 
for 100% renewal of the prior year’s expenditure to allow for a Budget Approval of 
$31,524,730 for calendar year 2019.  Staff are working to increase voucher issuance 
significantly over the summer but a conservative approach has been adopted in this 
budget because landlords who are willing to take vouchers are still difficult to find and 
some new voucher holders end up porting out and being absorbed elsewhere. AHA will 
be able to draw down the additional funds from HUD if efforts are successful. 
 
In 2014 HUD moved the cash reserves from all Housing Authorities into a HUD-held 
account. These HUD-held HAP reserves can be used anytime AHA’s Budget Authority 
from HUD is insufficient to meet AHA’s HAP needs, as long as AHA does not exceed its 
baseline number of units in any calendar year. AHA’s baseline number of units is 22,620 
(or 1,885 x 12 months). The FY 2019-20 budget assumes leasing of 18,024 units in the 
year (or 1,502 per month), which compares with 17,626 unit months leased (or 1,469 per 
month) for FY 2018-19.  As of the end of April 2019, AHA had $473,475 in its HUD-held 
HAP Reserve, but this is expected to grow before the year end.  
 
C: OPERATING BUDGET 
 
Attachment C provides a detailed breakdown of the operating budget including day-to-
day operating income and expenses for all areas of the agency’s activity.  The operating 
budget includes the income and expenses for rental housing and commercial use 
properties, Housing Programs Department administration, the Housing Successor 
Assets, Housing and Community Development, the Rent Stabilization Program as well as 
CDBG, HOME, BMR, and other City programs that are reimbursed with City funds. The 
operating budget does not include HAP pass-through to private landlords; however, it 
does include current income for units where AHA is the owner/landlord. 
 
OPERATING INCOME 
Total operating income for FY 2019-20 is $17,004,796, which compares to a budgeted 
$16,051,618 for FY 2018-19.    
 

• Rent payments from tenants and HAP payments from HUD in all AHA-owned 
properties. This is budgeted at $12,489,060. This results from a small contract 
increase for all Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) and Project Based Voucher (PBV) 
holders to the Project Based Voucher (PBV) payment standard, which started in 
January 2019.  This significantly increased the rental income for AHA, without 
negatively impacting the voucher holders because the tenant portion of rent is 
dependent on household income unless tenants are over housed. These increases 
are applied at different times throughout the budgeted year, bringing the total to an 

Page 60

Page 60 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 4 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

average increase of 4% in total tenant revenue income. For HCV- or PBV-assisted 
units, the tenant portion may vary through the year since the tenant portion in many 
units is dependent on the household income. Over-housed households have been 
offered downsizing opportunities in an effort to relieve rent burdens as rents 
increase.  

 
• Tax Increment Funding (also known as CIC) for Independence Plaza estimated 

to be $1,733,340 for FY 2019-20 based on the prior year. However, this may 
eventually be lower (as low as $1.2 million), offset by higher rents as the property 
moves to the new rental system and additional Section 8 voucher holders are 
housed with the 504/AHA rehabilitation completion. Staff will manage rental and 
CIC income throughout the year to ensure ongoing stability.  

 
• Commercial lease income from Alameda Family Services, HeadStart childcare 

center, and the parking lease at Esperanza. 
 
The operating budget utilizes the Gross Potential Rent (GPR) method, which assumes all 
units are leased at the current contract rent every night of the year. A 3% vacancy loss 
has been assumed, except at Rosefield which is at 50% for the future rehabilitation 
project.  
 
Grant Income: This income is received through the Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) 
program and can only be used to support that program. The grant operates on a calendar 
year and the grant for 2019 is $61,124.  For FY 2019-20, staff has budgeted 12 months 
of new grant income based on the 2019 funding. If the grant is not forthcoming for 2020, 
staff will review with the Board whether to continue with the FSS program.  
 
Administrative Fee Income: The Administrative Fee is paid by HUD and can only be 
used by AHA to cover the cost of administration for the administration of the Housing 
Choice Voucher program (and all the special programs funded under this ACC). The 
Administrative Fee is included at a proration of 79.9% for the full fiscal year. It should be 
noted that HUD has proposed to change the method for calculating the fee that could 
negatively impact the budget in the future.  In the event of major changes to Administrative 
Fee and/or HAP with the new budget in the fall, staff will return to the Board for a budget 
adjustment if necessary.  
 
Staff has used a base number of leased units as 1,485 units for the coming year (which 
is the current rate of leased units). This assumes that AHA can continue to offer rents at 
or close to 100% FMR and there is no significant loss of units. Any changes in market 
rents could negatively impact this assumption.  
 
Based on this, total Administrative Fees are expected to be $1,765,946. This is an 
increase of $189,420 from the $1,546,526 budgeted in FY 2018-19.   Staff continues to 
use the landlord lease-up incentive for transferring voucher holders in order to maximize 
use of our reserves and maintain affordable housing supply in Alameda.  AHA is in the 
process of issuing 150 vouchers to those on the Section 8 HCV waitlist created in 2015.  

Page 61 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 5 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

Other Income: Other income includes maintenance fees and late fees, laundry 
commission, reimbursement billing from the City of Alameda for managing the CDBG, 
HOME and Rent Stabilization programs, land trust rents for Regent Street and Santa 
Clara Avenue properties, Island City Development Annual Services Agreement fee, and 
interest income. Few changes are expected in these areas. Interest income is expected 
to remain low as interest rates continue to be at historic lows.  
 
One-Time Income: In FY 2019-2020 a developer fee is expected to be received by ICD 
for Everett Commons and Rosefield Village. Per the Joint Development Agreement with 
AHA, the fee is split 90% to ICD and 10% to AHA. The total estimated fee to AHA is 
$174,300.  
 
OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Total operating expenses for FY 2019-20 is $15,091,055 which is 4% higher than the FY 
2018-19 budget. Directors have reviewed their operating expenses closely this year which 
has led to some decreases, offset by an increased to personnel costs.  
 
Personnel Expenses: The Schedule of Authorized Positions is shown in Attachment E 
of the proposed budget.  AHA personnel direct costs are $8,122,777 and consist of 54% 
of the operating budget.  (These numbers do not include additional minor personnel costs 
included in the budget related to Rosefield Village and Eagle Village for the John Stewart 
Company.) Changes made to this schedule since the prior budget include:  
 

• The removal of one vacant Housing Specialist position in the Housing Program 
Department.  

• The addition of one Management Analyst in the Administration Department; this 
position would perform a variety of analytical and compliance work agency-wide, 
with a focus on procurement.  

• A shift in staffing of Resident Manager staff that includes one FTE for ABD, rather 
than one Resident Manager at .6 FTE and one Assistant Manager at .25 FTE. The 
salary allocated to this property will be used flexibly in the upcoming year to support 
staffing; initially, the Resident Manager’s hours will increase to .75 FTE while 
weekend support from the Assistant will be reduced by 50%. Further reductions in 
weekend staffing may occur during the budget period.  
 

This budget for FY 2019-20 also includes the following positions which are currently 
vacant and not yet at the employment offer stage: Deputy Executive Director, Rent 
Stabilization Program Specialist, Maintenance Supervisor, Resident Manager (Parrot 
Village), and Management Analyst (one or two for Administration). All of these positions, 
with the exception of the Maintenance Supervisor, are in active recruitment process and 
it is anticipated that these positions will be filled in the coming months.   
 
The budget includes a proposed cost of living adjustment (COLA) of up to 3%. The final 
amount (which may exceed 3%) will be calculated each year according to the CPI for the 
San Francisco area as reported from the Bureau of Labor Statistics and proposed to the 
Board; AHA has historically used the June data and proposed any final COLA adjustment 
to the Board in August. The COLA, if approved, will be applied retroactively to July 1, and 

Page 62

Page 62 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 6 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

in accordance with policies contained in AHA’s Employee Policies and Procedures 
Handbook.  
 
AHA provides a maximum flat rate payment for medical and one for dental/vision 
insurance. This contribution is approved by the Board in August, and goes into effect in 
January of each year, as premium amounts change on a calendar year (rather than a 
fiscal year).   
 
Last year, the maximum AHA contribution beginning January 1, 2019 was equivalent to 
the 2019 Kaiser “employee plus two or more” premium cost of $1,997.45 per employee 
per month plus comparable coverage for dental insurance at a cost of $234.06 per 
employee per month. Last year the budget under-budgeted for medical and dental, but 
thanks to vacancies and reduced rates last year, AHA did not exceed the budgeted 
amounts. This year, staff has budgeted the full amount for medical and dental, so there 
is a larger than expected increase in this category. The budget also assumes all 
employees take the medical allowance at the level of the employee plus two or more 
dependents. Staff has assumed a 7.5% increase in the cost of medical insurance and a 
5% increase in other benefit costs over the 2019 rates. Although the Board is approving 
the budget for these additional funds at this time, the final employer contribution for FY 
2020 will be brought to the Board for approval in August 2019, along with the COLA 
request, after 2020 premiums are released by CalPERS in July.  
 
No additional changes to salary, beyond the COLA are proposed here; however, AHA is 
currently conducting a compensation study for non-Director exempt positions, and will 
follow that with a study of non-exempt positions. As that data becomes available, any 
proposed changes to wage range assignments will be brought to the Board in the form of 
a revised Pay Schedule and with an estimate of the budgetary impact. Given the currently 
low levels of unemployment in the Bay Area, staff expect that a number of positions will 
require repositioning on the salary schedule and there may be a need for increases on 
the personnel budget in the long term.   Also, a full class and compensation study is being 
recommended as part of the 3-year Strategic Plan. Compensation studies for specific 
vacant roles may be conducted, if necessary.  
 
Since 2016 staff has been offered vacation payout at least once a year. The amounts 
paid out in prior years were less than $10,000 and therefore it has not been separately 
budgeted for in FY 2019-20. Management intends to offer this opportunity at least 
annually going forward. 
 
Non-Personnel Expenses: These expenses include costs such as telephone and 
computer expenses, recruitment, temporary employees, audits, and supplies. Generally, 
these costs have remained relatively flat year on year with exceptions noted below.  
 

Page 63 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 7 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

Recruiting fees have also been added as a new budget line item because of the tight job 
market and the need to fill positions.  Utilizing recruitment firms in the current market has 
resulted in success at filling vacant exempt positions.   
 
Legal Expenses: Legal expenses for general operations are expected to remain 
relatively flat at approximately $260,000. These costs include terminations of tenancy, 
personnel matters, and legal advice on actual and potential claims against the agency. In 
addition, staff have budgeted for General Counsel to attend each Board meeting in FY 
2019-20.  
 
IT Services: A number of IT related lines have increased reflecting increased technology 
needs in each program, hardware replacements as well as a new database for the Rent 
Stabilization Program. 
 
Training and Conferences: These budgeted expenses are approximately $160,000 and 
are expected to remain more or less flat (against the prior budget). The budget for FY 
2018-19 is slightly underutilized, but is expected to be fully utilized in FY 2019-20 due to 
the filling of vacancies, especially at the management and independent contributor levels, 
and as an investment in agency-wide training. Best practices for staff training require 
regularly scheduled professional and housing re-certification training to address changing 
regulations, and staff will focus some additional agency time and resources on general 
staff and supervisor training needs. The budget also includes funds for Board training and 
conferences.   
 
Tenant Services: The salaries for Resident Managers and Assistant Resident Managers 
are included in this line item. Their benefits are also shown here, in-line with the approach 
adopted for administrative salaries. 
 
Tenant Activities include a $20,000 scholarship fund for the Alameda Boys and Girls Club 
for children and youth who live in Housing Authority complexes or whose families are on 
a program operated by the Housing Programs Department. This scholarship fund will rise 
to $25,000 in FY 2020-21. The budget also includes funds for two full time social workers 
through the LifeSTEPS social services provider, as in prior years.  

 
Utilities: The amounts budgeted for utilities are based on actual utility expenditures in 
the current fiscal year or a projected 3% rate increase over last year’s budget.  If usage 
for the current year is significantly different than last year’s budget, the actual utility 
expenditure amount was budgeted for FY 2019-20. 
 

Page 64

Page 64 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 8 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

General: This line item includes the cost of community policing and auto/property/ liability 
insurance. The cost for community policing will stay the same at $210,000 for FY 2019-
20 under the Services Agreements with the City. All costs will be met by the rental 
properties.  
 
Predevelopment Costs are expenses associated with a project under consideration for 
development (building or extensive rehabilitation) prior to the formal approval process of 
approving a development and the needed funding. Predevelopment costs for projects that 
have been green-lighted to move forward are paid by Island City Development (ICD), 
which was formed to manage real estate development on behalf of AHA. Feasibility 
studies may be conducted by AHA prior to ICD involvement. AHA Predevelopment Costs 
that are not covered by ICD are budgeted to be approximately $100,000 in FY 2019-20 
as in prior years. 
 
D: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP) BUDGET 
 
Attachment D shows the one-year capital budget. The proposed Capital Projects budget 
for FY 2019-20 includes 5 major repair projects at 5 properties, plus three major real 
estate development projects. The estimated total cost of these combined projects is 
$8,231,000, of which $7,000,000 is a previously approved loan for the Rosefield Village 
redevelopment project which is anticipated to start construction in spring 2020.  
 
The identified projects include capital work that is proposed to be contracted in the next 
fiscal year. Work will be done according to urgency and availability of funds and staff 
capacity.  Once approved in this budget, these projects will be funded from the following 
sources and where possible, in this order: 
 

- CDBG/HOME or other third party or grant funding 

- Cash flow from the specific property 
 
OPERATING BUDGET BY PROGRAM 
 
Property Management: Attachment C shows the operating budgets for each cluster of 
properties. It should be noted that one AHA-owned property, Rosefield Village, 
transferred to third party management with the John Stewart Company (JSCO) on July 1, 
2017 in order to facilitate the rehabilitation or demolition and rebuild of the site.  However, 
both the income and expense of this property will remain on the AHA books until the 
property is refinanced with low-income housing tax credits and ownership is transferred 
to a limited partnership. Eagle Village moved to third party management on February 1, 
2019.  Four properties (Anne B. Diament, China Clipper Plaza, Stanford House, and 
Lincoln-Willow Apartments) transferred ownership to AAHC on May 1, 2018. Although 
these properties are included below for comparison purposes, the AAHC Board will 
separately approve the AAHC budget. Central costs are allocated using the same Cost 
Allocation Plan to all properties under AHA and AAHC ownership. 
      

Page 65

Page 65 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 9 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

Housing Programs Dept. (HPD) The Housing Programs Department has a budgeted a 
loss of $1,453,087 for FY 2019-20, and the projected actual loss for FY 2018-19 is 
expected to be closer to $300,000 due to reduced central operating costs and reduced 
staffing costs. While this loss is not new, the loss has increased due to increases in direct 
and indirect budgeted staffing costs (including increasing the benefits budget to 100% 
rather than the proration used last year), a decrease in vouchers leased (which affects 
the Administrative Fee formula), and due to a change in the allocation of staff in the HPD 
in the Cost Allocation Plan. Staff will continue to seek ways to keep these costs under 
budget in the coming year and this is also a goal for the Strategic Plan.  
 
Housing and Community Development (HCD): The Housing and Community 
Development budget includes real estate, asset management, and City Housing 
Programs. The City Housing Programs include CDBG, HOME, BMR homeownership, and 
other related housing initiatives. The City Council approves a separate budget for each 
of these programs as described below. Approximately half of the HCD staff salaries and 
benefits are paid by City programs on a reimbursement basis, and all other program costs 
are directly reimbursed in full by the various program areas. The City’s two-year budget 
for FY 2019-21 is expected to be approved by City Council on June 18, 2019.  
 
In FY 2019-20, the City will receive $1,122,143 in CDBG grant funds.  The funds will be 
used to fund city-wide social service programs (limited by statute to 15% of the total grant 
amount), to provide fair housing and tenant counseling services, to perform capital 
improvement projects, such as water main replacement and accessibility improvements, 
to make repairs and improvements to rental and owner-occupied housing units, and to 
pay for administrative costs (limited to 20% of the total grant amount).  
 
In FY 2019-20, the City will receive $221,998 in HOME funds.  The funds are awarded 
through an Agreement with Alameda County.  Up to $12,763 of the total HOME funds 
may be used for administrative costs. 
 
The City also maintains two affordable housing funds that are restricted for eligible 
housing-related purposes. The income is derived from repayment of prior down payment-
assistance loans and the in-lieu or linkage fees paid by developers to meet the 
requirements of the City’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance. In FY 2019-20, sufficient 
funds have been budgeted to pay for staffing and professional consultants to support 
affordable housing services and development projects.  This includes consultant services 
to manage the below-market rate (BMR) homeownership program. 
 
In FY 2019-2020 HCD staff will be working on two large development projects – Rosefield 
Village and North Housing.  The predevelopment funding for these projects has been 
approved and budgeted in prior cycles and ICD is the developer. Additional development 
opportunities are covered under predevelopment costs, as discussed above.  
 
Housing Successor: In 2012, after the dissolution of redevelopment in the state of 
California, the City of Alameda became the Successor Agency to the Community 
Improvement Commission (CIC) and authorized the assumption by the AHA of the rights, 
powers, assets, liabilities, duties, and obligations associated with the housing activities of 
the CIC, known as the Housing Successor Assets. The expenses associated with 

Page 66

Page 66 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 10 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

managing the Housing Successor for FY 2019-20 is almost $200,000 to be paid from 
existing Housing Successor funds. Salary and benefit costs are limited by State law to 
$200,000 annually for Successor Agency Housing Assets administration.  
 
Rent Program (RSP): In FY 2019-20, the Rent Stabilization Program will receive up to 
$1,110,000 to administer the Rent Review, Rent Stabilization and Limitations on Evictions 
Ordinance for the City. The budget assumes the COLA change in benefits allocation to 
match the agency–wide costs and full staffing. With the exception of the administrative 
overhead costs, the program is a reimbursement-only program. It is important to note that 
the $290,504 deficit in this program is driven primarily by central office costs, including 
the vacant Deputy Executive Director position. The actual deficit, if any, may be lower. 
Staff will attempt to include some of these costs as reimbursable when the contract is 
next negotiated. Although the service agreement with the City ends on June 30, 2020, 
with all the current and upcoming programmatic changes proposed for the RSP, staff 
anticipate that the City will need to revise both the service agreement and the budget to 
address these updates to the program. If this results in the program incurring added costs, 
due to additional services and staffing required to implement these changes, AHA would 
request supplementary funds from the City to cover any new expenses. 

DISCUSSION OF ACCOUNTING ISSUES   
 
Cost Allocation Plan: The Cost Allocation Plan (CAP) (available on request) is 
completed at least once a year and allocates costs based on metrics.  The metrics 
range from the number of hours worked on a project to the number of bedrooms in a 
complex to the amount of expenses paid for an item the prior year.  The metrics are 
mostly pulled from the Agency’s database, Yardi, or from verifiable data (such as the 
number of units in a specific complex).  The CAP explains the logic behind the 
distribution of different costs including legal costs, audit costs, travel and training, and 
salaries and benefits.  Staff calculates out a salary distribution for every position in the 
Agency based on the position’s primary duties and functions.  Some positions are 
allocated to only one department while others are allocated across numerous 
departments.  
 
The CAP contains the following major changes: 

• Creating an indirect cost center for some programs/properties  
• Salary Allocations – every year the duties of each employee are reviewed 

along with the allocation of those duties 
• Updated Positions – eliminated positions were removed and new positions 

were added 
 
Previously the Finance Department underwent a review by Nan McKay & Associates.  
One recommendation was to replace the CAP with a Cost Pool Plan or other method to 
capture direct and indirect costs at each property.  Staff are currently reviewing a 
realignment of property costs to an asset management fee-based model to improve 
tracking of direct and indirect costs to the properties and to better position properties for 
a refinancing using affordable housing industry best practices. This options model is 
similar to the Cost Pool Plan recommended by Nan McKay & Associates in 2017. Any 

Page 67

Page 67 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 11 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

new proposed model would come back to the Board for review and approval prior to 
implementation.  However, due to the amount of work needed and impact on the 
budgeting process, this is not expected to be implemented before the FY 2020-21 
budget.  
  
Fund Transfers: The General Fund is not an operating fund, and therefore does not 
generate its own cash flow. The only way to get cash into the General Fund is to make 
transfers from other funds with available excess cash reserves. Staff will make transfers 
as necessary during the budget year in accordance with the agency’s interfund transfer 
policy. 
 
Data Presentation: In reviewing the final memo staff noted there may be a few minor 
inconsistences (usually $3 or less) in totals between attachments, which is caused by 
the accounting system rounding of monthly income and expenses. Furthermore, budget 
numbers for FY 2019-20 includes both depreciation and $210,000 of policing. These 
two items were accidently omitted in certain parts of the FY 2018-19 budget memo but 
have been corrected on Schedule C to ensure like for like comparison between budget 
years. The budget to actuals for FY 2018-19 utilizes a discounted benefit budget. For 
FY 2019-20 this has been corrected to the full benefit cost to ensure the budget can 
bear the full potential cost.  Finally, projected actuals in Schedule A for FY 2018-19 may 
be somewhat lower than expected for the year end. They reflect actuals to March 31 
projected forward to the year end. Expenses tend to lag unit the final quarter of the year 
and both income and expenses for Rosefield Village (9 months) and Eagle Village (2 
months) are not reflect. There is adequate room on the FY 2018-19 budget to absorb 
any uptick in costs in the final quarter. 

Depreciation: Depreciation is an accounting method to recognize the cost of buildings 
and equipment over time. Per the Capitalization Policy, which was effective July 1, 
2016, AHA uses the straight-line method of depreciation. When an asset is purchased, 
a cash expense is incurred. Depreciation is not a cash expense, but an accrual expense 
to financially match the expense with the period of usage. 
 
Other: Certain items are not budget items but will impact available cash in FY 2019-20. 

• Jack Capon Villa: AHA expects to receive approximately $22,300 principal 
payment from Jack Capon Villa for the loan it made to the limited partnership.  

 
Payments to CalPERS for Outstanding Liabilities: As a local government agency, 
AHA has to maintain its books by standards set by the Government Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). Each year the GASB sets guidelines for accounting practices and 
identifies them by number. Starting in FY16, AHA has had to operate by GASB rules, 
pension, and post-employment liabilities. These rules require all government agencies 
(States, Counties, Cities, and Special Purpose Local Governments) to report pension and 
post-employment liabilities up front which have historically been reported on a pay as you 
go basis by all government entities. Since AHA is a member of the CalPERS retirement 
system, AHA is required to report each year on any unfunded pension liability.  Please 
note that this budget does not include further GASB-68 or OPEB contributions beyond 
the $1 million already made in 2016 for GASB 68 retirement costs and the payment of 

Page 68

Page 68 of 116



Honorable Chair and                                              June 19, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners                                                    Page 12 of 12 
  

                                                                                                           

$981,940 made in June 2017 to open the AHA’s CBERT 115 trust account for OPEB. A 
discussion of additional recommendations for a second 115 trust for the retirement liability 
is being brought to the Board for approval at this meeting.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The operating budget for FY 2019-20 reflects an operating surplus of $531,777 after 
depreciation and FY 2019-20 shows use of $8,231,000 of reserves for substantial CIP 
including the redevelopment of Rosefield Village.  The CIP work will be paid from 
accumulated operating reserves if project-specific funding or property reserves are not 
available. AHA unrestricted operating reserves as of May 31, 2019 were in excess of $20 
million. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Executive Director and staff recommend the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the City of Alameda approve the Housing Authority’s Budget for Fiscal Year 
2019-20 including approval of: 
 

i. Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Budget and related expenditure of HUD-held HAP 
reserves (Attachment B) 

iv. Revised Schedule of Authorized Positions to be effective July 1, 2019 (Attachment E) 
v. Transfer by the Executive Director of up to $1,453,087 in this budget year, as needed, from 

AHA property reserves to cover losses in the Section 8/Housing Programs operating 
budget (Attachment C) 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Vanessa M. Cooper 
Executive Director 
 
VC: 
 
Attachments: 

- Attachment A: Summary of the FY 2019-20 Budget  
- Attachment B: Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) 2019-20 Budget  
- Attachment C: Detailed Operating 2019-20 Budget 
- Attachment D: Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 2019-20 Budget 
- Attachment E: Schedule of Authorized positions to be effective July 1, 2019 
- Attachment F: Resolution 

Page 69

Page 69 of 116



FY
 1
9‐
20

 P
ro
je
ct
ed

 A
ct
ua

ls 
 B
ud

ge
t 

 V
ar
ia
nc
e 

 B
ud

ge
t 

 A
m
ou

nt
 

%
Re

nt
al

12
,1
79

,2
19

   
   
   
   

11
,9
73

,1
24

   
   

20
6,
09

4
   
   
   
  

12
,4
89

,0
60

   
   

51
5,
93

6
   
   
  

4%
G
ra
nt
 (F

SS
)

61
,1
24

   
   
   
   
   
   
 

61
,1
24

   
   
   
   
  

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

61
,1
24

   
   
   
   
  

‐
   
   
   
   
   
  

0%
Ad

m
in
ist
ra
tiv

e 
Fe
es

1,
67

9,
35

8
   
   
   
   
  

1,
63

4,
82

8
   
   
  

44
,5
30

   
   
   
   
 

1,
76

5,
94

6
   
   
  

13
1,
11

8
   
   
  

8%
O
th
er

1,
15

0,
28

2
   
   
   
   
  

2,
38

2,
54

1
   
   
  

(1
,2
32

,2
60

)
   
   

2,
68

8,
66

9
   
   
  

30
6,
12

8
   
   
  

13
%

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
In
co
m
e

15
,0
69

,9
82

   
   
   
   

16
,0
51

,6
18

   
   

(9
81

,6
36

)
   
   
   

17
,0
04

,7
99

   
   

95
3,
18

1
   
   
  

6%
‐

   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Ad
m
in
ist
ra
tiv

e
6,
54

0,
30

9
   
   
   
   
  

8,
44

0,
71

3
   
   
  

(1
,9
00

,4
04

)
   
   

9,
34

5,
33

5
90

4,
62

2
   
   
  

11
%

Te
na

nt
/S
oc
ia
l S
er
vi
ce
s

79
0,
91

0
   
   
   
   
   
  

65
2,
18

5
   
   
   
   

13
8,
72

4
   
   
   
  

79
8,
86

1
   
   
   
   

14
6,
67

6
   
   
  

22
%

U
til
iti
es

1,
17

2,
42

7
   
   
   
   
  

1,
30

2,
26

9
   
   
  

(1
29

,8
42

)
   
   
   

1,
20

9,
46

1
(9
2,
80

8)
   
   
   

‐7
%

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

1,
87

6,
41

1
   
   
   
   
  

2,
49

8,
13

6
   
   
  

(6
21

,7
26

)
   
   
   

2,
24

4,
97

0
(2
53

,1
66

)
   
   
 

‐1
0%

G
en

er
al
/O

th
er

1,
63

5,
50

0
   
   
   
   
  

1,
65

5,
73

3
   
   
  

(2
0,
23

4)
   
   
   
   

‐
   
  

1,
49

2,
42

8
(1
63

,3
05

)
   
   
 

‐1
0%

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex
pe

ns
es

12
,0
15

,5
57

   
   
   
   

14
,5
49

,0
37

   
   

(2
,5
33

,4
80

)
   
   

15
,0
91

,0
55

   
   

54
2,
01

8
   
   
  

4%
‐

   
   
   
   
   
   
 

N
ET

 O
PE

RA
TI
N
G
 IN

CO
M
E

3,
05

4,
42

6
   
   
   
   
  

1,
50

2,
58

1
   
   
  

1,
55

1,
84

4
   
   
 

1,
91

3,
74

4
   
   
  

41
1,
16

3
   
   
  

27
%

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

HA
P 
in
co
m
e

32
,0
45

,2
03

   
   
   
   

30
,1
30

,9
14

   
   

1,
91

4,
28

9
   
   
 

30
,1
44

,2
67

   
   

13
,3
53

   
   
   
 

0%
HA

P 
Ex
pe

ns
es

32
,0
45

,2
03

   
   
   
   

30
,1
30

,9
14

   
   

1,
91

4,
28

9
   
   
 

30
,1
44

,2
67

   
   

13
,3
53

   
   
   
 

0%

N
ET

 H
AP

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

‐
   
   
   
   
   
  

Le
ss
: D

ep
re
ci
at
io
n

1,
14

9,
80

6
   
   
   
   
  

1,
55

2,
83

3
   
   
  

(4
03

,0
27

)
   
   
   

1,
38

1,
96

4
   
   
  

(1
70

,8
69

)
   
   
 

‐1
1%

O
PE

RA
TI
N
G
 IN

CO
M
E 
AF

TE
R 
D
EP

RE
CI
AT

IO
N

1,
90

4,
61

9
   
   
   
   
  

(5
0,
25

2)
   
   
   
   
 

1,
95

4,
87

1
   
   
 

53
1,
78

0
   
   
   
  

58
2,
03

2
   
   
  

‐1
15

8%

47
,1
15

,1
85

$ 
   
   
  

46
,1
82

,5
31

$ 
   

93
2,
65

3
$ 
   
   
 

‐
$ 
  

47
,1
49

,0
66

$ 
   

96
6,
53

5
$ 
   
  

6%
45

,2
10

,5
66

$ 
   
   
  

46
,2
32

,7
83

$ 
   

1,
02

2,
21

7
‐$
   
  

‐
$ 
  

46
,6
17

,2
86

$ 
   

38
4,
50

3
$ 
   
  

‐7
%

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut
ho

rit
y 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 o
f A

la
m
ed

a
At
ta
ch
m
en

t A
:  
Su

m
m
ar
y 
FY
 2
01

9‐
20

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
 1
8‐
19

Ch
an

ge

Page 70

Page 70 of 116



At
ta

ch
m

en
t B

: H
AP

 p
as

s t
hr

ou
gh

Pr
og

ra
m

Sh
el

te
r P

lu
s

 B
es

si
e 

Co
le

m
an

 
SR

O
 

 V
AS

H 
FY

 1
8-

19
HA

P
17

 U
ni

ts
 3

0 
U

ni
ts

 
 1

0 
U

ni
ts

 
To

ta
l

Bu
dg

et
$

%

HU
D 

su
bs

id
y 

re
ve

nu
e

29
,3

82
,8

76
  

18
3,

60
0

  
13

1,
18

4
  

29
,6

97
,6

60
  

29
,8

44
,9

85
  

(1
47

,3
25

)
   

   
   

-0
.5

%
Re

nt
al

 A
ss

ist
an

ce
 (f

ro
m

 
Al

am
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

)
44

6,
60

4
   

   
44

6,
60

4
   

   
  

28
5,

92
9

   
   

  
16

0,
67

5
   

   
   

  
56

.2
%

To
ta

l H
U

D 
Su

bs
id

y 
Re

ve
nu

e
29

,3
82

,8
76

  
44

6,
60

4
   

   
18

3,
60

0
  

13
1,

18
4

  
30

,1
44

,2
64

  
30

,1
30

,9
14

  
13

,3
50

   
   

   
   

 

29
,3

82
,8

76
  

44
6,

60
4

   
   

18
3,

60
0

  
13

1,
18

4
  

30
,1

44
,2

64
  

30
,1

30
,9

14
  

13
,3

50
   

   
   

   
 

0.
04

%
To

ta
l E

xp
en

se
s

29
,3

82
,8

76
  

44
6,

60
4

   
   

18
3,

60
0

  
13

1,
18

4
  

30
,1

44
,2

64
  

30
,1

30
,9

14
  

13
,3

50
   

   
   

   
 

0.
04

%

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
In

co
m

e/
Lo

ss
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   

In
cr

ea
se

/(
De

cr
ea

se
)

Page 71

Page 71 of 116



H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f A

la
m

ed
a

At
ta

ch
m

en
t C

: D
et

ai
le

d 
20

19
-2

0 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Bu
dg

et
1 

of
 4

AA
H

C 
O

w
ne

d 
Pr

op
er

tie
s

AH
A 

O
w

ne
d 

Pr
op

er
tie

s
H

CV
/S

ec
tio

n 
8 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns

H
ou

si
ng

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

Re
nt

 
Pr

og
ra

m
s

To
ta

l F
Y 

20
19

-2
0 

Bu
dg

et

To
ta

l 
FY

20
18

-1
9 

Bu
dg

et

Ch
an

ge
 

Am
ou

nt
Ch

an
ge

 %

69
99

99
0

IN
CO

M
E

70
00

00
0

RE
VE

NU
E

70
20

00
0

TE
NA

NT
 R

EV
EN

UE
70

20
11

0
Va

ca
nc

y 
Lo

ss
-5

6,
61

5.
00

-5
72

,2
58

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-6
28

,8
73

.0
0

-8
30

,1
56

.0
0

20
1,

28
3.

00
-2

4%
70

20
13

0
W

rit
e 

Of
f

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-9
7,

81
2.

00
97

,8
12

.0
0

-1
00

%
70

30
00

0
Te

na
nt

 R
en

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
47

5,
92

3.
00

3,
25

8,
42

8.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
73

4,
35

1.
00

4,
05

0,
34

1.
00

-3
15

,9
90

.0
0

-8
%

70
30

03
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
,3

00
.0

0
-1

4,
30

0.
00

-1
00

%
70

30
06

0
Ta

x 
In

cr
em

en
t P

ay
m

en
ts

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f A

la
m

0.
00

1,
73

3,
34

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
73

3,
34

0.
00

1,
73

3,
34

5.
00

-5
.0

0
0%

70
30

10
0

Te
na

nt
 H

AP
 S

ub
sid

y
1,

42
7,

75
7.

00
6,

19
2,

42
5.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
7,

62
0,

18
2.

00
7,

11
7,

40
7.

00
50

2,
77

5.
00

7%
70

30
30

0
Co

m
m

er
cia

l R
en

ts
0.

00
30

,0
60

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

30
,0

60
.0

0
27

,9
11

.0
0

2,
14

9.
00

8%
70

50
00

0
TO

TA
L 

TE
NA

NT
 R

EV
EN

UE
1,

84
7,

06
5.

00
10

,6
41

,9
95

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

12
,4

89
,0

60
.0

0
12

,0
15

,3
36

.0
0

47
3,

72
4.

00
4%

71
00

00
0

OT
HE

R 
IN

CO
M

E
71

10
01

0
In

ve
st

m
en

t I
nc

om
e 

- U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

13
,6

08
.0

0
85

,9
97

.0
0

14
8.

00
34

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

13
4,

25
3.

00
74

,9
25

.0
0

59
,3

28
.0

0
79

%
71

10
01

1
In

te
re

st
 In

co
m

e
27

,3
24

.0
0

20
7,

60
3.

00
0.

00
51

,4
44

.0
0

0.
00

28
6,

37
1.

00
0.

00
28

6,
37

1.
00

71
10

01
2

PF
M

-I
nv

es
tm

en
t I

nc
om

e
0.

00
23

,8
80

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

23
,8

80
.0

0
0.

00
23

,8
80

.0
0

71
10

01
3

Co
up

on
/I

nt
er

es
t/D

iv
id

en
d 

In
co

m
e

0.
00

0.
00

36
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
36

.0
0

0.
00

36
.0

0
71

10
02

0
In

te
re

st
 o

n 
Eq

ui
p.

 R
es

er
ve

89
2.

00
2,

09
8.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
2,

99
0.

00
0.

00
2,

99
0.

00
71

10
03

0
In

te
re

st
 E

ar
ne

d 
on

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

se
rv

e
0.

00
62

4.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

62
4.

00
0.

00
62

4.
00

71
10

06
0

In
te

re
st

 - 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t R
es

er
ve

19
,1

04
.0

0
29

,0
24

.0
0

14
5.

00
0.

00
0.

00
48

,2
73

.0
0

0.
00

48
,2

73
.0

0
71

10
07

0
Ot

he
r -

 In
co

m
e

0.
00

7,
32

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

7,
32

0.
00

0.
00

7,
32

0.
00

71
10

07
5

La
un

dr
y 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n

7,
42

8.
00

19
,2

55
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
26

,6
83

.0
0

30
,6

72
.0

0
-3

,9
89

.0
0

-1
3%

71
10

08
2

La
nd

 F
ee

/G
ro

un
d 

Le
as

e
0.

00
5,

36
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
5,

36
4.

00
5,

36
4.

00
0.

00
0%

71
10

09
0

Ot
he

r M
isc

el
la

ne
ou

s 
Re

ve
nu

e
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
39

0,
00

0.
00

-3
90

,0
00

.0
0

-1
00

%
71

10
09

2
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

 R
ev

en
ue

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
02

4,
81

2.
00

1,
11

0,
00

0.
00

2,
13

4,
81

2.
00

1,
83

9,
36

9.
00

29
5,

44
3.

00
16

%
71

50
07

0
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Fe
e

0.
00

0.
00

18
,0

63
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
18

,0
63

.0
0

0.
00

18
,0

63
.0

0
71

59
00

0
TO

TA
L 

OT
HE

R 
IN

CO
M

E
68

,3
56

.0
0

38
1,

16
5.

00
18

,3
92

.0
0

1,
11

0,
75

6.
00

1,
11

0,
00

0.
00

2,
68

8,
66

9.
00

2,
34

0,
33

0.
00

34
8,

33
9.

00
15

%
80

00
00

0
HU

D 
GR

AN
T

80
10

00
0

HU
D 

Op
er

at
in

g 
Gr

an
ts

0.
00

0.
00

61
,1

24
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
61

,1
24

.0
0

61
,1

24
.0

0
0.

00
0%

80
20

00
0

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Fe

es
 fr

om
 H

UD
0.

00
0.

00
1,

76
5,

94
6.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

76
5,

94
6.

00
1,

63
4,

82
8.

00
13

1,
11

8.
00

8%
81

00
12

0
TO

TA
L 

HU
D 

GR
AN

T
0.

00
0.

00
1,

82
7,

07
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

82
7,

07
0.

00
1,

69
5,

95
2.

00
13

1,
11

8.
00

8%
89

99
00

0
TO

TA
L 

RE
VE

NU
E

1,
91

5,
42

1.
00

11
,0

23
,1

60
.0

0
1,

84
5,

46
2.

00
1,

11
0,

75
6.

00
1,

11
0,

00
0.

00
17

,0
04

,7
99

.0
0

16
,0

51
,6

18
.0

0
95

3,
18

1.
00

6%

 P
ag

e 
1 

of
 4



H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f A

la
m

ed
a

At
ta

ch
m

en
t C

: D
et

ai
le

d 
20

19
-2

0 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Bu
dg

et
2 

of
 4

AA
H

C 
O

w
ne

d 
Pr

op
er

tie
s

AH
A 

O
w

ne
d 

Pr
op

er
tie

s
H

CV
/S

ec
tio

n 
8 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns

H
ou

si
ng

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

Re
nt

 
Pr

og
ra

m
s

To
ta

l F
Y 

20
19

-2
0 

Bu
dg

et

To
ta

l 
FY

20
18

-1
9 

Bu
dg

et

Ch
an

ge
 

Am
ou

nt
Ch

an
ge

 %

1,
77

6.
00

2,
27

2.
00

2,
10

0.
00

24
,0

00
.0

0
7,

42
8.

00
37

,5
76

.0
0

30
,5

04
.0

0
7,

07
2.

00
23

%
91

60
11

0
Le

ga
l E

xp
en

se
38

,4
00

.0
0

12
9,

69
2.

00
92

,0
04

.0
0

3,
00

0.
00

0.
00

26
3,

09
6.

00
26

6,
82

4.
00

-3
,7

28
.0

0
-1

%
91

60
11

1
Pa

yr
ol

l c
ha

rg
e

75
6.

00
3,

87
2.

00
2,

46
0.

00
90

0.
00

0.
00

7,
98

8.
00

9,
05

8.
00

-1
,0

70
.0

0
-1

2%
91

60
11

2
Su

rv
ey

/T
itl

e 
Fe

e
0.

00
2,

00
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
2,

00
4.

00
0.

00
2,

00
4.

00
91

60
11

3
Of

fic
e 

Re
nt

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
,2

00
.0

0
11

7,
13

2.
00

12
7,

33
2.

00
12

2,
21

2.
00

5,
12

0.
00

4%
91

60
12

0
Tr

ai
ni

ng
/C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

l
11

,7
48

.0
0

40
,5

52
.0

0
50

,0
04

.0
0

35
,3

76
.0

0
24

,9
96

.0
0

16
2,

67
6.

00
17

3,
83

0.
00

-1
1,

15
4.

00
-6

%
91

60
13

0
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
Du

es
 a

nd
 F

ee
s

1,
92

0.
00

6,
14

6.
00

2,
80

8.
00

50
4.

00
0.

00
11

,3
78

.0
0

12
,7

05
.0

0
-1

,3
27

.0
0

-1
0%

91
60

16
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s 
- A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
Se

rv
ice

s
0.

00
0.

00
3,

40
8.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3,

40
8.

00
0.

00
3,

40
8.

00
91

60
17

0
Co

nt
ra

ct
s 

- A
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Se

rv
ice

s/
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

15
,2

04
.0

0
99

,0
11

.0
0

62
,0

04
.0

0
18

4,
80

0.
00

31
,8

36
.0

0
39

2,
85

5.
00

32
5,

85
5.

00
67

,0
00

.0
0

21
%

91
60

18
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s 
- A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ice

 P
ro

vi
de

r -
 Y

ar
d

28
,2

60
.0

0
99

,0
74

.0
0

97
,1

40
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
22

4,
47

4.
00

15
0,

95
9.

00
73

,5
15

.0
0

49
%

91
60

19
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s 
- C

om
pu

te
r/

Te
le

ph
on

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
17

,4
96

.0
0

61
,3

16
.0

0
60

,1
20

.0
0

5,
04

0.
00

81
,0

00
.0

0
22

4,
97

2.
00

12
7,

97
3.

00
96

,9
99

.0
0

76
%

91
60

22
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s 
- H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Se

rv
ice

s
5,

86
8.

00
17

,7
08

.0
0

41
,1

96
.0

0
3,

00
0.

00
1,

06
8.

00
68

,8
40

.0
0

15
1,

03
0.

00
-8

2,
19

0.
00

-5
4%

91
60

23
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s 
- H

ou
sin

g 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ice
s

2,
43

6.
00

6,
28

0.
00

48
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
56

,7
16

.0
0

54
,9

61
.0

0
1,

75
5.

00
3%

91
60

26
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s 
- O

ffi
ce

 M
ac

hi
ne

 L
ea

se
1,

74
0.

00
6,

63
7.

00
6,

91
2.

00
0.

00
3,

19
2.

00
18

,4
81

.0
0

18
,8

22
.0

0
-3

41
.0

0
-2

%
91

60
27

0
Co

nt
ra

ct
s 

- W
eb

 H
os

tin
g/

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

/W
eb

 A
d

2,
12

4.
00

7,
41

2.
00

7,
28

4.
00

0.
00

43
2.

00
17

,2
52

.0
0

24
,6

17
.0

0
-7

,3
65

.0
0

-3
0%

91
60

29
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s 
- H

R 
Re

cr
ui

tm
en

t
7,

20
0.

00
56

,7
32

.0
0

69
,1

20
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
13

3,
05

2.
00

0.
00

13
3,

05
2.

00
91

60
51

0
As

so
cia

tio
n 

Du
es

0.
00

42
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
42

,0
00

.0
0

30
,4

22
.0

0
11

,5
78

.0
0

38
%

91
69

00
0

TO
TA

L 
AD

M
IN

IS
TR

AT
IV

E
58

8,
88

5.
00

2,
35

2,
20

4.
00

3,
23

9,
67

4.
00

1,
76

8,
89

2.
00

1,
39

5,
68

0.
00

9,
34

5,
33

5.
00

8,
44

0,
71

5.
00

90
4,

62
0.

00
11

%
92

00
00

0
TE

NA
NT

/S
OC

IA
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

/P
OL

IC
E

92
10

01
0

Te
na

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- S
al

ar
ie

s
0.

00
3,

44
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3,

44
4.

00
0.

00
3,

44
4.

00
92

10
03

0
Po

lic
e 

Se
rv

ice
s

22
,9

56
.0

0
18

0,
62

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
3,

57
6.

00
21

0,
00

0.
00

-6
,4

24
.0

0
-3

%
92

10
10

0
Te

na
nt

/S
oc

ia
l S

ev
ice

s 
-  

Sa
la

rie
s

31
,0

66
.0

0
16

2,
19

7.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

19
3,

26
3.

00
20

9,
84

5.
00

-1
6,

58
2.

00
-8

%
92

19
00

0
TO

TA
L 

TE
NA

NT
/S

OC
IA

L 
SE

RV
IC

ES
/P

OL
IC

E
54

,0
22

.0
0

34
6,

26
1.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
40

0,
28

3.
00

41
9,

84
5.

00
-1

9,
56

2.
00

-5
%

 P
ag

e 
2 

of
 4

Page 73

Page 73 of 116



H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f A

la
m

ed
a

At
ta

ch
m

en
t C

: D
et

ai
le

d 
20

19
-2

0 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Bu
dg

et
3 

of
 4

AA
H

C 
O

w
ne

d 
Pr

op
er

tie
s

AH
A 

O
w

ne
d 

Pr
op

er
tie

s
H

CV
/S

ec
tio

n 
8 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns

H
ou

si
ng

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

Re
nt

 
Pr

og
ra

m
s

To
ta

l F
Y 

20
19

-2
0 

Bu
dg

et

To
ta

l 
FY

20
18

-1
9 

Bu
dg

et

Ch
an

ge
 

Am
ou

nt
Ch

an
ge

 %

20
,8

84
.0

0
76

,2
90

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

97
,1

74
.0

0
83

,5
48

.0
0

13
,6

26
.0

0
16

%
92

40
00

5
TE

NA
NT

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
92

40
02

0
Te

na
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 - 

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
an

d 
O/

S 
52

,6
92

.0
0

24
8,

71
2.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
30

1,
40

4.
00

32
4,

96
8.

00
-2

3,
56

4.
00

-7
%

92
49

00
0

TO
TA

L 
TE

NA
NT

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
52

,6
92

.0
0

24
8,

71
2.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
30

1,
40

4.
00

32
4,

96
8.

00
-2

3,
56

4.
00

-7
%

93
00

00
0

UT
IL

IT
IE

S
93

10
00

0
W

at
er

31
,9

68
.0

0
22

9,
81

0.
00

1,
35

6.
00

0.
00

0.
00

26
3,

13
4.

00
25

8,
62

1.
00

4,
51

3.
00

2%
93

20
00

0
El

ec
tri

cit
y

43
,1

88
.0

0
90

,3
71

.0
0

8,
10

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
1,

65
9.

00
14

5,
02

1.
00

-3
,3

62
.0

0
-2

%
93

30
00

0
Ga

s
19

,5
12

.0
0

33
,9

34
.0

0
36

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

53
,8

06
.0

0
57

,9
48

.0
0

-4
,1

42
.0

0
-7

%
93

80
01

0
Se

w
er

54
,9

72
.0

0
24

2,
10

5.
00

26
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
29

7,
34

1.
00

32
8,

39
9.

00
-3

1,
05

8.
00

-9
%

93
80

02
0

Ga
rb

ag
e

64
,3

08
.0

0
38

7,
00

5.
00

2,
20

8.
00

0.
00

0.
00

45
3,

52
1.

00
51

2,
28

0.
00

-5
8,

75
9.

00
-1

1%
93

99
00

0
TO

TA
L 

UT
IL

IT
IE

S
21

3,
94

8.
00

98
3,

22
5.

00
12

,2
88

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

1,
20

9,
46

1.
00

1,
30

2,
26

9.
00

-9
2,

80
8.

00
-7

%
93

99
99

0
M

AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
94

00
00

0
M

AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
 S

AL
AR

IE
S

94
10

01
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 - 
 S

al
ar

ie
s

14
7,

21
6.

00
56

3,
97

4.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

71
1,

19
0.

00
72

0,
83

5.
00

-9
,6

45
.0

0
-1

%
94

19
00

0
TO

TA
L 

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 S
AL

AR
IE

S
14

7,
21

6.
00

56
3,

97
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
71

1,
19

0.
00

72
0,

83
5.

00
-9

,6
45

.0
0

-1
%

94
20

00
5

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 M
AT

ER
IA

LS
94

20
01

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 M

at
er

ia
ls

33
,1

68
.0

0
20

7,
44

4.
00

1,
40

4.
00

0.
00

0.
00

24
2,

01
6.

00
24

9,
75

0.
00

-7
,7

34
.0

0
-3

%
94

20
02

0
Ve

hi
cle

 - 
ga

so
lin

e
1,

46
4.

00
5,

24
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
6,

70
8.

00
6,

70
8.

00
94

29
00

0
TO

TA
L 

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 M
AT

ER
IA

LS
34

,6
32

.0
0

21
2,

68
8.

00
1,

40
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
24

8,
72

4.
00

24
9,

75
0.

00
-1

,0
26

.0
0

0%
94

29
00

5
M

AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
 C

ON
TR

AC
TS

94
29

01
5

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- U

ni
t T

ur
na

ro
un

d
0.

00
55

,3
65

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

55
,3

65
.0

0
29

8,
91

5.
20

-2
43

,5
50

.2
0

-8
1%

94
29

04
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- C

yc
le

 P
ai

nt
in

g
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
32

,0
16

.8
4

-3
2,

01
6.

84
-1

00
%

94
29

03
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- T

re
e 

Tr
im

m
in

g
0.

00
10

,0
08

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
,0

08
.0

0
0.

00
10

,0
08

.0
0

94
29

06
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- F

lo
or

 C
ov

er
in

g
8,

36
4.

00
66

,2
86

.0
0

20
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
74

,8
54

.0
0

74
,5

67
.4

0
28

6.
60

0%
94

29
10

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

- S
er

vi
ce

s
22

,4
16

.0
0

11
4,

25
1.

00
2,

00
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
13

8,
67

1.
00

15
6,

71
6.

76
-1

8,
04

5.
76

-1
2%

94
30

01
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- P

ai
nt

in
g

12
,5

04
.0

0
22

,2
80

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

34
,7

84
.0

0
26

,1
84

.9
6

8,
59

9.
04

33
%

94
30

02
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- P

lu
m

bi
ng

2,
06

4.
00

25
,6

14
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
27

,6
78

.0
0

30
,4

11
.9

6
-2

,7
33

.9
6

-9
%

94
30

03
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- L

an
ds

ca
pe

, P
oo

l, 
Po

n
19

,2
84

.0
0

10
7,

47
1.

00
22

8.
00

0.
00

0.
00

12
6,

98
3.

00
14

3,
98

8.
12

-1
7,

00
5.

12
-1

2%
94

30
04

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

- H
VA

C 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
17

,1
72

.0
0

19
,5

83
.0

0
1,

05
6.

00
0.

00
0.

00
37

,8
11

.0
0

38
,7

02
.8

8
-8

91
.8

8
-2

%
94

30
06

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

- E
le

va
to

r M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

21
,9

36
.0

0
17

,0
40

.0
0

1,
00

8.
00

0.
00

0.
00

39
,9

84
.0

0
38

,8
86

.0
0

1,
09

8.
00

3%
94

30
07

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

- E
xt

er
m

in
at

io
n

9,
48

0.
00

39
,9

64
.0

0
18

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

49
,6

24
.0

0
50

,0
58

.1
2

-4
34

.1
2

-1
%

94
30

08
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- E

le
ct

ric
al

 M
ai

nt
en

an
c

36
0.

00
23

,1
59

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

23
,5

19
.0

0
23

,7
52

.3
2

-2
33

.3
2

-1
%

94
30

09
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- S

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 N

ur
se

 C
6,

78
0.

00
31

,3
58

.0
0

3,
45

6.
00

0.
00

0.
00

41
,5

94
.0

0
59

,0
42

.0
4

-1
7,

44
8.

04
-3

0%
94

30
10

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

- T
re

e 
Tr

im
m

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
5,

51
8.

56
-5

,5
18

.5
6

-1
00

%
94

30
11

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

- G
ut

te
r C

le
an

in
g 

Se
rv

1,
41

6.
00

14
,3

12
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
15

,7
28

.0
0

15
,7

58
.4

0
-3

0.
40

0%
94

30
12

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

- F
lo

or
in

g 
Re

pl
m

t/C
le

a
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
8,

24
8.

20
-8

,2
48

.2
0

-1
00

%
94

30
13

0
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

- O
th

er
3,

22
8.

00
51

,1
98

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

54
,4

26
.0

0
54

,8
77

.5
6

-4
51

.5
6

-1
%

94
30

14
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- V

eh
icl

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
1,

40
4.

00
5,

40
3.

00
12

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

6,
92

7.
00

5,
62

3.
56

1,
30

3.
44

23
%

 P
ag

e 
3 

of
 4

Page 74

Page 74 of 116



H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f A

la
m

ed
a

At
ta

ch
m

en
t C

: D
et

ai
le

d 
20

19
-2

0 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Bu
dg

et
4 

of
 4

AA
H

C 
O

w
ne

d 
Pr

op
er

tie
s

AH
A 

O
w

ne
d 

Pr
op

er
tie

s
H

CV
/S

ec
tio

n 
8 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns

H
ou

si
ng

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

Re
nt

 
Pr

og
ra

m
s

To
ta

l F
Y 

20
19

-2
0 

Bu
dg

et

To
ta

l 
FY

20
18

-1
9 

Bu
dg

et

Ch
an

ge
 

Am
ou

nt
Ch

an
ge

 %

94
30

15
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

s 
- J

an
ito

ria
l

35
,6

76
.0

0
12

6,
46

8.
00

7,
70

4.
00

0.
00

0.
00

16
9,

84
8.

00
11

6,
58

8.
88

53
,2

59
.1

2
46

%
94

39
00

0
TO

TA
L 

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 C
ON

TR
AC

TS
16

2,
08

4.
00

72
9,

76
0.

00
15

,9
60

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

90
7,

80
4.

00
1,

17
9,

85
8.

00
-2

72
,0

54
.0

0
-2

3%
94

50
00

5
M

AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
 E

M
PL

OY
EE

 B
EN

EF
IT

S
M

ai
nt

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
77

,6
63

.0
0

29
7,

54
9.

00
0.

00
2,

04
0.

00
0.

00
37

7,
25

2.
00

34
7,

69
4.

00
29

,5
58

.0
0

9%
94

59
00

0
TO

TA
L 

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 E
M

PL
OY

EE
 B

EN
EF

IT
S

77
,6

63
.0

0
29

7,
54

9.
00

0.
00

2,
04

0.
00

0.
00

37
7,

25
2.

00
34

7,
69

4.
00

29
,5

58
.0

0
9%

94
99

00
0

TO
TA

L 
M

AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
42

1,
59

5.
00

1,
80

3,
97

1.
00

17
,3

64
.0

0
2,

04
0.

00
0.

00
2,

24
4,

97
0.

00
2,

49
8,

13
7.

00
-2

53
,1

67
.0

0
-1

0%
95

00
00

0
GE

NE
RA

L 
EX

PE
NS

ES
95

00
10

0
In

te
re

st
 E

xp
en

se
29

,0
04

.0
0

1,
13

0,
09

5.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
15

9,
09

9.
00

1,
12

7,
12

7.
00

31
,9

72
.0

0
3%

In
su

ra
nc

e
30

,2
16

.0
0

16
0,

87
7.

00
28

,8
36

.0
0

8,
58

0.
00

4,
82

4.
00

23
3,

33
3.

00
42

8,
60

7.
00

-1
95

,2
74

.0
0

-4
6%

96
98

00
0

TO
TA

L 
GE

NE
RA

L 
EX

PE
NS

ES
59

,2
20

.0
0

1,
29

0,
97

2.
00

28
,8

36
.0

0
8,

58
0.

00
4,

82
4.

00
1,

39
2,

43
2.

00
1,

55
5,

73
4.

00
-1

63
,3

02
.0

0
-1

0%
96

99
00

0
TO

TA
L 

OP
ER

AT
IN

G 
EX

PE
NS

ES
1,

41
1,

24
6.

00
7,

10
1,

63
5.

00
3,

29
8,

16
2.

00
1,

77
9,

51
2.

00
1,

40
0,

50
4.

00
14

,9
91

,0
59

.0
0

14
,6

59
,0

40
.0

0
33

2,
01

9.
00

2%
97

10
00

0
EX

TR
AO

RD
IN

AR
Y 

EX
PE

NS
ES

97
10

09
0

Pr
e-

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t C

os
t

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

99
,9

96
.0

0
0.

00
99

,9
96

.0
0

10
0,

00
0.

00
-4

.0
0

0%
97

19
00

0
TO

TA
L 

EX
TR

AO
RD

IN
AR

Y 
EX

PE
NS

ES
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
99

,9
96

.0
0

0.
00

99
,9

96
.0

0
10

0,
00

0.
00

-4
.0

0
0%

97
39

50
0

OT
HE

R 
EX

PE
NS

ES
97

40
00

0
De

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e
23

5,
65

6.
00

1,
14

5,
92

4.
00

38
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

38
1,

96
4.

00
1,

55
2,

83
3.

00
-1

70
,8

69
.0

0
-1

1%
98

59
99

9
TO

TA
L 

OT
HE

R 
EX

PE
NS

ES
23

5,
65

6.
00

1,
14

5,
92

4.
00

38
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

38
1,

96
4.

00
1,

55
2,

83
3.

00
-1

70
,8

69
.0

0
-1

1%
99

96
00

0
TO

TA
L 

EX
PE

NS
ES

1,
64

6,
90

2.
00

8,
24

7,
55

9.
00

3,
29

8,
54

6.
00

1,
87

9,
50

8.
00

1,
40

0,
50

4.
00

16
,4

73
,0

19
.0

0
16

,3
11

,8
73

.0
0

16
1,

14
6.

00
1%

99
98

00
0

NE
T 

IN
CO

M
E

26
8,

51
9.

00
2,

77
5,

60
1.

00
-1

,4
53

,0
84

.0
0

-7
68

,7
52

.0
0

-2
90

,5
04

.0
0

53
1,

78
0.

00
-2

60
,2

55
.0

0
79

2,
03

5.
00

-3
04

%

 P
ag

e 
4 

of
 4

Page 75

Page 75 of 116



Page 76 of 116



Page 77 of 116



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 

 
APPROVING AND ADOPTING 

HOUSING AUTHORITY’S ONE YEAR BUDGET  
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2020 

 
 

  WHEREAS, the Executive Director has submitted a one year proposed budget to the 
Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has sufficient operating reserves to meet the 
working capital needs of its properties; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the proposed budget includes expenditures that are necessary for the 
efficient and economical operation of the housing for the purpose of serving low-income 
residents; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the proposed budget indicates a source of funds adequate to cover all 
proposed expenditures; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Housing Authority will comply with all state and federal wage rate 
requirements where applicable and requirements for access to records and audits. 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed FY 2019-2020 budget includes approval of  
 

i. Revised Schedule of Authorized Positions to be effective July 1, 2019  
 

ii. Transfer by the Executive Director of up to $1,453,084 in this budget year, as needed, 
from AHA property reserves to cover losses in the Section 8/Housing Programs 
operating budget.  

 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda hereby adopts the Housing Authority’s Budget 
Revision No. 1 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________     ______________________________ 
Vanessa M. Cooper     Kenji Tamaoki, Chair 
Secretary and Executive Director     Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
Adopted:   

Page 78

Page 78 of 116



Budget Presentation
For FY 2019‐2020

June 19, 2019



FY 2019‐20 Budget Highlights
(Attachment A)

FY 19‐20
 Projected Actuals   Budget   Variance   Budget   Amount  %

Rental 12,179,219           11,973,124       206,094           12,489,060      515,936        4%
Grant (FSS) 61,124                  61,124              ‐                  61,124             ‐                0%
Administrative Fees 1,679,358             1,634,828         44,530             1,765,946        131,118        8%
Other 1,150,282             2,382,541         (1,232,260)      2,688,669        306,128        13%
Operating Income 15,069,982           16,051,618       (981,636)         17,004,799      953,181        6%

‐                 
Administrative 6,540,309             8,440,713         (1,900,404)      9,345,335 904,622        11%
Tenant/Social Services 790,910                652,185            138,724           798,861           146,676        22%
Utilities 1,172,427             1,302,269         (129,842)         1,209,461 (92,808)         ‐7%
Maintenance 1,876,411             2,498,136         (621,726)         2,244,970 (253,166)       ‐10%
General/Other 1,635,500             1,655,733         (20,234)           ‐      1,492,428 (163,305)       ‐10%
Operating Expenses 12,015,557           14,549,037       (2,533,480)      15,091,055      542,018        4%

‐                 

NET OPERATING INCOME 3,054,426             1,502,581         1,551,844        1,913,744        411,163        27%
‐                 

HAP income 32,045,203           30,130,914       1,914,289        30,144,267      13,353          0%
HAP Expenses 32,045,203           30,130,914       1,914,289        30,144,267      13,353          0%

NET HAP ‐                        ‐                   ‐                  ‐                   ‐               

Less: Depreciation 1,149,806             1,552,833         (403,027)         1,381,964        (170,869)       ‐11%

OPERATING INCOME AFTER DEPRECIATION 1,904,619             (50,252)            1,954,871        531,780           582,032        ‐1158%

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Attachment A:  Summary FY 2019‐20 Budget

FY 18‐19 Change

2



Budget Structure
AAHC 
• 4 properties transferred May 1, 2018
• Presented here in operating budget but will be approved in separate meeting

Overall Includes:
• Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments (HAP pass‐through)
• Operating income and Expenses 

• Properties, Section 8 Admin fee, CDBG, HOME, Successor Agency, Rent Program etc.
• Capital Improvement Projects  (CIP)

Does not include:
• Island City Development (ICD)

3



Methodology
FY 2019‐20 Budget
• A complete update of personnel costs as these form 54% of the 
expense budget

• Revised rental income to reflect an minor increase in contract rent for 
2020 (4% over the year)

• Expenses adjusted for actual or in some cases increased 3%  

4



HAP Budget Highlights

(Attachment B)

5



Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments 
(HAP pass‐through)
• Total HAP for FY 2019‐20 ‐ $30,144,267

• HAP is received by AHA and paid to landlords housing Section 8 
tenants

• Federal funds must be kept separate from all other Housing Authority 
funds 

• Assumes leasing of 18,024 units (1,502 per month), compared with 
17,626 units (or 1,469 per month) for prior year. 

• Reserves were $473,475 on April 30, 2019. Held off balance sheet by 
HUD. 

6



Use of HAP / Lease Up
• After shortfall, agencies have a short period to ramp up leasing or 
lose budget authority at year end.

• Less than 95% lease up for 2019 will impact SEMAP High Performer 
status

• Lease up options include
• Issuance of 150 tenant based vouchers to those on waitlist
• Absorption of port‐ins
• Retaining landlords by providing contract rent increases in a timely manner
• Issuance of PBV RFP
• Increasing contract rents on PBV units and AHA owned voucher units

7



Operating Budget Highlights 

(Attachment C)

8



Operating Income
• FY 2019‐20 Total Operating Income is $17,004,796 or 6% higher
• Due to increased tenant revenue (less vacancy, higher contract rents), 
increased investment income, higher processional services fees. 

Income sources:  
• Rental income from tenants in AHA‐owned properties 
• Rental subsidy (HAP) received for Section 8 recipients in AHA‐owned properties
• Tax Increment Funding (TIF or CIC) for Independence Plaza (may be lower than budgeted 
as rental income is increasing with voucher move‐ins)

• Grant Income for the Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) program
• Administrative Fee Income: 

• Only to cover the cost of administration for the Section 8 programs
• Included at a proration of 79%

• Other income – interest, CDBG, HOME  etc.
9



Operating Expenses
• FY 2019‐20 Total operating expenses is $15,091,055 or 4% higher

• Due mainly to staffing costs

• More detailed line‐by‐line breakdown in Attachment C

• Increases include 
• Salary and Benefits
• Legal
• Recruiting costs (separately budgeted this year)

10



• Schedule of Authorized Positions (Attachment E):
• FY 2018‐19 56.63 (FTE) FY 2019‐20    56.50 (FTE)
• A small number of position changes in Housing Programs, Property Operations, and Executive

• COLA 3%
• A proposed COLA of 3% for all employees, except Y‐rated staff
• Staff will come back to BOC in Aug/Sept. with COLA data

• Benefits: 
• 5% ‐7% increase in maximum AHA contribution assumed
• Assumes employee plus 2 dependents for all regular employees  (2018‐19 was under budgeted) 
• Staff will come back to BOC in Aug/Sept. with updated benefit costs

• Salary Survey
• Director level increases from the 2018 salary survey are included here. Any impacts from the 2019 

salary surveys for exempt and hourly staff are not included here as the surveys are not completed. 
Headroom in the benefits line may allow budget for any increases that these may deliver.  11

Salary & Benefits



Capital Improvement Projects (CIPs)

(Attachment D)

12



Capital Improvement Projects
• 8 projects valued at $11,231,000 ($3,000,000 approved in 2018‐19)

• Sources to pay for these include:
• Third party or grant funding (where available)
• Property specific reserves held by lenders/bond holders, subject to their 
approval or held by AHA

• Cash flow from the specific property or other properties

13



Operating Budget By Program

14



AHA Properties
• Assumes 3% vacancy except Rosefield Village due to capital projects

• Increases in contract rent for all sites spread over the calendar year

• Rightsizing families (in same property, if possible) to minimize rent 
increase impact on tenants and maximize housing uses

• Excess cash may be used for capital projects and to subsidize Section 8

• Two properties at third party management. AHA will reissue the RFP 
this year for management. Other properties may be moved as 
necessary. 

15



• Administrative Fee
• Revenues from Administrative Fees $ 1,765,946
• Other Revenue $ 79516
• Expenses $ 3,298,546

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
Net Loss ($1,453,084) 

• Cost issues – fourth year of losses
• Actual projected loss for FY 2018‐19 is much lower than expected due to staff vacancies and some 
cost efficiencies. Budgeted loss for 2018‐19 was $1,253,175, but expected actual loss is approximately 
$300,000. 

• Reduced leasing due to shortfall leads to lower admin fees
• Streamlining  initiatives with HUD upcoming (e.g. triennial recerts)
• Eliminated two FTE unfilled positions in two years
• Staffing may need to be reallocated/reduced in future years to balance the Section 8 budget

• Proposed Board Action
• Approve fund transfer of up to $1,453,084 in next year,  from Property operating reserves to the Housing 

Choice Voucher Program.    16

Housing Programs Department



Items That Will Impact Cash in FY 2019‐20
• Principal payments (can be met from property cash flow)

• Any additional Pension Liability or OPEB payments approved by the 
Board in the next fiscal year. See agenda item on pension liabilities

17



Summary 
• Operating surplus $1,913,744

• CIP $11,231,000

• Cash and investments at March 31, 2019 in excess of $20 MM 

18



Staff Recommendation

19



Adoption of the Housing Authority’s Budget for 
Fiscal Years 2019‐20 Including Approval of: 
• Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Budget (Attachment B)

• Operating Income and Expenses (Attachment C)

• Capital Improvement Project (CIP) Budget and related use of property and 
agency reserves and surplus operating cash from Fiscal Years 2019‐20 to 
cover these expenses (Attachment D)

• Revised Schedule of Authorized Positions to be effective July 1, 2019 
(Attachment E)

• Transfer by the Executive Director of up to $1,453,084 in the budget year, 
as needed, from AHA property reserves to cover losses in the Section 
8/Housing Programs operating budget. 

20





Page 80

Page 80 of 116



Page 81

Page 81 of 116



Page 82

Page 82 of 116



CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA)

Pension Stabilization 
Strategy Study

June 19, 2019

Presented by:
Nicolay Consulting Group

The purpose of this presentation is to present alternative 
funding strategies for the CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan {a Cost 
Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plan of the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA)} to mitigate  
the increasing volatility in the annual required contributions.

2

Purpose

Page 83

Page 83 of 116



1. Overview of AHA’s CalPERS Misc. Pension Plan
2. Overview of CalPERS Funding Policy
3. Current CalPERS Projected Costs
4. Determining Alternate Funding
5. Funding Vehicles

Appendix

3

Table of Contents

1

Overview of AHA’s CalPERS Misc. 
Pension Plan

4

Page 84

Page 84 of 116



• Pension Plan is an exchange between the employer and employee where the employee agrees to 
work for the employer, and the employer agrees to provide the employee a “benefit” at retirement. 

• There are two main categories of pension benefits
– Defined Contribution: 

• Employer contributes a certain amount of money to the employee’s retirement account each year.  
• For example: matching and/or profit sharing contributions.

– Defined Benefit: 
• The employee earns a “portion” of monthly retirement benefit per year predetermined by a formula.
• For example, a monthly payment equals to x% of his/her compensation payable when an employees 

attained a certain age. 

• The CalPERS Misc. Pension Plan is a Defined Benefit type plan.
– The terms of the Plan are set by the State and cannot be changed.

5

What is a Pension Plan?

• Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act

(Classic) 
• Employees (participants) hired or a member elsewhere before 1/1/2013.

2) PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (PEPRA)
• Employees (participants) hired after 1/1/2013. 

• Both plans are funded both by the employer and employee. However, PEPRA law requires 
PEPRA participants to accept more responsibility in funding their pension (at least 50% of the 
normal cost rate). 

• The “Miscellaneous Plan” is a risk sharing pooled plan within CalPERS for small to medium size 
agencies (2,356 agencies, 100K participants).

6

Who is eligible?

The CalPERS Misc. Plan June 30, 2018($B)

Entry Age Accrued Liability(GASB 68 TPL) $16.9

Market Value of Assets 13.1

Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) $3.8

Page 85

Page 85 of 116



• Retirement benefit is based on number of years of service at eligible agencies, benefit 
factor(which is a percentage based on retirement age), and final compensation, which is the 
highest average 12 month annual compensation throughout the participant’s career. 

• Two groups of members

• A Classic CalPERS members become eligible upon attainment of age 50 (PEPRA, age 52) and at 
least 5 years of credited service (total service across all CalPERS employers, and with certain 
other retirement systems with which CalPERS has reciprocity agreements). 

7

AHA’s Eligibility Requirements & Benefit Formulas

Classifications Date of Hire or Membership

Classic Prior to January 1, 2013

PEPRA On/after January 1, 2013

• Classis Members Sample Benefit Factor* percentages are shown:

• PEPRA Members Sample Benefit Factor* percentages are shown:

8

AHA’s Eligibility Requirements & Benefit Formulas

Retirement Age 2% per eligible 
year at 55

50

2.000%

60 2.262%

63 & up 2.418%

Retirement Age 2% per eligible 
year at 62

52 1.000%

55 1.300%

60 1.800%

65 2.300%

*Final average compensation period is one-year for Classic and three-year for PEPRA participants

Page 86

Page 86 of 116



• AHA’s Misc. Plan Participants as of June 30, 2017*:

* Based on CalPERS Annual Valuation Report August, 2018.

9

AHA’s Eligibility Requirements & Benefit Formulas

Members Classic PEPRA

Actives 30 16

Transferred 30 2

Separated 10 7

Retired 13 0

Total 83 25

2

Overview of Funding Policy

10

Page 87

Page 87 of 116



• Funding Policy describes how to finance the retirement benefits already accrued to date and 
benefits going to be accrued in the future.

• AHA has the statutory requirement to pay the minimum contribution annually required by the 
CalPERS system, which consist of:

– Normal Cost, plus
– Amortizations of the Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL).

• Accrued Liability is the hypothetical amount of plan asset needed at the time of measurement 
based on a pre-determined trajectory to achieve full-funding using actuarial assumptions. 

• Unfunded Accrued Liability is the portion of Accrued Liability NOT YET covered by assets.
• Who contributes:

– Employees  are responsible for paying  a portion of the Normal Cost.
– Employers are responsible for paying the remaining portion of the Normal Cost and 

amortization of the Unfunded Accrued Liability.

11

What is the Funding Policy?

What is the current funding status 
of the AHA CalPERS Misc. Plan?

12

Page 88

Page 88 of 116



13

The Latest CalPERS Valuation Results
(as of June 30, 2017)

June 30, 2017
(in millions)

Entry Age Normal Accrued 
Liability(EANAL- past liabilities)* $15.7

Plan’s Market Value of Assets(MVA) 13.6

Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) $ 2.1

Funded Ratio (MVA/EANAL) % 87%

• Assumptions & Methods are prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according 
provisions set forth in the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

• * Did not reflect any anticipated changes in discount rate after June 30, 2017. Discount rate is 
scheduled to change to 7.00% as of June 30, 2018.

• Present Value of Future Benefits (past & future liabilities)as of June 30, 2017 is $18.8M.

Page 4 of the CalPERS 6/30/2017 Actuarial Valuation Report

14

AHA’s 2019-20 Estimated Employer Contributions:

424,331 (2019-2020 MRC) = 299,782 (Employer’s NC) + 124,549 (Amortization of UAL)

• Normal Cost is relatively stable each year. However, the amortization of Unfunded 
Accrued Liability is increasingly volatile over the years due to changes in 
assumptions to value liabilities and unexpected investment losses.

Page 89

Page 89 of 116



15

Scheduled Discount Rate Change In Next Year’s Valuation

CalPERS Assumptions Rate

Payroll Increase (CalPERS Rate) 2.875%

Discount Rate June 30, 2017(Current) 7.250%

Discount Rate June 30, 2018 (on/after*) 7.000%

*Discount rate may change after June 30, 2018

16

Anticipated Increase in Accrued Liability In Next Year’s Valuation

• Changing the discount rate from 
7.25% to 7.00% will increase the 
unfunded liability by Approx. $560K.

• The unfunded liability is projected to 
increase from $2M to $3M in 3 years.

• It takes over 30 years to payoff the 
current unfunded. No other future 
gain/loss is assumed beyond June 30, 
2017.

 $-

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

 $3,000

 $3,500

2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

June 30

Unfunded Pension Liability Comparison
(7.25% vs 7.00% discount rate) 

Projected Unfunded Accrued Liabilitybased on 6/30/2017 valuation
Projected Unfunded Accrued Liabilitybased on 6/30/2018 valuation

Page 90

Page 90 of 116



17

Anticipated Increase in Annual Payments towards UAL

 $-

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

 $350

 $400

2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

June 30

Amortization Payments Beginning FY2018/19 
(7.25% vs. 7.00% discount rate)

Amortization Schedule based on 6/30/2017 valuation
Amortization Schedule based on projected 6/30/2018 results

The Amortization 
Payments will increase 
from $65K in PY2018/19 
to $350K in next 12 years.

• Current Funding Policy: Minimum Required Contribution by CalPERS
– Initial Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability(UAL) is amortized over 20 years from 2013.
– Subsequent unexpected changes in liabilities due to experience gain/loss are “Phase-In” 

over 30 years (2-year delay with 5-year “Phase-in” method)
– Changes in actuarial assumptions are amortized over 20 years. (also, “Phase-In” method)

• 2-years delay with 5-year “Phase-In” period
– For the first two years, the amortization amount is zero.
– After the two-year waiting period, amortization payments are “Phase-In” over five years, 

by a factor of 20%, 40%, 60%, 80%, and 100% of the annual  payment.
– Unfunded liability will increase with interest when less than 100% of the annual 

payments are not paid.

18

What you need to know
- CalPERS Current Funding Policy

Page 91

Page 91 of 116



19

Comparison of CalPERS’ 5 Year “Phase-In” Methodology
• For example, on 6/30/2018 valuation, the discount rate would change from 7.25% to 7.00%, 

which will cause the unfunded liability to increase by approximately $560,000 in next valuation.

Example of CalPERS Amortization “Phase-In” Methodology
Additional

Unfunded Amount $560,251

Percentage
Amortized 0% 0% 20% 40% 80% 100% 100%

$Amort. Payment $0 0 11,835 24,351 37,576 51,542 66,280

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Ending Unfunded $560,251 599,469 641,432 674,089 696,087 705,944 702,044

Example of Amortization Without “Phase-In” Methodology
Additional

Unfunded Amount $560,251

Percentage
Amortized 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

$Amort. Payment $39,626 39,626 40,765 41,937 43,143 44,383 45,660

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Ending Unfunded $560,251 558,479 556,583 553,376 548,732 542,515

$167K higher 
in UAL  with 
“Phase-In”

Paying off the Unfunded Accrued Liability 
using Authority Controlled Pension Trust

20

Page 92

Page 92 of 116



• The Authority can access trust’s assets at any time, as long as it is used to meet the plan’s 
benefit obligations. 

• Trust balance can also be used for CalPERS required contributions. This could mitigate the 
volatility in CalPERS Employer contributions.

• Trust balance can be used to address CalPERS Total Pension Liability.
• Excess assets can pay for ever increasing Normal Costs even after the unfunded is paid-off.
• Similar to the CBERT account opened in 2016 for the OPEB Plan.
• Signals to plan participants  a commitment from AHA to ensure retirement benefits security. 
• Other HAs or Cities that adopted a Pension Stabilization Trust recently:

– Housing Authority of the County of Butte
– City of Pleasanton, Camarillo, Pasadena, Glendale, Manhattan Beach, Rolling Hills and Palo Alto etc.
– Please refer to Appendix for more agencies.

21

Advantages of Pre-funding 
through Authority-Controlled Trust

• State of California owes CalPERS $59 billion in Unfunded Pension Liabilities.
• State’s annual contributions to CalPERS are on track to increase from $5.8B to $11.2B 

by 2031-32. 
• Department of Finance analysis estimates that Pension Stabilization Plan will reduce 

State’s pension contributions by more than $11B over 20 years.
• California State Treasure John Chiang:

– “it is fiscally responsible to reallocate reasonable amount of the Surplus Money Investment 
Fund money that is earning a low rate of return*, to pay down a debt that is costing the state 
7% in interest.”

– *2-Year Treasury Constant Maturity Rate is currently at 2.81%

22

State of California Pension Stabilization Plan

Page 93

Page 93 of 116



• AHA has fiduciary responsibility on Trust’s assets.
• Market volatility has a more direct impact to the Authority’s financials due to increased 

exposure to equity market.
• If trust earns less than CalPERS, the Authority will have to make additional contributions.
• Trust will incur investment expenses compared to CalPERS’s PERF, which has minimal expenses.
• Opportunity costs of Authority’s capital (i.e. reserves are depleted)
• CalPERS’ contribution requirement would not take into account 115 Trust’s assets. 
• Requires active management by AHA. 

– Increased reporting (GASB 67). 
– Requires pension expertise.

23

Potential Disadvantages of Pre-funding 
through AHA-Controlled Trust

Section 3

Current CalPERS Projected Costs

24

Page 94

Page 94 of 116



25

Comparison of CalPERS “Phase-In” vs. “True Cost”
(reflecting future discount rate changes)

Fiscal Year 
Beginning

CalPERS
Min. Contribution

With Phase-In 
(Current)

CalPERS
Min. Contribution
Without Phase-In

(True Cost)
2018 409,000 538,000 
2019 476,000 551,000 
2020 524,000 566,000 
2021 577,000 581,000 
2022 622,000 596,000 
2023 650,000 612,000 
2024 681,000 628,000 
2025 699,000 644,000 
2026 718,000 661,000 
2027 737,000 679,000 

. . .

. . .

. . .
2044 686,000 764,000 
2045 675,000 635,000 
2046 682,000 787,000 
2047 699,000 699,000 
2048 716,000 716,000 

Key Observations
• The Board needs to understand the “true 

cost” of the plan.
• Any delay in amortization payments will 

increase the UPL over time. Hence higher total 
$contribution.

• Delaying UPL payment will add costs  and 
volatility to the total contribution under 
CalPERS “Phase-In” methodology.

• Pre-funding to reduce the total $costs.

Assumptions
• Minimum contributions include payment to 

unfunded accrued liability, plus normal costs 
(assumed to increase 2.5%).

• Projected contributions determined by 
CalPERS with “Phase-In” methodology.

• Minimum contributions  without “Phase-In” 
column represent the “true cost” of the plan.

• Discount rate of 7.25% for June30 2017, and 
7.00% for June 30, 2018 and thereafter.

• Does not take into account discount rate may 
decrease further.

26

CalPERS’ “Phase-In” vs. “Not Phase-In” 

 $-

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

 $3,000

 $3,500

2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Years

Projected Unfunded Accrued Liability at 7.00%

without Phase-In with Phase-In

“Phase-In” method causes 
the Unfunded Pension 
Liability to increase in next 
12 years.

Page 95

Page 95 of 116



27

CalPERS’ “Phase-In” or “Not Phase-In” 

 $-

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

 $350

 $400

2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

June 30

Amortization Payments Beginning FY2018/19

without Phase-In with Phase-In

Amortization payments are 
also more volatile under 
“Phase-In” method.

Section 4

Determining Alternative Funding

28

Page 96

Page 96 of 116



• The assumption used to calculate the alternate funding period projections 
are the same as the assumption used on slide 15.

• Assumed an initial Seed Contribution of $1M or $1.5M to the Trust. Trust 
account is used to pay the CalPERS required contributions.

• Additional Contributions are “accumulated”, with an expected long term 
investment return of 4.00% /5.00% (for comparisons).

• Due to short and medium term nature of the prefunding period, 10/15 
years amortization periods were used.

• At the end of the amortization period the “accumulated” trust balance will 
be equal to the UAL. 

• Subsequent contributions are assumed to increase 2.00% a year (assumes 
a steady %payroll costs).

29

Trust Pre-Funding Projection Assumption

30

Pension Rate Stabilization using 115 Trust Illustrations 

Projected Annual Contributions under the following six scenarios:

Scenario A
$1.0M Initial Trust Fund Contribution, 

10-Year Amortization 
Scenario A – 1 4.00% Rate of Return
Scenario A – 2 5.00% Rate of Return

Scenario B
$1.0M Initial Trust Fund Contribution, 

15-Year Amortization 
Scenario B – 1 4.00% Rate of Return
Scenario B – 2 5.00% Rate of Return

Scenario C
$1.5M Initial Trust Fund Contribution, 

10-Year Amortization 
Scenario C – 1 4.00% Rate of Return
Scenario C – 2 5.00% Rate of Return

Page 97

Page 97 of 116



31

Scenario A-1 
Initial Trust Fund of $1.0M,

10-year amortization, 4.00% ROR 

Fiscal Year 
Beginning

Annual Contrib. 
To Trust*

CalPERS Payment 
From Trust Trust Fund EOY

Trust Fund + 
CalPERS 

(Unfunded)
2019 $541,891 $409,211 $1,175,307__ $1,089,643__
2020 552,728 475,846 1,300,724 996,814 
2021 563,783 523,799 1,402,840 899,493 
2022 575,059 576,873 1,476,260 796,750 
2023 586,560 622,034 1,528,694 687,170 
2024 598,291 650,278 1,577,372 569,296 
2025 610,257 681,238 1,620,222 442,471 
2026 622,462 699,339 1,660,272 305,833 
2027 634,911 717,924 1,697,210 158,617 
2028 647,609 737,004 1,730,702 0 

Plan is fully funded

*Payroll is assumed to increase 2.00% per year

32

Scenario A-2 
Initial Trust Fund of $1.0M,

10-year amortization, 5.00% ROR 

Fiscal Year 
Beginning

Annual Contrib. 
To Trust*

CalPERS Payment 
From Trust Trust Fund EOY

Trust Fund + 
CalPERS 

(Unfunded)
2019 $529,086 $409,211 $1,172,836__ $1,092,114__
2020 539,668 475,846 1,296,875 1,000,663 
2021 550,461 523,799 1,398,395 903,938 
2022 561,470 576,873 1,471,781 801,229 
2023 572,700 622,034 1,524,519 691,345 
2024 584,154 650,278 1,573,729 572,939 
2025 595,837 681,238 1,617,298 445,395 
2026 607,754 699,339 1,658,214 307,891 
2027 619,909 717,924 1,696,137 159,690 
2028 632,307 737,004 1,730,703 0 

Plan is fully funded

*Payroll is assumed to increase 2.00% per year

Page 98

Page 98 of 116



33

Scenario B-1 
Initial Trust Fund of $1.0M,

15-year amortization, 4.00% ROR 

Fiscal Year 
Beginning

Annual Contrib. 
To Trust*

CalPERS Payment 
From Trust Trust Fund EOY

Trust Fund + 
CalPERS 

(Unfunded)
2019 $498,868 $409,200 $1,131,433 $1,133,517 
2020 508,845 475,800 1,210,342 1,087,196 
2021 519,022 514,700 1,263,195 1,039,138 
2022 529,403 558,100 1,284,470 988,540 
2023 539,991 593,000 1,281,740 934,124 
2024 550,790 610,500 1,272,099 874,569 
2025 561,806 630,100 1,253,328 809,365 
2026 573,042 646,700 1,228,303 737,802 
2027 584,503 663,800 1,196,556 659,271 
2028 596,193 681,300 1,157,588 573,115 
2029 608,117 699,300 1,110,876 478,613 
2030 620,279 717,800 1,055,865 374,981 
2031 632,685 736,800 991,972 261,367 
2032 645,339 756,200 918,583 136,840 
2033 658,245 756,500 855,159 (0)

Plan is fully funded
*Payroll is assumed to increase 2.00% per year

34

Scenario B-2 
Initial Trust Fund of $1.0M,

15-year amortization, 5.00% ROR 

Fiscal Year 
Beginning

Annual Contrib. 
To Trust*

CalPERS Payment 
From Trust Trust Fund EOY

Trust Fund + 
CalPERS 

(Unfunded)
2019 $489,005 $409,200 $1,131,765 $1,133,185 
2020 498,785 475,800 1,211,858 1,085,680 
2021 508,761 514,700 1,266,397 1,035,936 
2022 518,936 558,100 1,289,598 983,412 
2023 529,315 593,000 1,288,771 927,093 
2024 539,901 610,500 1,280,847 865,821 
2025 550,699 630,100 1,263,519 799,174 
2026 561,713 646,700 1,239,568 726,537 
2027 572,947 663,800 1,208,439 647,388 
2028 584,406 681,300 1,169,535 561,168 
2029 596,094 699,300 1,122,230 467,259 
2030 608,016 717,800 1,065,853 364,993 
2031 620,177 736,800 999,692 253,647 
2032 632,580 756,200 922,993 132,430 
2033 645,232 756,500 855,159 (0)

Plan is fully funded
*Payroll is assumed to increase 2.00% per year

Page 99

Page 99 of 116



35

Scenario C-1 
Initial Trust Fund of $1.5M,

10-year amortization, 4.00% ROR 

Fiscal Year 
Beginning

Annual Contrib. 
To Trust*

CalPERS Payment 
From Trust Trust Fund EOY

Trust Fund + 
CalPERS 

(Unfunded)
2019 $486,331 $409,211 $1,638,647 $626,303__
2020 496,057 475,846 1,724,805 572,733 
2021 505,979 523,799 1,784,934 517,399 
2022 516,098 576,873 1,813,510 459,500 
2023 526,420 622,034 1,818,103 397,761 
2024 536,949 650,278 1,815,800 330,868 
2025 547,688 681,238 1,804,379 258,314 
2026 558,641 699,339 1,786,711 179,394 
2027 569,814 717,924 1,762,320 93,507 
2028 581,210 737,004 1,730,703 0 

Plan is fully funded

*Payroll is assumed to increase 2.00% per year

36

Scenario C-2 
Initial Trust Fund of $1.5M,

10-year amortization, 5.00% ROR 

Fiscal Year 
Beginning

Annual Contrib. 
To Trust*

CalPERS Payment 
From Trust Trust Fund EOY

Trust Fund + 
CalPERS 

(Unfunded)
2019 $470,915 $409,211 $1,638,228 $626,722__
2020 480,333 475,846 1,724,736 572,802 
2021 489,939 523,799 1,785,633 516,700 
2022 499,738 576,873 1,815,124 457,886 
2023 509,733 622,034 1,820,507 395,357 
2024 519,928 650,278 1,818,705 327,963 
2025 530,326 681,238 1,807,394 255,299 
2026 540,933 699,339 1,789,343 176,762 
2027 551,751 717,924 1,763,983 91,844 
2028 562,786 737,004 1,730,703 0 

Plan is fully funded

*Payroll is assumed to increase 2.00% per year

Page 100

Page 100 of 116



The “Four Unknowns”

37

1. Initial Seed Contribution
2. Amortization Period
3. Investment Rate of Return
4. Annual Contribution Rate

38

Scenario A - $1.0M Seed, 10-year Amortization Period

400

450

500

550

600

650

700

750

800

2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Annual Contribution 
(4.00% vs 5.00% Rate of Return) 

Scenario A-1 $1.0M Seed, 10 years, 4.00%

Scenario A-2 $1.0M Seed, 10 years, 5.00%

CalPERS

Page 101

Page 101 of 116



39

Scenario B - $1.0M Seed, 15-year Amortization Period

400

450

500

550

600

650

700

750

800

2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046

Th
ou

sa
nd

s
Annual Contribution 

(4.00% vs 5.00% Rate of Return) 

Scenario B-1 $1.0M Seed, 15 years, 4.00%

Scenario B-2 $1.0M Seed, 15 years, 5.00%

CalPERS

40

Scenario C - $1.5M Seed, 10-year Amortization Period

400

450

500

550

600

650

700

750

800

2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Annual Contribution 
(4.00% vs 5.00% Rate of Return) 

Scenario C-1 $1.5M Seed, 10 years, 4.00%

Scenario C-2 $1.5M Seed, 10 years, 5.00%

CalPERS

Page 102

Page 102 of 116



41

Scenarios A, B, & C Combined

300

350

400

450

500

550

600

650

700

750

800

2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Annual Contribution under Various Pre-funding Scenarios

Scenario A-1 $1.0M Seed, 10 years, 4.00% Scenario A-2 $1.0M Seed, 10 years, 5.00%
Scenario B-1 $1.0M Seed, 15 years, 4.00% Scenario B-2 $1.0M Seed, 15 years, 5.00%
Scenario C-1 $1.5M Seed, 10 years, 4.00% Scenario C-2 $1.5M Seed, 10 years, 5.00%
CalPERS

42

CalPERS
Scenario

A-2
Scenario

B-1
Scenario

B-2
Scenario

C-1
Scenario

C-2
Expected ROR 7.00% 4.00% 5.00% 4.00% 5.00% 4.00% 5.00%

Initial Seed Cont. N/A $1.0M $1.0M $1.5M

Amortization Period 10-Year 15-Year 10-Year

2019-20 409,200 541,900 529,100 498,900 489,000 486,300 470,900

2020-21 475,800 552,700 539,700 508,800 498,800 496,100 480,300

2021-22 514,700 563,800 550,500 519,000 508,800 506,000 489,900 

2022-23 558,100 575,100 561,500 529,400 518,900 516,100 499,700 

2023-24 593,000 586,600 572,700 540,000 529,300 526,400 509,700 

2024-25 610,500 598,300 584,200 550,800 539,900 536,900 519,900 

2025-26 630,100 610,300 595,800 561,800 550,700 547,700 530,300 

2026-27 646,700 622,500 607,800 573,000 561,700 558,600 540,900 

2027-28 663,800 634,900 619,900 584,500 572,900 569,800 551,800 

2028-29 681,300 647,600 632,300 596,200 584,400 581,200 562,800 

2029-30 699,300 437,000 437,000 608,100 596,100 437,000 437,000 

2030-31 717,800 447,900 447,900 620,300 608,000 447,900 447,900 

2031-32 736,800 459,100 459,100 632,700 620,200 459,100 459,100 

2032-33 756,200 470,600 470,600 645,300 632,600 470,600 470,600 

2033-34 756,500 482,300 482,300 658,200 645,200 482,300 482,300 

15 Years Summary of Total Contributions

Page 103

Page 103 of 116



43

Summary of Total Contributions
FYE 2020-2050 (30 years)

CalPERS
Scenario

A-1
Scenario

A-2
Scenario

B-1
Scenario

B-2
Scenario

C-1
Scenario

C-2

Expected ROR 7.00% 4.00% 5.00% 4.00% 5.00% 4.00% 5.00%

Amortization Years 10-year 10-year 15-year 15-year 10-year 10-year

Initial Seed Cont. N/A $1.0M $1.0M $1.0M $1.0M $1.5M $1.5M
Initial

Flat Contribution Include 
Normal Costs

$409,000 $541,900 $529,100 $498,000 $489,000 $486,300 $470,900

Total Contribution
(Seed + sum of Annual ) $19.4M $18.1M $18.0M $18.5M $18.3M $18.0M $17.8M

Savings
(compared to CalPERS) $1.3M $1.4M $0.9M $1.1M $1.4M $1.6M

• Assumed annual contribution will increase same as increase in payroll of 2.00% per year.
• Savings is the difference between CalPERS total contributions and Scenarios’ total contributions plus 

initial Seed funding amount.
• Generally, a 1.00% increase in rate of return will increase the savings by approximately $0.2M
• In FY2017/18, CalPERS PERF reported a rate of return on assets of 8.60%.

Section 5

Funding Vehicles

44

Page 104

Page 104 of 116



• Governor signed Senate Bill 1413 provides for CalPERS to establish Pension 
Prefunding Trust Program, an 115 irrevocable trust.

• California Employers’ Pension Prefunding Trust (CEPPT) was created in 2019 
similar to CERBT for OPEB Plans.

• Pros and Cons:
– Pros

• Lower management/administration costs.
• AHA has established relationship with CalPERS in using 115 irrevocable trust.

– Cons
• Limited investment strategies.

• CEPPT Investment Policy:
– Investment policy was designed to accommodate inflow and outflows without adversely 

affecting CEPPT’s investment performance.
– CEPPT assets are to be held at short to medium terms, compared to CERBT assets are 

held medium to long term for OPEBs.
– CalPERS is finalizing the investments options for CEPPT and expected to be available for 

employers to participate after June 30, 2019.

45

Option 1 - CalPERS Pension Prefunding Program

• PARS is an independent Section 115 trust
• Overhead higher than with CERBT/CEPPT: management fees starting at 25 

basis points
• AHA would need to contract auditors for GASB 67 Plan Audit
• Flexible deadlines for reporting
• Flexible plan year
• Five investment strategies and ability to tailor your own
• Over 170 California employers have assets in PARS Trusts, totaling over $1 

billion

46

Option 2 - Public Agency Pension Retirement Services

Page 105

Page 105 of 116



47

CERBT vs. PARS Investment Information

CERBT & PARS Policy Targets & Strategic Ranges

Asset Class PARS
Conservative

CERBT 
Strategy 2

PARS 
Moderate

CERBT
Strategy 1

PARS
Balanced

PARS
Capital 

Appreciation

Global Equity 15%
5-20%

22%
17-27%

30%
20-40%

40%
35-45%

50%
40-60%

59%
54-64%

60%
50-70%

75%
65-85%

Fixed Income 80%
60-95%

49%
45-55%

65%
50-80%

43%
38-48%

45%
40-60%

25%
20-30%

35%
30-50%

20%
10-30%

Global Real 
Estate NA 8%

3-13% NA 8%
3-13% NA 8%

3-13% NA NA

Treasury Inflation 
Protected 
Securities

NA 16%
13-19% NA 5%

2-8% NA 5%
2-8% NA NA

Commodities NA 5%
2-8% NA 4%

1-7% NA 3%
0-6% NA NA

Cash 5%
0-20%

0%
0-2%

5%
0-20%

0%
0-2%

5%
0-20%

0%
0-2%

5%
0-20%

5%
0-20%

Conservative                                                                                      Appreciation

48

Page 106

Page 106 of 116



Comparison of Investment Strategies and Expected Rate of Return 

CEPPT (unofficial
release May 2019)

Conservative
(Strategy 2)

Moderately 
Conservative
(Strategy 1)

Global Equity 14% 40%

Fixed Income 73% 47%

TIPS 5% 5%

REITS 8% 8%

Expected Return(Gross,
before 10-bps expenses) 4.25% 5.25%

Expected Risk (Std. Dev.) 5.2% 8.2%

PARS as of June 2018 Conservative Moderately 
Conservative Moderate Balanced Capital 

Appreciation

Global Equity 14% 29% 48% 58% 73%

Fixed Income 80% 65% 45% 35% 20%

Real Estate 1% 1% 2% 2% 2%

Cash 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%

Expected Return(Gross) 4.96% 5.61% 6.25% 6.53% 6.89%

Expected Risk (Std. Dev.) 3.45% 4.70% 7.65% 9.34% 11.99%

49

Comparison of Past Performance (CERBT vs. PARS) 

PARS as of Feb 2018 Conservative Moderately 
Conservative Moderate Balanced Capital 

Appreciation

1 year 6.73% 9.56% 13.19% 15.46% 16.72%

5 year 3.39% 5.26% 7.42% 8.54% 10.08%

10 year 3.75% 4.93% 5.45% 5.74% 10.90%

Expected Return(Gross) 4.96% 5.61% 6.25% 6.53% 6.89%

CERBT as of March 2019

CERBT
Strategy 3
(Inception 

Jan 1, 2012)

CERBT
Strategy 2
(Inception 

Jan 1, 2012)

CERBT
Strategy 1
(Inception 

Jan 1, 2007)

1 year 4.73% 4.56% 3.93%

5 year 4.24% 4.85% 5.38%

10 year N/A N/A 10.94%

ITD 5.45% 7.24% 4.74%
Expected Return(Gross, 
near-longer) 4.41% - 6.22% 5.22% - 7.01% 5.85% - 7.59%

50

Page 107

Page 107 of 116



CERBT Investment Returns – Time Weighted

Fund Assets 1 Month 3 Months FYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years ITD

CERBT Strategy 1
(Inception June 1, 2007)

$7,388,913,428 1.79% 10.19% 2.87% 3.93% 8.01% 5.38% 10.94% 4.74%

Benchmark 1.79% 10.13% 2.61% 3.63% 7.50% 4.95% 10.57% 4.29%

CERBT Strategy 2 
(Inception October 1, 2011)

$1,226,284,117 2.17% 8.82% 3.59% 4.56% 6.69% 4.85% NA 7.24%

Benchmark 2.17% 8.74% 3.36% 4.26% 6.18% 4.44% NA 6.91%

CERBT Strategy 3 
(Inception January 1, 2012)

$615,557,499 2.40% 7.38% 3.80% 4.73% 5.24% 4.24% NA 5.45%

Benchmark 2.38% 7.29% 3.61% 4.52% 4.79% 3.86% NA 5.10%

Periods Ended March 31, 2019

Time weighted return reports the performance of the investment vehicle, not of the employer assets. Returns are gross. Historical performance is not necessarily indicative of actual future investment performance or of future 
total program cost. Current and future performance may be lower or higher than the historical performance data reported here. Investment return and principal value may fluctuate so that your investment, when redeemed, may 
be worth more or less than the original cost. The value of an employer’s CERBT fund shares will go up and down based on the performance of the underlying funds in which the assets are invested. The value of the underlying 

funds’ assets will, in turn, fluctuate based on the performance and other factors generally affecting the securities market.

51

PARS Investment Returns – Time Weighted

Fund 3 Months YTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years

Conservative
(Inception July, 2004)

4.60% 4.60% 4.26% 4.00% 3.37% 5.66%

Benchmark 4.03% 4.03% 4.34% 3.47% 3.23% 4.52%

Moderately Conservative
(Inception August, 2004)

6.08% 6.08% 4.27% 5.47% 4.18% 7.29%

Benchmark 5.76% 5.76% 4.77% 5.05% 4.32% 6.44%

Moderate
(Inception October, 2004)

8.24% 8.24% 4.64% 7.53% 5.33% 9.09%

Benchmark .7.94% .7.94% 5.18% 7.13% 5.62% 8.80%

Balanced
(Inception October, 2006)

9.42% 9.42% 4.73% 8.61% 5.83% 9.91%

Benchmark 9.04% 9.04% 5.32% 8.16% 6.26% 10.05%

Capital Appreciation
(Inception January, 2009)

10.88% 10.88% 4.83% 9.67% 6.72% 11.11%

Benchmark 10.61% 10.61% 5.27% 9.63% 7.06% 11.90%

Periods Ended March 31, 2019

52

Page 108

Page 108 of 116



OPEB/Pension Fee
(basis points)

CERBT
(FY2018/19)

PARS
(Consulting + Investment)

Under $5M 10.0 60.0

$5-10M 10.0 50.0

$10-15M 10.0 40.0

$15-50M 10.0 30.0

53

• CEPPT offers a low cost prefunding investment vehicle. 10 basis points vs. 
PARS 60 basis point(equivalent of annual fee of $12K for a $2M trust).

• There are only two investment options offered by CEPPT, designed for 
short term time horizon.

• PARS offers a wider range/customizations of investment strategies than 
CEPPT. Better suit for a larger/long term investment horizon.

• Decisions, Decisions - Board should consider the following:
1. Investment horizon (before full funding is reached)? 10-15 years?
2. Seed contributions? $1.0M-$1.5M? Dollar-averaging investing? 
3. Risk tolerance? Equity% exposures?
4. CEPPT vs. PARS.

54

Funding Vehicle - CEPPT vs. PARS

Page 109

Page 109 of 116



Appendix

56

Page 110

Page 110 of 116



58

Summary:
1) Shortening of Amortization Period
2) Replace Ramp Up & Down with level amortization

More information can be found here: 
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/circular-
letters/2018/200-027-18.pdf

Current Amortization Method

Effective 6/30/2019 New Amortization Method

Page 111

Page 111 of 116





Page 113

Page 113 of 116



Page 114

Page 114 of 116



Page 115

Page 115 of 116



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 
 

Resolution No. ___ 
 

APPROVING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR   
TO OPEN NEW COLLATERALIZED BANK ACCOUNTS  

FOR THE HOUSING AUTHORITY  
 

  WHEREAS, The Housing Authority currently has 4 bank accounts held and 
managed by The John Stewart Company with Citibank for the purpose of operating 
Housing Authority business; and 
 
  WHEREAS, to collateralize; better manage balances in accounts and allow the 
property accounts to have balances over $250,000.  
 
  NOW, THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda hereby authorizes and directs the Executive 
Director of the Housing Authority to open four new collateralized bank accounts with 
Citibank as followed: 
 

• Rosefield Village Operating Account 
• Rosefield Village Security Deposit Account 
• Eagle Village Operating Account  
• Eagle Villa Security Deposit Account  

 
  AND, authorize the Executive Director of the Housing Authority to complete the 
attached Citibusiness General Deposit Resolution for Public Entitles.  
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
   
   
   
     
Vanessa M. Cooper  Kenji Tamaoki, Chair 
Executive Director/Secretary  Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHEMENT: Citibusiness General Deposit Resolution for Public Entitles form 

Page 116

Page 116 of 116


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	4-B - Attachment B.pdf
	Sheet1

	4-A - Presentation - Rosefield Village Development Update.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Rosefield Village Timeline
	Rosefield Village Project Scope
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Relocation Update
	Financing Plan (Sources and Uses)
	Slide Number 10




